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December 4, 2020

To the Members of the School Board of Orange County
and the Citizens of Orange County, Florida:

State law requires that all school districts publish within nine months of the close of each fiscal year a complete set
of financial statements presented in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
(GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards (GAAS) by an independent certified
public accountant. Pursuant to that requirement, we hereby issue the comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR)
of Orange County Public Schools (the District) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the District. Consequently,
management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all the information presented in this
report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, management of the District has established
a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the government’s assets from losses,
theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the District’s financial
statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the
District’s comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than
absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert
that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

The District’s financial statements have been audited by Cherry Bekaert LLP, a firm of licensed certified public
accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the basic financial
statements of Orange County Public Schools for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, are free of material
misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded,
based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering unmodified opinions that Orange County
Public Schools’ basic financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, are fairly presented in conformity
with GAAP. The report of independent auditor is presented as the first component of the financial section of this
report.

The independent audit of the financial statements of the District was part of a broader, federally mandated “Single
Audit” designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The District is required to undergo an annual
single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act of 1996 and the United States Office of
Management and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). The standards governing Single Audit
engagements require an independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements,
but also on the audited government’s internal controls and legal requirements involving the administration of
federal awards. Information related to this single audit, including the schedule of expenditures of federal awards,
findings and questioned costs, summary of prior audit findings, and the report of independent auditor on compliance
with applicable requirements, are included in the Single Audit section. The report of independent auditor on the
system of internal control is included in the other reports section.

“The Orange County School Boa*'u}l is an equal opportunity agency.”



This report includes all funds of the District, The School Board of Orange County Employee Benefits Trust (Trust),
The Orange School Board Leasing Corporation, Inc. (Leasing Corporation), and The Foundation for Orange County
Public Schools, Inc. (Foundation), which comprise the reporting entity. The Trust administers the District’s employee
group health and life insurance program. The Leasing Corporation was formed by the School Board to be the lessor
in connection with financing the acquisition and/or construction of certain educational facilities. The Foundation is
a separate not-for-profit corporation organized and operated as a direct-support organization. The Foundation’s
purpose is exclusively educational and charitable for the constituents of Orange County. The Foundation is included
as a discretely presented component unit.

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic
financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is
designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The District’'s MD&A can be found
immediately following the report of the independent auditor.

Profile of the Government

The District and its governing board were created pursuant to Section 4, Article IX of the Constitution of the State of
Florida. The District is an independent taxing and reporting entity managed, controlled, operated, administered, and
supervised by the district school officials in accordance with Chapter 1001, Florida Statutes. The Board consists of
eight members. The school board chairman is elected at large by the citizens of Orange County. Should a tie vote
exist on any particular issue, the chairman’s side prevails. The seven board members are elected in districts by the
public. All board members serve four-year staggered terms. The superintendent is selected by the Board and serves
as chief executive officer of the school system. The Board is responsible for setting policy, while the superintendent
is responsible for administration and management of the schools. The superintendent is also specifically delegated
the responsibility of maintaining a uniform system of records and accounts in the District by Section 1010.01, Florida
Statutes, as prescribed by the State Board of Education.

The geographic boundaries of the District are those of Orange County. The District has a total of 199 schools with an
average age of 14.6 years. The District is in the center of the State of Florida and encompasses an area of about
1,000 square miles. During the 2019-20 fiscal year, Orange County Public Schools continues to be the eighth-largest
school district in the nation and the fourth-largest in Florida. Also during fiscal year 2019-20, the District operated
199 schools, including 125 elementary schools, 8 K-8 schools, 38 middle schools, 20 high schools, and 8 exceptional
schools. Including alternative schools, the district had a total of 190,425 full-time equivalent students (FTE). To
better serve schools and students, the district is divided into five geographic learning communities. In addition, the
District sponsored 41 charter schools with a total of 15,590 FTE. The projected full time equivalent enrollment for
fiscal year 2020-21 is 209,400.

The District also provides Career and Technical education within Orange County. Orange Technical College is one of
Florida’s leading providers of comprehensive secondary and post-secondary technical education, serving more than
50,000 students each year. Instruction takes place throughout 5 technical college campuses, 20 high schools, 37
middle schools, and various community and business sites located throughout Orange County. Orange Technical
College offers career certificate training programs that range in length. Graduates can earn future college credits in
most programs, as well as valuable work-related experience for immediate employment in various technical fields.

The District maintains budgetary controls, the objective of which is to ensure compliance with legal provisions
embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the Board. The annual budget serves as the foundation
for the District’s financial planning and control. The District is required to advertise, hold a public hearing and adopt
a tentative budget no later than 34 days after certification of value by the property appraiser which occurs around
July 1 of each year. The final millage and budget must be adopted within 65-80 days of certification. The appropriated
budget is prepared by fund, function (e.g., instruction), and object (e.g., salaries). Each school as well as department
has their own budget. The school’s budget is based on the number and classification of the students attending that
school and each principal plays an integral role in developing their school’s budget. Budget-to-actual comparisons
are provided in the report, by function, for each individual governmental fund for which an appropriated annual
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budget has been adopted. For the general fund, this comparison is presented as part of the basic financial statements
for the governmental funds. For all other governmental funds with appropriated annual budgets, these comparisons
are presented in the combining and individual fund section of this report.

Economic Condition and Outlook

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered from the
broader perspective of the specific environment within which Orange County Public Schools operates.

Local Economy. Orlando is the county seat and the principal city in Orange County. The District is the 2nd largest
employer in the county with approximately 25,625 employees. Along with Walt Disney World Resort, other major
employers include AdventHealth, Universal Orlando Resort (Comcast), Publix and Orlando Health.

The population of Orange County is estimated at 1,415,672. Orange County is the fifth most populous county in
Florida. The median age in Orange County is 35.2 years of age. Due to COVID-19, the unemployment rate in the
Orlando Metropolitan area was 9.8 percent and 7.6 percent in the State of Florida.

Orange County is home to one of the largest universities in the nation with more than 68,500 students. The
University of Central Florida (UCF) in the eastern part of the county attracts many of the high-tech employers to the
area. UCF, an academic, partnership and research leader in numerous fields such as optics and lasers, modeling and
simulation, engineering and computer science, business administration, education, hospitality management,
healthcare and video game design ranks among the nation’s 10 most innovative universities. UCF has also been
ranked as a best-value university by Kiplinger’s, as well as one of the nation’s most affordable colleges by Forbes.

Our economy benefits from a globally recognized tourism industry. Major tourist attractions in Orange County
include Walt Disney World, EPCOT, Disney-MGM Studios, Disney Animal Kingdom, Sea World of Orlando and
Universal Studios. With the temporary closure of these attractions tourism may take several years to recover.

Creative Village, a $1.5 billion development in the heart of downtown Orlando, has transformed a 68-acre parcel
into a mixed-use, transit oriented, urban infill neighborhood. The Creative Village concept focuses on developing a
true “live, work, learn and play” urban innovation district. A key component of the village is to bring a mix of
affordable, attainable and market-rate housing to the community. Creative Village is currently in phase 1 of a three-
phase development plan with the Master Development Agreement running through 2031. Future phases include
additional residential housing, office space and a hotel.

The Lake Nona area in Orlando is a rapidly growing master-planned community of thoughtfully designed
neighborhoods, top-rated education facilities, business and research clusters, retail and entertainment centers, and
diverse workspaces.

The core of the Orlando regions infrastructure is strong roadways. The region’s main thoroughfare, Interstate 4, is
undergoing a $2.3 billion investment for a 21-mile makeover that will connect the Gulf of Mexico to the Atlantic
Ocean. Express toll lanes will be added to manage traffic congestion and provide choices for travelers. The project
is estimated to be complete and opened to the publicin 2021.

Long-term Financial Planning

The voters of Orange County made a momentous decision when they approved the half-cent sales tax on September
10, 2002, subsequently reapproved in 2014 and is funded through 2025. With the additional revenue the sales tax
is generating, the District is able to renovate or replace aging schools, build new schools to accommodate growth,
pay for site acquisitions, provide new digital technology in classrooms and capital renewal. From January 2003
through June 2020, sales tax collections totaled $3.3 billion.
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The District, in cooperation with Orange County, continues to work with developers desiring to build residential
communities within the county to ensure sufficient school capacity. The student growth from these new
communities affects existing and future school sites in the District. These inter-local agreements include the
prepayment of school impact fees, developer contributions per unit, site development, and site acquisition.

Major Initiatives

Digital Technology and Curriculum. The District planned ahead for a state requirement that one half of the
curriculum materials be digital beginning in 2015-2016 and that Common Core assessments begin in 2014-2015. In
fiscal year 2014, the District began pilot programs at seven schools. They included 1 high school, 3 middle schools
and 3 elementary schools. The pilot expanded to nine additional sites, which included two 9* grade centers, for a
total of sixteen sites. Expansion to the remaining high schools occurred in FY17. Expansion to the remaining middle
schools occurred in FY18. In FY19 the program expanded to 50 additional schools for a total distribution of 135,000
devices. The District intended to provide devices to the remaining elementary schools during FY21 however, due to
COVID-19 and the Governor’s stay at home order the District managed to provide elementary students with devices
from a blend of purchased and available devices. On August 21%, the District reopened schools allowing parent to
make a choice for their child’s instruction. Offering 3 different models, parents could choose Face-to-Face
instruction, Orange County Virtual School (OCVS) or an innovative model which provided live stream instruction for
each class following a traditional bell schedule.

Accomplishments

On December 11, 2019, the District celebrated its 150-year milestone. The district was founded on Dec. 11, 1869,
with the formation of the Board of Public Instruction. W. C. Roper, A. C. Caldwell, and Z. H. Mason became the first
three board members and William A. Lovell was named the first superintendent. Students, and employees, along
with the community, were invited to “Go Orange” by sharing their well wishes, memorable moments and photos on
social media in support of this event.

The school district is committed to providing all students the education and skills necessary to be successful in
college, career and life. During fiscal year 2018-19 the district earned a grade “A” rating by the Florida Department
of Education however, due to COVID-19, school grades were not calculated for the 2019-20 school year and may
continue to use their current status.

Thirty-five percent of Orange County Public School’s teachers have advanced degrees; 33 percent have master’s
degrees; and 2 percent have specialist and doctorate degrees.

Two hundred five graduating seniors from our 20 high schools earned their associate degree along with their
diploma. This is a 200% increase from the previous year.

Due to COVID-19 the district’s graduation rate for 2019-20 school year has not yet been released.
Magnet Schools of America recognized ten OCPS magnet programs for demonstrating a high commitment to
academic standards, curriculum innovation, diversity efforts, specialized teaching staff, and parent and community

involvement.

The District’s Moody’s rating for its certificates of participation remained the same “Aa2” rating. The Fitch rating
remained the same “AA” rating. S&P remained the same “AA” rating for its certificates of participation.
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Report of Independent Auditor

The Honorable Members of the
School Board of Orange County Public Schools
Orlando, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the discretely presented
component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Orange County Public
Schools, Florida (the “District”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the
financial statements of the discretely presented component unit nor the fiduciary funds, which represent 100
percent of the discretely presented component unit assets, net position, and revenues and 4.04 percent of
assets and 13.66 percent of liabilities of the aggregate remaining fund information. Those statements were
audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinions, insofar as they relate to
the amounts included for the discretely presented component unit and fiduciary funds, are based solely on the
reports of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America and standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.



Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
District as of June 30, 2020 and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows
thereof, and the respective budgetary comparison for the General fund for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis and the other post-employment benefits and pension schedules be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the District’'s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual fund
statements and schedules, and statistical section, as listed in the table of contents, are presented for purposes
of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual fund statements and schedules are the responsibility of management and were
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America by us and the other auditors. In our
opinion, based on our audit, the procedures performed as described above, and the reports of the other auditors,
the combining and individual fund statements are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
them.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 4, 2020
on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of
that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

Orlando, Florida
December 4, 2020



ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2020

As management of Orange County Public Schools (the “District”), we offer readers of the District’s
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the District
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.

Financial Highlights

e The assets and deferred outflows of the District exceeded its liabilities and deferred
inflows at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $4,579,955,668 (net position).

e The District’s total net position increased by $157,979,125. This increase is primarily
attributable to the ongoing investment of the District in new schools and the renovation of
existing schools supported by sales tax proceeds and other capital outlay revenues.

e Total revenues of $2,676,919,286 were comprised of general revenues in the amount of
$2,486,382,757, or 93.0 percent, and program specific revenues from charges for
services, grants and contributions in the amount of $190,536,529, or 7.0 percent.

e For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District had $2,518,940,161 in expenses related to
governmental activities; $190,536,529 of which were offset by program specific charges or
services, grants and other sources. General revenues (primarily taxes and state funding
programs) of $2,486,382,757 were sufficient to provide for the District’s programs.

e As of the close of the current fiscal year, the District’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $1,950,495,821, a decrease of $26,106,166 in
comparison with the prior year. Approximately 5.4 percent of this total amount,
$106,441,113, is available for spending at the District’s discretion for the purposes
defined for each governmental fund (unassigned fund balance). The remaining balance of
$1,844,054,708 has been designated as Nonspendable, Restricted, Committed or
Assigned.

e At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was
$106,441,113, or 5.8 percent of total general fund expenditures.

e The District’s total long-term debt for bonds and COP’s decreased by $53,458,207, or 4.6
percent, during the current fiscal year, primarily due to principal payments.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic financial
statements. The District’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.
This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial
statements.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements (or district-
wide financial statements) are designed to provide a broad overview of the District’s finances, in
a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the District’s assets, deferred
outflows, liabilities, and deferred inflows, with the difference between the two reported as net
position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of
whether the financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating.
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The statement of activities provides information showing how the District’s net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result
in cash flows in the future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes, other post-employment benefits,
and earned but unused vacation and sick leave).

All of the District’s activities and services are reported in the government-wide financial
statements, including instruction, pupil support services, instructional support services,
administrative support services, facility maintenance, transportation, and food services. Property
taxes, state assistance, and interest and investment earnings finance most of these activities.
Additionally, all capital and debt financing activities are reported here. The District currently does
not report any business-type activities, which would include functions that are intended to
recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the District itself (known as the
primary government), but also the School Board of Orange County Employee Benefits Trust and
the Orange County School Board Leasing Corporation. The School Board of Orange County
Employee Benefits Trust (Trust) and the Orange County School Board Leasing Corporation
(Corporation), although also legally separate, were formed to administer the District’s group
health and life insurance program and facilitate financing for the acquisition of facilities and
equipment, respectively. Due to the substantive economic relationships between the District and
the Trust and Corporation, their financial activities have been included as an integral part of the
primary government.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The District,
like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the District can be divided
into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However,
unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus
on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, and on balances of spendable
resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a
government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the District’s near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.
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The District maintains 10 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in
the governmental balance sheets and in the governmental statements of revenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Capital Projects — Capital Improvement Tax
Fund, Capital Projects — Other Capital Projects Fund, and Special Revenue — Other Federal
Programs Fund, which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other 6 governmental
funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these
nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this
report.

The District adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison
statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

Proprietary funds. The District maintains one type of proprietary fund — internal service funds.
Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally
among the District’s various functions. The District uses internal service funds to account for its
self-insurance programs, employee benefits trust and printing services. Because these services
benefit the District’s governmental functions, they have been included within governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements.

The three internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the
proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund data for the internal service funds are
provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds, which for the District consist solely of agency funds, are used to
account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the District. Fiduciary funds are not
reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are
not available to support the District’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is
similar to that used for proprietary funds, except that agency funds do not report changes in
fiduciary net position, as agency fund assets equal liabilities.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to
fully understanding the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other information. The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor
governmental funds and internal service funds are presented immediately following the notes to
the financial statements.



ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2020

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. In the case of the District, assets and deferred outflows exceeded liabilities and deferred
inflows by $4,579,955,668 at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

Summary of Net Position

Governmental Activities Percentage
June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 Change

Current and Other Assets S 2,252,170,333 S 2,247,139,297 0.2%
Capital Assets 4,580,847,599 4,309,717,217 6.3%
Total Assets 6,833,017,932 6,556,856,514 4.2%
Deferred Outflows 515,132,495 532,020,620 -3.2%
Total Deferred Outflows 515,132,495 532,020,620 -3.2%
Long-Term Liabilities 2,394,921,542 2,376,823,539 0.8%
Other Liabilities 285,700,352 180,471,535 58.3%
Total Liabilities 2,680,621,894 2,557,295,074 4.8%
Deferred Inflows 87,572,865 109,605,517 -20.1%
Total Deferred Inflows 87,572,865 109,605,517 -20.1%

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 3,470,693,533 3,173,122,344 9.4%
Restricted 1,669,189,858 1,616,592,993 3.3%
Unrestricted (deficit) (559,927,723) (367,738,794) 52.3%
Total Net Position S 4,579,955,668 S 4,421,976,543 3.6%

The largest portion of the District’s net position (75.8) reflects its investment in existing capital
assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment), net of accumulated depreciation and less
any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The District uses these
capital assets to provide educational and related services to its students; consequently, these
assets are not available for future spending. Although the District’s investment in capital assets is
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must
be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate
these liabilities. A portion of the District’s net position (36.5 percent) reflects its restricted net
position for capital projects, debt service, food service and other purposes. The District will use
these resources in a continuing effort to build and refurbish sufficient classroom space for the
growing student population in Orange County, Florida.

The balance of (§559,927,723) is shown as unrestricted (deficit) net position. The deficit balance
in unrestricted net position is primarily due to reporting of the District’s proportionate share of
the State’s pension liability.

Overall, the District’s net position increased by $157,979,125 during the current fiscal year,
primarily due to building of capital fund resources for future school renovations and construction
projects and expansion of the digital curriculum initiative.
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Summary of Changes in Net Position

Revenues
Program Revenues
Charges for Services
Operating Grants and Contributions
Capital Grants and Contributions
General Revenues
Property Taxes
Local Sales Tax
FEFP Not Restricted to Specific Programs
Grants and Contributions not
Restricted to Specific Programs
Investment Earnings
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

Expenses

Instruction
Student Support Services
Instructional Media Services
Instruction and Curriculum

Development Services
Instructional Staff Training Services
Instruction-Related Technology
Board
General Administration
School Administration
Facilities Acquisition & Construction
Fiscal Services
Food Services
Central Services
Student Transportation Services
Operation of Plant
Maintenance of Plant
Administrative Technology Services
Community Services
Interest on Long-Term Debt
Unallocated Depreciation

Total Expenses

Increase in Net Position
Net Position - Beginning

Net Position - Ending

Governmental Activities

For the Fiscal Year Ended Percentage

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 Change
S 19,241,818 S 22,406,158 -14.1%
97,139,093 108,670,739 -10.6%
74,155,618 72,782,233 1.9%
1,050,300,917 995,548,001 5.5%
253,965,180 274,456,899 -7.5%
1,078,778,768 1,079,843,301 -0.1%
65,186,468 69,306,271 -5.9%
38,151,424 28,083,276 35.9%
~ 2,676,919,286 ~ 2,651,096,878 1.0%
1,327,227,699 1,217,834,484 9.0%
99,105,938 85,636,044 15.7%
19,147,822 17,636,792 8.6%
107,366,837 102,102,823 5.2%
50,402,105 46,885,234 7.5%
13,688,274 12,357,242 10.8%
4,752,572 4,290,283 10.8%
15,157,163 13,671,827 10.9%
134,487,171 121,419,810 10.8%
79,870,001 84,463,480 -5.4%
8,375,488 7,790,601 7.5%
129,368,937 119,079,253 8.6%
27,018,873 22,996,779 17.5%
91,472,024 90,129,694 1.5%
166,288,883 147,788,527 12.5%
38,632,603 49,444,625 -21.9%
44,745,253 44,453,510 0.7%
9,725,785 10,090,036 -3.6%
40,166,656 40,565,733 -1.0%
111,940,077 109,027,377 2.7%
— 2,518,940,161 ~ 2,347,664,154 7.3%
157,979,125 303,432,724 -47.9%
4,421,976,543 4,118,543,819 7.4%
S 4,579,955,668 $ 4,421,976,543 3.6%
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Expenses — Statement of Activities

Revenues by Source — Statement of Activities
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds
As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the District’s governmental funds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in
assessing the District’s financing requirements.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the District’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $1,950,495,821, a decrease of $26,106,166 in comparison with the prior
year. Approximately 5.4 percent of this total amount, $106,441,113, constitutes unassigned fund
balance. The remainder of fund balance is nonspendable of $1,720,885, restricted of
$1,628,541,340 or assigned of $213,792,483, which are not available for new spending.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the District. At the end of the current fiscal year,
unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $106,441,113, while total fund balance was
$330,530,940. As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both
unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total expenditures. Unassigned fund balance
represents 5.8 percent of total General Fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents
17.9 percent of that same amount.

The fund balance of the District’s General Fund decreased by $55,038,718 during the current fiscal
year. The key factors in this decrease are as follows:

e Continued implementation of student and business systems

o Delayed implementation of health insurance plan changes resulted in spending down of
general fund reserves

e Current year raises were enhanced by using a portion of general fund reserves

e Emergency costs related to the COVID-19 pandemic

The Nonvoted Capital Improvement Tax Fund, which is used to account for capital project activity
funded from the nonvoted capital improvement tax, has a total fund balance of $339,346,189, all
of which is restricted for specific capital projects. The net increase in fund balance during the
current year in the local capital improvement tax fund was $38,003,237 and resulted primarily
from funds being reserved for future planned expenditures.

The Other Capital Projects Fund, which is used to account for capital project activity funded
sources such as Certificates of Participation, Sales Tax and Impact Fees, has a total fund balance
of $1,090,461,955, all of which is restricted for specific capital projects. The net increase in fund
balance during the current year in the other capital projects fund was $7,254,393 and resulted
primarily from funds being reserved for specific capital projects.
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights

There was a total budget increase of $33.9 million between the original budget and the final
amended General Fund budget due to board approved salary increases and health insurance
premiums.

General Fund revenues were less than budgeted revenues by approximately $44.6 million. Other
local revenue was less than the budget by approximately S777K. The State revenue was less by
approximately $43.0 million. General Fund actual expenditures were less than the budgeted
appropriations by approximately $93.4 million, due to the delay of planned expenditures for
several major initiatives.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The District’s investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2020 amounts to
$4,580,847,599 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land,
construction in progress, improvements other than buildings, buildings and fixed equipment,
furniture, fixtures and equipment, motor vehicles, audio-visual materials, and computer software.
The total increase in the District’s investment in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation)
for the current fiscal year was $271,130,382 (6.3 percent).

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

e Construction of Acceleration Academy West
e Rebuilding of Boone High School

e Rebuilding of Colonial High School 9th Grade Center
e Rebuilding of Colonial High School

e Rebuilding of Corner Lake Middle School

e Rebuilding of Deerwood Elementary School

e Rebuilding of Discovery Middle School

e Rebuilding of Gotha Middle School

e Construction of Horizon Middle School

e Rebuilding of Hungerford Elementary School
e Rebuilding of Jones High School

e Rebuilding of Lake Gem Elementary School

e Rebuilding of Lake George Elementary School
e Rebuilding of Lawton Chiles Elementary School
e Rebuilding of Magnolia Elementary School

e Rebuilding of Meadow Woods Middle School
e Rebuilding of Oakshire Elementary School

e Rebuilding of Ocoee Middle School

e Rebuilding of Odyssey Middle School

e Rebuilding of Olympia High School

e Rebuilding of Orlando Technical College

11
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e Construction of Pershing Elementary School

e Rebuilding of Pinar Elementary School

e Rebuilding of Pinewood Elementary School

e Rebuilding of Riverdale Elementary School

e Rebuilding of Rolling Hills Elementary School

e Rebuilding of Southwest Middle School

e Construction of Summerlake Elementary School
e Rebuilding of Sunrise Elementary School

e Construction of Sunshine Elementary School

e Rebuilding of Timber Creek High School

e Rebuilding of Pine Hills Transportation Facility

e Construction of Vista Pointe Elementary School

e Construction of Water Spring Elementary School
e Rebuilding of Wekiva High School

e Rebuilding of Westside Technical College

e Rebuilding of Winegard Elementary School

e Construction of 113-H-W-4

e Construction of 80-H-SW-4

Summary of Capital Assets
(net of depreciation)

Governmental Activities

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019

Land S 362,880,072 S 360,238,950
Improvements Other Than Buildings 34,004,489 24,423,119
Buildings and Fixed Equipment 3,536,669,569 3,553,285,555
Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment 75,739,998 80,256,579
Motor Vehicles 69,240,430 65,788,000
Construction in Progress 499,068,425 222,135,942
Computer Software 3,244,616 3,589,072

Total Capital Assets S 4,580,847,599 S 4,309,717,217

Additional information on the District’s capital assets can be found in the Note 4 to the financial
statements.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the District had total long-term debt
outstanding of $1,102,548,781, none of which is considered to be general “bonded debt” (i.e.,
backed by the full faith and credit of the District). The District’s debt consisted of lease-purchase
agreements payable and state school bonds payable which are secured by specific revenue
sources or the underlying assets.

12
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Summary of Outstanding Debt

Governmental Activities

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019
Lease-Purchase Agreements Payable $1,101,976,781 $1,154,813,988
State School Bonds Payable 572,000 1,193,000
Total Debt $1,102,548,781 $ 1,156,006,988

During the current fiscal year, the District’s total long-term debt decreased by $53,458,207 (4.6
percent).

The District’s Moody’s rating for its certificates of participation remained the same “Aa2” rating.
Fitch’s rating remained the same “AA” rating. The S&P rating remained the same “AA” rating.

Additional information on the District’s long-term debt that can be found in Notes 5-9 to the
financial statements.

Economic Factors and New Year’s Budgets and Rates

The following factors were considered in preparing the District’s budget for the 2021 fiscal year:

The unemployment rate in June 2020 for the District (Orlando, Florida) was 16.1 percent,
an increase of 13.0 percent from the prior year rate of 3.1 percent due to the effects of
the COVID-19 pandemic. The State’s average unemployment rate, as of June 2020, was
10.3 percent. Florida’s unemployment rate has increased 6.8 percent since last year while
the nation’s rate increased 7.3 percent during the same time period, from 3.8 to 11.1
percent.

The District does not know the economic impact of the potential decrease in student
enrollment as a result of the pandemic.

The District’s health insurance contribution increased by 10% due to increased cost of
health benefits. Board contributions went from $8,444 per full-time employee to $9,289.

The District continues to expand its digital curriculum initiative and has budgeted funds
to build infrastructure and add devices for all remaining students.

Unassigned fund balance in the general fund at June 30, 2020 was $106,441,113. The
District has assigned $202,422,912. Of this amount, $143,571,613 was assigned for
Encumbrances and Budget Appropriations, which are included in the 2020 fiscal year
budget. The remainder, $58,851,299 for Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB), is a
long-term liability and as such is not included in the 2020 fiscal year budget.

Although current estimates indicate that no subsequent reductions will be required, the historical
experience where adjustments were made causes some concern regarding the consistency of
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state funding for the current year. The District has therefore been proactive and set aside
adequate reserves to deal with such a contingency should it materialize.

Requests for Information

This financial report is to provide a general overview of the District’s finances for all those with an
interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in
this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Chief
Financial Officer, Orange County Public Schools, 445 W. Amelia Street, Orlando, Florida, 32801.
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ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2020

Primary
Government Component Unit
The Foundation
for Orange
Governmental County Public
Activities Schools, Inc.
ASSETS
Cash S 377,048,553 S 613,251
Investments 1,726,578,446 3,529,777
Restricted Investments 48,149,484 -
Accounts Receivable 4,561,621 -
Interest Receivable 959,929 -
Deposits Receivable 187,185 92,148
Due From Other Agencies 89,412,831 -
Inventories 5,272,284 -
Prepaid Expenses - 15,400
Capital Assets:
Non-Depreciable 861,948,497 -
Depreciable (Net) 3,718,899,102 3,000
Total Assets 6,833,017,932 4,253,576
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Accumulated decrease in fair value of hedging derivatives 44,369,516 -
Net Carrying Amount of Debt Refunding 50,097,939 -
Other Post Employment Benefits 15,255,189 -
Pension 405,409,851 -
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 515,132,495 -
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities 101,476,489 1,380,655
Due to Other Agencies 2,628,780 -
Estimated Unpaid Claims 17,500,000 -
Accrued Interest Payable 17,056,823 -
Unearned Revenue 61,543,450 77,952
Long-Term Liabilities:
Portion Due or Payable Within One Year:
Bonds Payable 329,000 -
Lease-Purchase Agreements Payable 54,866,402 -
Compensated Absences Payable 9,406,124 -
Estimated Insurance Claims Payable 8,424,823 -
Other Postemployment Benefits 6,393,505 -
Net Pension Liability 6,074,956 -
Portion Due or Payable After One Year:
Bonds Payable 243,000 -
Lease-Purchase Agreements Payable 1,047,110,379 -
Compensated Absences Payable 120,718,142 -
Estimated Insurance Claims Payable 8,012,904 -
Hedging Derivative Instruments 44,369,516 -
Other Postemployment Benefits 52,457,794 -
Net Pension Liability 1,122,009,807 -
Total Liabilities 2,680,621,894 1,458,607
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Other Postemployment Benefits 4,342,123
Pension 83,230,742 -
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 87,572,865 -
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 3,470,693,533 3,000
Restricted for:
Capital Projects 1,499,028,714 -
Debt Service 125,966,384 -
Food Service 24,248,730 -
State Grants 5,617,300 2,234,226
State Categorical Programs 6,027,375 -
Post-Secondary 8,301,355 -
Unrestricted (deficit) (559,927,723) 557,743
Total Net Position S 4,579,955,668 S 2,794,969

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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ASSETS

Cash

Investments

Restricted Investments
Accounts Receivable
Interest Receivable

Due From Other Funds

Due From Internal Accounts
Due From Other Agencies
Inventories

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Salaries and Wages Payable
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings Payable
Accounts Payable
Construction Contracts Payable
Construction Contracts Payable - Retained Percentage
Due to Other Funds
Due to Other Agencies
Matured Debt Payable
Sales Tax Payable
Unearned Revenue

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable
Spendable:

Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2020
Other Federal Nonvoted Capital Other Capital
Programs- Improvement Projects - Nonmajor Total
General Special Revenue Section 1011.71(2), F.S. Capital Projects Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

96,786,634 S - S 82,847,734 S 130,333,763 29,625,316 S 339,593,447
175,327,944 - 308,348,955 991,437,499 107,158,022 1,582,272,420
- - - - 44,177,989 44,177,989
716,978 - - - 2,406 719,384
- - - 645,750 314,179 959,929
59,340,281 - - - - 59,340,281
19,780 - - - - 19,780
20,630,518 16,984,668 4,391,700 38,135,970 9,269,975 89,412,831
1,720,885 - - - 3,518,022 5,238,907
354,543,020 S 16,984,668 $ 395,588,389 $  1,160,552,982 194,065,909 S 2,121,734,968
9,307,108 S 2,353 $ - S - 220 $ 9,309,681
475,155 - - - - 475,155
11,608,832 934,966 5,415,294 11,938,966 820,196 30,718,254
- - 4,984,147 32,522,137 2,377,862 39,884,146
- - 2,571,882 14,972,244 274,952 17,819,078
- 16,034,433 43,270,877 - 34,971 59,340,281
2,615,864 12,916 - - - 2,628,780
- - - - 2,117 2,117
5121 - - - - 5121
- - - - 398,854 398,854
24,012,080 16,984,668 56,242,200 59,433,347 3,909,172 160,581,467
- - - 10,657,680 - 10,657,680
1,720,885 - - - - 1,720,885
19,946,030 - 339,346,189 1,090,461,955 178,787,166 1,628,541,340
202,422,912 - - - 11,369,571 213,792,483
106,441,113 - - - - 106,441,113
330,530,940 - 339,346,189 1,090,461,955 190,156,737 1,950,495,821
354,543,020 S 16,984,668 $ 395,588,389 $  1,160,552,982 194,065,909 S 2,111,077,288

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2020

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as assets in the governmental funds.
Non-Depreciable Assets S
Depreciable Assets

Internal Service funds are used by management to charge the costs of its self-insurance
programs and the print shop. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included
in governmental activities in the statement of net position, less furniture and equipment,
net of accumulated depreciation.
Total Assets - Internal Service Funds S
Less: Total Liabilities - Internal Service Funds
Less: Depreciable Assets Reported Above

Interest on long-term debt is accrued as a liability in the government-wide statements,
but is not recognized in the governmental funds until due, except for accrued interest
received as part of a debt issue.
Accrued Interest Payable - Government-Wide Statement of Net Position

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions are applicable to
future periods and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions S
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions

Deferred outflows of resources related to the deferred amount on refunding
are applicable to future periods and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Earned revenues not received within the availability period are reported as unavailable revenues
in the governmental funds, but are recorded as revenue in the government-wide statements.

Deferred outflows of resources related to accumulated fair value of hedging derivatives
are applicable to future periods and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to other post employment are applicable to
future periods and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.
Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB S
Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not

reported as liabilities in the governmental funds. Long-term liabilities at year-end consist of:
Bonds Payable S
Certificates of Participation Payable
Compensated Absences Payable
Hedging Derivative Instruments
Other Post Employment Benefits
Net Pension Liability

Total Net Position- Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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$  1,950,495,821

861,948,497
3,718,899,102
4,580,847,599

189,781,872
(98,347,377)
(6,226)
91,428,269

(17,054,706)

405,409,851
(83,230,742)
322,179,109

50,097,939
10,657,680
44,369,516
15,255,189
(4,342,123) 10,913,066
(572,000)
(1,101,976,781)
(130,124,266)
(44,369,516)

(58,851,299)

(1,128,084,763)

(2,463,978,625)

S 4,579,955,668



REVENUES
Federal Direct Sources:
Federal Direct
Reserve Officer Training Corps (ROTC)

Total Federal Direct

Federal Through State Sources:
Food Service
Other Federal Through State Sources

Total Federal through State

State Sources:
Florida Education Finance Program
Workforce Development
Categorical Programs
Food Service
CO&DS Withheld for SBE/COBI Bond
CO&DS Distribution
Public Education Capital Outlay
Other State Sources

Total State Sources

Local Sources:
Ad Valorem Taxes
Local Sales Taxes
Impact Fees
Food Service
Interest Income
Postsecondary Vocational Course Fees
Other Local Sources

Total Local Sources

Total Revenues

ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Other Federal Nonvoted Capital Other Capital
Programs- Improvement Projects - Nonmajor Total
General Special Revenue Section 1011.71(2), F.S. Capital Projects Gover | Gover |

Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
- S 3,759,403 S - S - S 1,700,435 S 5,459,838
1,388,816 - - - - 1,388,816
1,388,816 3,759,403 - - 1,700,435 6,848,654
- - - - 95,783,803 95,783,803
8,944,695 144,956,051 - - - 153,900,746
8,944,695 144,956,051 - - 95,783,803 249,684,549
612,939,614 - - - - 612,939,614
32,243,536 - - - - 32,243,536
252,932,022 - - - - 252,932,022
- - - - 1,355,290 1,355,290
- - - - 632,975 632,975
120,928 - - - 7,537,030 7,657,958
- - - 165,327 7,822,658 7,987,985
1,122,663 - - - - 1,122,663
899,358,763 - - 165,327 17,347,953 916,872,043
828,706,524 - 221,594,393 - - 1,050,300,917
- - - 253,965,180 - 253,965,180
- - - 65,864,685 - 65,864,685
- - - - 8,655,754 8,655,754
9,706,133 - 9,641,122 35,364,306 5,844,110 60,555,671
3,103,893 - - - - 3,103,893
29,334,969 - 65,660 8,657,120 8,020,872 46,078,621
870,851,519 - 231,301,175 363,851,291 22,520,736 1,488,524,721
1,780,543,793 S 148,715,454 S 231,301,175 S 364,016,618 S 137,352,927 S 2,661,929,967

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction
Student Support Services
Instructional Media Services
Instruction and Curriculum Development
Instructional Staff Training Services
Instructional Related Technology
Board
General Administration
School Administration
Facilities Acquisition & Construction
Fiscal Services
Food Services
Central Services
Student Transportation Services
Operation of Plant
Maintenance of Plant
Administrative Technology Services
Community Services
Capital Outlay:
Facilities Acquisition & Construction
Other Capital Outlay
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest and Fiscal Charges

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Face Value of Refunding Bonds
Premium on Refunding Bonds
Proceeds from the Sale of Capital Assets
Insurance Loss Recoveries
Transfer In
Transfer Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances, Beginning

Fund Balances, Ending

ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

(continued)

Other Federal Nonvoted Capital Other Capital
Programs- Improvement Projects - Nonmajor Total
General Special Revenue Section 1011.71(2), F.S. Capital Projects Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
1,162,823,870 S 61,749,924 S - S - S 504,136 S 1,225,077,930
73,030,610 16,795,700 - - 5,693 89,832,003
17,103,202 273,980 - - 50,797 17,427,979
67,348,793 30,093,189 - - 3,062 97,445,044
27,476,484 18,781,360 - - 65,187 46,323,031
12,100,954 275,112 - - 974 12,377,040
4,422,151 - - - - 4,422,151
8,665,251 5,730,687 - - 963 14,396,901
121,483,543 617,982 - - 164,022 122,265,547
9,928,405 - 5,265,400 56,889,903 262,237 72,345,945
7,577,956 90,362 - - 412 7,668,730
1,671,772 - - - 121,235,809 122,907,581
25,069,853 44,207 - - 60,248 25,174,308
65,087,805 9,132,860 - - 36,833 74,257,498
158,995,638 441,623 - - 9,019 159,446,280
35,606,156 - - - 11,352 35,617,508
43,739,788 - - - - 43,739,788
777,133 3,492,139 - - 5,163,074 9,432,346
236,414 - 79,769,124 299,872,322 13,523,774 393,401,634
4,000,673 1,196,329 - - 3,768,774 8,965,776
- - - - 44,795,225 44,795,225
- - - - 45,389,566 45,389,566
1,847,146,451 148,715,454 85,034,524 356,762,225 235,051,157 2,672,709,811
(66,602,658) - 146,266,651 7,254,393 (97,698,230) (10,779,844)
- - - - 572,000 572,000
- - - - 30,984 30,984
873,943 - - - - 873,943
65,478 - - - - 65,478
27,493,246 - - - 88,592,832 116,086,078
(16,868,727) - (108,263,414) - (7,822,664) (132,954,805)
11,563,940 - (108,263,414) - 81,373,152 (15,326,322)
(55,038,718) - 38,003,237 7,254,393 (16,325,078) (26,106,166)
385,569,658 - 301,342,952 1,083,207,562 206,481,815 1,976,601,987
330,530,940 $ - $ 339,346,189 S 1,090,461,955 S 190,156,737 $  1,950,495,821

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation
expense. This is the amount of capital outlays in excess of net loss on sale and depreciation
expense in the current period.

Capital Outlay net of amount not capitalized S 402,367,410
Net Loss on Sale (7,716,469)
Depreciation Expense (123,520,559)

Long-term debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but issuing debt
increase long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. Repayment of long-term debt is an
expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the
statement of net position. This is the net effect of these transactions.

Deferred charges associated with long-term debt issued in a prior period are reported in the
statement of activities, but are not a current financial resource and, therefore, are not reported
in the governmental funds. This is the net decrease in deferred charges during the current period.

Premiums and discounts on debt issued are reported in the governmental funds in the year the debt
is issued, but are deferred and amortized over the life of the debt in the statement of activities.

Interest on long-term debt is recognized in the governmental funds when due,
but is recognized as interest accrues in the statement of activities.

In the governmental funds, revenues cannot be recognized until they are available to pay liabilities of
the current period. In the statement of activities, revenue is recognized as soon as it is earned
regardless of its availability.

In the statement of activities, the cost of compensated absences is measured by the amounts
earned during the year, while in the governmental funds, expenditures are recognized based on
the amounts actually paid for compensated absences. This is the net amount of compensated absences
earned in excess of the amount paid in the current period.

In the statement of activities, the cost of other post-employment benefits is measured by the change
in the net OPEB obligation during the year, while in the governmental funds, expenditures
are recognized based on the amounts actually paid for the OPEB costs. This is the amount
paid in excess of the change in OPEB obligation in the current period.

In the statement of activities, the cost of pension benefits is measured by the increase in the
net pension liability during the year, while in the governmental funds, expenditures are recognized
based on the amounts actually paid for the pension expense. This is the amount of the change
in net pension liability in excess of the amount paid in the current period.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the cost of certain activities, such as
insurance to individual funds. The net revenue of internal service funds is reported
with governmental activities.

Change in Net Position - Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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S (26,106,166)

271,130,382

44,823,225

(4,526,991)

8,634,982

483,935

10,657,680

(13,228,738)

(3,411,734)

(128,493,856)

(1,983,594)

S 157,979,125



REVENUES
Federal Direct Sources:
Reserve Officer Training Corps (ROTC)

Total Federal Direct

Federal Through State Sources:
Medicaid

Total Federal through State

State Sources:
Florida Education Finance Program
Workforce Development
Categorical Programs
CO&DS Withheld for SBE/COBI Bond
Other State Sources

Total State Sources

Local Sources:
Ad Valorem Taxes
Interest Income
Postsecondary Vocational Course Fees
Other Local Sources

Total Local Sources
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current:
Instruction
Student Support Services
Instructional Media Services
Instruction and Curriculum Development
Instructional Staff Training Services
Instructional Related Technology
Board
General Administration
School Administration
Facilities Acquisition & Construction
Fiscal Services
Food Services
Central Services
Student Transportation Services
Operation of Plant
Maintenance of Plant
Administrative Technology Services
Community Services

Capital Outlay:

Facilities Acquisition & Construction
Other Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCIAL SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets
Loss Recoveries
Transfer In
Transfer Out

Total Other Financial Sources

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance, Beginning

Fund Balance, Ending

ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

General Fund

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget -

Original Final Actual Amounts Positive (Negative)
$ 1,491,848 $ 1,491,848 1,388,816 (103,032)
1,491,848 1,491,848 1,388,816 (103,032)
9,660,044 9,660,044 8,944,695 (715,349)
9,660,044 9,660,044 8,944,695 (715,349)
667,962,099 667,962,099 612,939,614 (55,022,485)
31,942,536 31,942,536 32,243,536 301,000
241,145,344 241,145,344 252,932,022 11,786,678
115,641 115,641 120,928 5,287
1,148,023 1,148,023 1,122,663 (25,360)
942,313,643 942,313,643 899,358,763 (42,954,880)
840,290,043 840,290,043 828,706,524 (11,583,519)
8,855,000 8,855,000 9,706,133 851,133
3,616,295 3,616,295 3,103,893 (512,402)
18,866,925 18,866,925 29,334,969 10,468,044
871,628,263 871,628,263 870,851,519 (776,744)
1,825,093,798 1,825,093,798 1,780,543,793 (44,550,005)
1,234,205,963 1,208,573,393 1,162,823,870 45,749,523
59,804,953 74,105,394 73,030,610 1,074,784
16,988,074 17,338,325 17,103,202 235,123
75,284,101 76,901,516 67,348,793 9,552,723
26,073,053 27,736,376 27,476,484 259,892
23,603,998 23,844,353 12,100,954 11,743,399
4,726,028 4,804,802 4,422,151 382,651
9,603,253 9,871,387 8,665,251 1,206,136
125,520,085 128,385,981 121,483,543 6,902,438
9,265,672 10,265,672 9,928,405 337,267
8,681,582 8,846,645 7,577,956 1,268,689

- 1,671,772 1,671,772 -
21,799,178 25,164,268 25,069,853 94,415
66,988,919 68,402,767 65,087,805 3,314,962
134,616,375 159,208,802 158,995,638 213,164
39,443,519 39,919,302 35,606,156 4,313,146
49,732,068 49,923,822 43,739,788 6,184,034
318,153 1,318,153 777,133 541,020

- 236,414 236,414 -

- 4,000,673 4,000,673 -
1,906,654,974 1,940,519,817 1,847,146,451 93,373,366
(81,561,176) (115,426,019) (66,602,658) 48,823,361
900,000 900,000 873,943 (26,057)
- - 65,478 65,478
20,167,533 20,167,533 27,493,246 7,325,713

- (16,868,727) (16,868,727) -
21,067,533 4,198,806 11,563,940 7,365,134
(60,493,643) (111,227,213) (55,038,718) 56,188,495

385,569,658 385,569,658 385,569,658 -
$ 325,076,015 S 274,342,445 330,530,940 56,188,495

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2020

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash
Investments
Restricted Investments
Accounts Receivable
Deposits Receivable
Inventories
Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets:
Furniture and Equipment
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Unearned Revenue

Estimated Unpaid Claims

Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities:

Estimated Insurance Claims Payable

Total Liabilities
NET POSITION
Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Governmental
Activities -
Internal Service
Funds

S 37,455,106
144,306,026
3,971,495
3,822,457
187,185

33,377

189,775,646

70,484
(64,258)

6,226

189,781,872

3,265,054
61,144,596
25,924,823

90,334,473

8,012,904

98,347,377

6,226
3,971,495
87,456,774

S 91,434,495

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND

CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services
Premium Revenues
Other Operating Revenues

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries
Employees Benefits
Purchased Services
Energy Services
Material and Supplies
Claims Expenses
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Loss

NONOPERATING REVENUES
Miscellaneous Income

Total Nonoperating Revenues, Net
Transfer In From Other Funds
Total Transfers In
Change in Net Position
Total Net Position, Beginning

Total Net Position, Ending

Governmental
Activities -
Internal Service

Funds

$

3,509,873
233,541,384
193,223

237,244,480

903,218
449,802
11,732,357
42,024
157,390
247,220,760
3,390

260,508,941

(23,264,461)

4,407,360

4,407,360

16,868,727

16,868,727

(1,988,374)

93,422,869

91,434,495

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.



ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Governmental
Activities -
Internal Service
Fund
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Interfund Services Provided S 235,503,148
Payments to Suppliers of Goods or Services (247,248,656)
Payments to Employees (1,391,503)
Other Operating Cash Receipts 193,223
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (12,943,788)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments Received from Other Funds 16,868,727
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities 16,868,727
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment Earnings 4,331,639
Purchase of Investments (20,451,873)
Miscellaneous Income 77,111
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (16,043,123)
Net Decrease in Cash (12,118,184)
Cash, Beginning of Year 49,573,290
Cash, End of Year S 37,455,106

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash
Used by Operating Activities:
Operating Loss S (23,264,461)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Net Cash
Used in Operating Activities:

Depreciation 3,390
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Accounts Receivable (1,548,109)
Inventory (6,242)
Accounts Payable 320,303
Salaries and Benefits Payable (38,483)
Unearned Revenues 9,044,640
Estimated Unpaid Claims 2,545,174
Total Adjustments 10,320,673
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities S (12,943,788)

Noncash Investing Activities
Net Increase in the Fair Value of Investments S 1,394,421

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
June 30, 2020

Agency Funds

Student and Club
Activities Funds

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents S 12,547,498
Investments 3,238,185
Accounts Receivable, Net 232,177
Inventory 160,835
Total Assets S 16,178,695
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable S 333,527
Internal Accounts Payable 15,845,168
Total Liabilities S 16,178,695

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2020

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Reporting Entity

Orange County Public Schools (the “District”) has direct responsibility for operation, control, and supervision of District
schools and is considered a primary government for financial reporting. The District is considered part of the Florida
system of public education.

The governing body of the District is the Orange County District School Board (the “Board”) that is composed of eight
elected members, seven board members elected by district and one Board Chairman elected at large. The appointed
Superintendent of Schools (Superintendent) is the executive officer of the Board. Geographic boundaries of the District
correspond with those of Orange County.

Pursuant to Section 1001.51(11)(d), Florida Statutes, the Superintendent is responsible for keeping records and
accounts of all financial transactions in the manner prescribed by the Florida State Board of Education.

Criteria for determining if other entities are potential component units that should be reported within the District's
basic financial statements are identified and described in the Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s (GASB)
Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, Sections 2100 and 2600. The application
of these criteria provides for identification of any legally separate entities for which the Board is financially accountable
and other organizations that the nature and significance of their relationship with the Board are such that exclusion
would cause the District’s basic financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP), these basic financial statements
present the District (the primary government) and its component units. The component units discussed below are
included in the District’s reporting entity because of the significance of their operational or financial relationships with
the District.

Blended Component Units - The District’s employee group health and life insurance program, described in a
subsequent note, is administered through the School Board of Orange County Employee Benefits Trust (Trust). Assets
necessary to fund the program are transferred to the Trust; however, under the terms of the Trust Agreement, the
School Board retains control of the assets. Due to the substantive economic relationship between the District and the
Trust, the financial activities of the Trust are reported in the accompanying basic financial statements as an internal
service fund.

The Orange County School Board Leasing Corporation (Leasing Corporation) was formed to facilitate financing for the
acquisition of facilities and equipment as further discussed in a subsequent note. The Board of Directors of the Leasing
Corporation are members of the Board who elect to serve as ex-officio Directors. Due to the substantive economic
relationship between the District and the Leasing Corporation, the financial activities of the Leasing Corporation are
included in the accompanying basic financial statements as part of debt service and capital projects funds. Separate
financial statements for the Leasing Corporation are not published.

Discretely Presented Component Unit - The component unit column in the government-wide financial statements
includes the financial data of the District’s other component unit. The Foundation for Orange County Public Schools,
Inc. (the Foundation) is a separate not-for-profit corporation organized and operated as a direct-support organization
under Section 1001.453, Florida Statutes, to raise funds; receive, hold, invest and administer property and to make
expenditures for the benefit of the District. Section 1001.453, Florida Statutes, requires the Foundation to be authorized
and approved by the District. The stated mission of the Foundation is to identify, develop and focus community
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resources to make a meaningful impact on the success of students and teachers of Orange County Public Schools.
Because of the nature and significance of its relationship with the District, the Foundation is considered a component
unit.

The audit of the financial statements of the Foundation for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 was conducted by an
independent certified public accountant whose audit report is filed in the District’s administrative office at 445 West
Amelia Street, Orlando, Florida 32801.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. The basis
of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial
statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurement made, regardless of the measurement focus
applied.

Government-wide Financial Statements - The government-wide financial statements are prepared under the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses
are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash transaction takes place.
Nonexchange transactions, in which the District gives or receives value without directly receiving or giving value in
exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property
taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements and donations
is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities present financial information about the District’s
governmental activities. These statements include the financial activities of the government in its entirety, except for
those that are fiduciary. Governmental activities, which generally are supported by taxes and inter-governmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which are generally supported by fees charged. The
District currently does not have any business-type activities.

The Statement of Net Position includes all assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred inflows of the District. The
Statement of Activities presents a comparison between the direct expenses and program revenues for each function
or program of the District’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a
program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Depreciation expenses associated
with the District’s transportation and maintenance departments are allocated to the transportation and maintenance
of plant functions, while remaining depreciation expenses are not readily associated with a particular function and are
reported as unallocated.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges for services provided to students for tuition, fees, rental,
material, supplies, or other services, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions.
Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues. The
comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each governmental function is
self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the District.

The District eliminates from the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities most interfund receivables
and payables and transfers between funds as well as the transactions associated with its Internal Service Funds.

Fund Financial Statements - The Governmental Fund Financial Statements are prepared utilizing the current financial
resource measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized in the accounting
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period in which they become susceptible to accrual, that is, both measurable and available. “Measurable” means the
amount of the transaction can be determined and “available” means collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Significant revenues “susceptible to accrual”
include ad valorem taxes, reimbursable-type grants and interest on investments. The District considers revenues from
ad valorem taxes as available if they are collected within 60 days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when the
fund liability is incurred, which exclude unmatured principal and interest on general long-term debt and accumulated
sick and vacation pay, OPEB, claims and judgements and certain prepaid items, which are recognized when due/paid.
In applying the “susceptible to accrual” concept to revenues from federal and state sources, the legal contractual
requirements of the numerous individual programs are used as guidance. There are, however, essentially two types of
revenues. In one type, monies must be expended for the specific purpose or project before the District will receive any
amounts; therefore, revenues are recognized based upon the occurrence of the expenditure. In the other type, monies
are virtually unrestricted as to purpose of expenditure and are usually revocable only for failure to comply with
prescribed legal and contractual requirements. These resources are reflected as revenues at the time of receipt or
earlier if the “susceptible to accrual” criteria are met. In all cases, monies received before the revenue recognition
criteria have been met are reported as unearned revenue.

The Agency (Fiduciary) funds are purely custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and, as such, do not have a
measurement focus. Agency funds use the accrual basis of accounting to recognize receivables and payables.

The Proprietary Fund Financial Statements are prepared under the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary
fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the District’s internal service funds are for self-
insurance (property, casualty, liability, and worker’s compensation), employee benefits (health and prescription), and
printing provided to other funds. Operating expenses for the internal service funds include salaries, employee benefits,
purchased services, energy services, materials and supplies, claims expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

The fund statements provide information about the District’s funds, including fiduciary funds. Separate statements for
each fund category — governmental, proprietary and fiduciary — are presented. The emphasis of fund financial
statements is on major funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental funds are aggregated
and reported as nonmajor funds. The District reports the following major funds:

General Fund - to account for all financial resources not required to be accounted for in another fund, and for certain
revenues from the State that are legally restricted to be expended for specific current operating purposes. The
General Fund is the District’s primary operating fund.

Special Revenue — Other Federal Programs - to account for funds from the State or Federal Government which are
restricted for Federal programs.

Capital Projects — Capital Improvement Tax Fund — to account for the financial resources generated by Section
1011.71(2), Florida Statutes local capital improvement taxes (property taxes) and other local sources to be used
for educational capital outlay needs, including new construction, renovation and remodeling projects and debt
service payments.
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Capital Projects - Other Capital Projects Fund - to account for the financial resources generated by certificates of
participation, impact fees, lottery, sales tax and other local sources to be used for educational capital outlay needs,
including new construction, renovation and remodeling projects and debt service payments.

Additionally, the District reports the following non-major fund types:

Special Revenue Funds - to account for the financial resources of the school food service program, certain grant
program resources, the extended day childcare program, and other such restricted resources.

Debt Service Funds - to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt
principal, interest, and related debt issuance costs.

Capital Projects Funds - to account for financial resources generated from allocations of state revenues that are to be
used for educational capital outlay needs, including new construction, renovation and remodeling projects.

Internal Service Funds - to account for the District's limited self-insurance programs and printing service operations.

Agency Funds - to account for resources of the school internal funds that are used to administer moneys collected at
all schools in connection with school, student athletic, class, and club activities.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use restricted
resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Budgetary Information

The Board follows procedures established by State statutes and State Board of Education rules in establishing budget
balances for governmental funds as described below:

- Annually, budgets are prepared, public hearings are held, and original budgets are adopted for all
governmental fund types in accordance with procedures and time intervals prescribed by State Statutes and
State Board of Education rules.

- Appropriations are controlled at the function level (e.g., instruction, pupil personnel services, and school
administration) and may be amended by resolution at any Board meeting prior to the due date for the annual
financial report.

- Budgets are prepared using the same modified accrual basis as is used to account for governmental funds.

- Budgetary information is integrated into the accounting system and, to facilitate budget control, budget
balances are encumbered when purchase orders are issued. Appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end and

encumbrances outstanding are honored from the subsequent year’s appropriations.

- The reported budgetary data consists of the original budget as well as the final appropriated budget after
amendments are approved by the Board.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash deposits are held in banks that qualify as public depositories under Florida law. All deposits are insured by Federal
depository insurance and/or collateralized with securities held in Florida’s multiple financial institution collateral pool
required by Sections 280.07 and 280.08, Florida Statutes. For the Internal Service Funds, the statement of cash flows
considers cash as those accounts used as demand deposit accounts.

Cash balances from all funds are combined and invested to the extent available. Earnings are allocated monthly to each
fund based on a rolling 2-month average balance of cash and investments.

Investments and Restricted Investments

Investments consist of amounts placed with various intergovernmental investment pools which hold a majority of U.S.
government securities, municipal securities and repurchase agreements. The investment earnings are allocated to each
fund based on a rolling two-month average investment balance in that fund. Investments also consist of the State of
Florida’s Special Purpose Investment Account (SPIA) authorized in Section 17.61(1), Florida Statutes, Florida PRIME,
Florida Public Assets for Liquidity Management (FL PALM), formerly known as the Florida Education Investment Trust
Fund, corporate bonds, municipal bonds, commercial paper, and United States instrumentality securities. The District’s
investment in SPIA is part of an investment pool managed by the Florida Department of Treasury, where the District
owns a share of the pool, not the underlying shares of the assets in the pool. The District relies on policies developed
by the State Treasury for managing interest and credit risk for this external investment pool.

Investments are valued at fair value, amortized cost, or net asset value, as applicable. The types and amounts of
investments held at fiscal year-end are described in a subsequent note on investments.

Restricted investments consist of $44,177,989 restricted for the repayment of certificates of participation principal and
interest, and $3,971,495 pledged to cover certain workers compensation claims.

Inventories

Inventories consist of expendable supplies held for consumption in the course of District operations. Transportation,
custodial, and school supply inventories are stated at cost on a weighted average basis. Food service inventories are
stated at cost on the last invoice basis, which approximates the first-in, first-out basis, except that United States
Department of Agriculture donated foods are stated at their fair value as determined at the time of donation to the
District’s food service program by the Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, Bureau of Food
Distribution. The costs of inventories are recorded as expenditures when used rather than purchased.

Capital Assets and Depreciation

Expenditures for capital assets acquired or constructed for general District purposes are reported in the governmental
fund that financed the acquisition or construction. The capital assets acquired are reported at cost in the government-
wide statement of net position, but are not reported in the governmental fund financial statements. Capital assets are
defined by the District as those costing more than $1,000 for furniture, fixtures and equipment; motor vehicles; audio
visual materials; computer software; $50,000 for improvements other than buildings; buildings and fixed equipment;
and construction in progress and which have an estimated life of one or more years. All land purchases are capital
assets regardless of cost. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation.
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The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the values of the assets or materially extend assets
lives are not capitalized and are expensed as incurred. Interest costs incurred during construction of capital assets are
not considered material and are not capitalized as part of the cost of construction.

Capital assets of the primary government, excluding land and construction in progress, are depreciated using the
straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Description Estimated Lives
Improvements other than buildings 15 years
Buildings and fixed equipment 40 years
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 5-15years
Motor Vehicles 5-10years
Audio visual materials and computer software 5 years

Current-year information relative to changes in capital assets is described in a subsequent note.
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial net position reports a separate section for deferred outflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net
position that applies to a future period(s), and therefore, will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until that time. The District has four items that qualify for reporting in this category. The
deferred outflows of resources related to pension, OPEB and the fair value of derivative instruments are discussed in
subsequent notes. A deferred amount on refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of the refunded
debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or
refunding debt.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial net position reports a separate section for deferred inflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net
position that applies to a future period(s), and therefore, will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue)
until that time. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues, which arise only under modified accrual basis of
accounting. These amounts are deferred and recognized as inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become
available. The governmental activities report deferred inflows related to pension and OPEB, which are discussed in
subsequent notes.

Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue consists primarily of health insurance premiums collected from employees during the fiscal year for
the coverage period extending through the plan year end of September 30.

Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term obligations that will be financed from resources to be received in the future by governmental funds are
reported as liabilities in the government-wide statement of net position. Debt premiums and discounts, as well as
deferred amounts on refunding, are deferred and amortized over the life of the debt using the effective interest
method. Debt is reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount and deferred amounts on refunding.
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In the governmental fund financial statements, bonds and other long-term obligations are not recognized as liabilities
until due. Governmental fund types recognize debt premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs and deferred
amounts on refunding, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing source
while discounts on debt issuances and deferred amounts on refunding are reported as other financing uses. Issuance
costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

In the government-wide financial statements, compensated absences (i.e., paid absences for employee vacation leave
and sick leave) are accrued as liabilities to the extent that it is probable that the benefits will result in termination
payments. A liability is reported in the governmental fund financial statements only for the portion due and payable at
year-end.

OPEB is reported in the government-wide financial statements. The District subsidizes the premium rates paid by Non-
Medicare eligible retirees by allowing them to participate in the health plan at the blended group premium rates for
both active and retired employees. OPEB is recorded by the District for the implicit subsidy for Non-Medicare eligible
retirees because, on an actuarial basis, their current and future claims are expected to result in higher costs to the
District than those of active employees. The District funds OPEB on a pay-as-you-go basis.

The District makes healthcare available but no longer pays any portion of the healthcare benefits for Medicare eligible
retirees. As a result, no health care experience for this group, whether favorable or unfavorable, would reflect on the
cost of insurance to the District. Additional information on OPEB is described in a subsequent note.

In the government-wide statement of net position, pension liabilities are recognized for the District’s proportionate
share of each pension plan’s net pension liability. For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension, and pension expense, information about the
fiduciary net position of the Florida Retirement System (FRS) defined benefit plan and the Health Insurance Subsidy
(HIS) defined benefit plan and additions to/deductions from the FRS’s and the HIS’s fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by the FRS and HIS plans. For this purpose, benefit payments
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value.

Changes in long-term debt for the current year are reported in a subsequent note.
Fund Balance Flow Assumptions

Sometimes the District will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and unrestricted sources (the
total of restricted, assigned, and unassigned fund balance). In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted,
assigned, and unassigned fund balance in the governmental fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made
about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the District’s procedure to consider restricted
fund balance to have been depleted before using any of the components of unassigned fund balance. Further, when
the components of unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same purpose, assigned fund balance is depleted
first, followed by unassigned fund balance.

Fund Balance Policies

Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature of any limitations requiring
the use of resources for specific purposes. The government itself can establish limitations on the use of resources
through either a commitment (committed fund balance) or an assignment (assigned fund balance). The Board does not
have a policy regarding the commitment or assignment of fund balances; however, by resolution, the Board has given
the ability to assign fund balance to the Superintendent and the Chief Financial Officer. The District does not have
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commitments imposed by formal action of its highest level of decision-making authority and, as such, the District does
not report any committed fund balance.

Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the government for specific purposes.
The District also assigns fund balance when appropriating fund balance to cover a gap between estimated revenue and
appropriations in the subsequent year’s appropriated budget.

State Revenue Sources

Revenues from State sources for current operations are primarily from the Florida Education Finance Program
administered by the Florida Department of Education (the Department) under the provisions of Section 1011.62, Florida
Statutes. In accordance with this law, the District determines and reports the number of full-time equivalent (FTE)
students and related data to the Department. The Department performs certain edit checks on the reported number
of FTE and related data, and calculates the allocation of funds to the District. The District is permitted to amend its
original reporting for a period of 5 months following the date of the original reporting. Such amendments may impact
funding allocations for subsequent years. The Department may also adjust subsequent fiscal period allocations based
upon an audit of the District's compliance in determining and reporting FTE and related data. Normally, such
adjustments are treated as reductions or additions of revenue in the year when the adjustments are made.

The State of Florida (the State) provides financial assistance to administer certain categorical educational programs.
State Board of Education rules require that revenue earmarked for certain programs be expended only for the program
that the money is provided, and require that the money not expended as of the close of the fiscal year be carried
forward into the following year to be expended for the same categorical educational programs. The Department
generally requires that categorical educational program revenues be accounted for in the General Fund. A portion of
the fund balance of the General Fund is restricted in the governmental funds financial statements for the balance of
categorical educational program resources.

The State allocates gross receipts taxes, generally known as Public Education Capital Outlay money and School
Hardening grants, to the District on an annual basis. The District is authorized to expend these funds only upon applying
for and receiving an encumbrance authorization from the Department.

A schedule of revenue from State sources for the current year is presented in a subsequent note.
District Property Taxes

The Board is authorized by State law to levy property taxes for district school operations, capital improvements, and
debt service. Property taxes consist of ad valorem taxes on real and personal property within the District. The Orange
County Property Appraiser determines the real and personal property values within the District. The Orange County
Tax Collector then collects the taxes and remits them to the District.

The Board adopted the fiscal year 2019-20 tax levy on September 10, 2019. Property values are assessed as of January
1 each year. Tax bills are mailed in October and taxes are payable between November 1 of the year assessed and March
31 of the following year at discounts of up to 4% for early payment.

Taxes become a lien on the property on January 1 and are delinquent on April 1 of the year following the year of
assessment. State law provides for enforcement of collection of personal property taxes by seizure of the property to
satisfy unpaid taxes, and for enforcement of collection of real property taxes by the sale of interest-bearing tax
certificates to satisfy unpaid taxes. The procedures result in the collection of essentially all taxes prior to June 30 of the
year following the year of assessment.
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Property tax revenues are recognized in the government-wide financial statements when the Board adopts the tax levy.
Property tax revenues are recognized in the governmental fund financial statements when the District receives taxes,
except the revenue that is accrued for taxes collected by the Orange County Tax Collector at fiscal year-end but not yet
remitted to the District. Because any delinquent taxes collected after June 30 would not be material, delinquent taxes
receivable are not accrued and no delinquent tax revenue deferral is recorded.

Millages and taxes levied for the current year are presented in a subsequent note.

Federal Revenue Sources

The District receives Federal awards for the enhancement of various educational programs. Federal awards are
generally received based on applications submitted to, and approved by, various granting agencies. For Federal awards
for which a claim to these grant proceeds is based on incurring eligible expenditures, revenue is recognized to the

extent that eligible expenditures have been incurred.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States (GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the financial statement date and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses or expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Principles

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements with Potential Future Impact-Not Yet Adopted

The GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. The objective of this Statement is to improve guidance regarding
the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those activities should
be reported. This Statement is effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. Management is
currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this Statement on the District’s financial statements.

The GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments’ financial
statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as
operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of
the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are
financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability
and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow
of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities.
This Statement is effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2020. Management is currently
evaluating the impact of the adoption of this Statement on the District’s financial statements.
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2. Deposits and Investments

The District’s investments at June 30, 2020, are reported as follows:

Fair Value Measurements

Investments measured at fair value Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
U.S. Government Agencies S 341,402,836 S - S 341,402,836 S
Corporate bonds 32,771,643 - 32,771,643

Municipal bonds 29,649,144 - 29,649,144

Total investments measured at fair value 403,823,623 S - S 403,823,623 S

Investments measured at net asset value (NAV):

FL Special Purpose Investment Account (SPIA) 549,587,090
Florida Public Assets for Liquidity Management (Term) 35,000,000
Total investments measured at NAV 584,587,090

Investments measured at amortized cost:

Florida Prime 481,550,725
Florida Public Assets for Liquidity Management (Portfolio) 243,949,107
Florida Safe 50,073,843
Money Market 3,971,495
Certificate of Deposits 10,000,000
Commercial Paper 10,232
Total investments measured at amortized cost 789,555,402

Total Investments, Primary Government S 1,777,966,115

The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted
accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level
1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets, level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs,
and level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. The District’s recurring fair value measurements are valued using
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets (level 2 inputs).

Certain investments are measured at fair value using the net asset value per share (or its equivalent) practical expedient
or amortized cost, which approximates fair value. These amounts have not been classified in the fair value hierarchy.
The District invests in these types of investments to obtain competitive market returns while ensuring the safety and
liquidity of the portfolio. These types of investments may be redeemed without advance notice and there are no
unfunded commitments for further investment. There are currently no limitations as to the frequency of redemptions;
however, Florida PRIME has the ability to impose restrictions on withdrawals should a material event occur. Detailed
information on the withdrawal restrictions that may be imposed and Florida PRIME’s responsibilities should such an
event occur is described in Section 218.409(8)(a), Florida Statutes.

Interest Rate Risk

District policies limit the maturity of investments to a 5 year weighted average life as a means of limiting its exposure
to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates. Also, at least 3 months of average disbursements should be invested
in highly liquid funds with a maturity range of 0-90 days.

The District has $371,051,980 in obligations of the United States Government Sponsored Agencies/Federal

Instrumentalities and Municipal Bonds and $32,771,643 in Corporate Bonds. These securities include embedded
options to call the entire security or a portion thereof, at the option of the issuer; or, depending on market conditions,
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the issuer may decide to leave the security intact, at the stated interest rate, until final maturity. These securities have

various call dates with final maturity dates being December 2028.

At June 30, 2020, the District’s investments had the following maturities:

Investment Maturities

Less Than

Investment FairValue 6 Months 1Year

2 Years

5Years

After

FLSpecial Purpose Investment

Account (SPIA) S 549,587,090 S - S S S 549,587,090 S
FL Prime 481,550,725 481,550,725
Florida Public Assets for Liquidity Management 278,949,107 278,949,107
Florida Safe 50,073,843 50,073,843
Money Market 3,971,495 3,971,495
Certificates of Deposit 10,000,000 10,000,000
Commercial Paper 10,232 10,232
Corporate Bonds 32,771,643 10,043,530 10,109,770 7,752,638 4,865,705
Obligations of United States Government
Agencies and Instrumentalities 341,402,836 19,405,379 7,784,455 44,967,457 119,501,849 149,743,696
Municipal Bonds 29,649,144 5,250,000 2,032,580 15,035,095 7,331,469 -
Total Investments, Reporting Entity S 1,777,966,115 S 859,254,311 S 19,926,805 S 67,755,190 S 681,286,113 S 149,743,696
Credit Risk

Investments authorized by District policy are:

Direct Obligations of US Treasury;

U.S. Government Sponsored Agencies or Federal Instrumentalities;
Investment in the Florida Prime Fund;

Investment in the Florida Special Purpose Investment Account;
Investment in the Florida Education Investment Trust Fund;
Certificates of Deposit and Savings Accounts;

Repurchase Agreements;

State and/or Local Government Taxable or Tax-Exempt Debt;
Corporate Bonds;

j. Commercial Paper;

k. Money Market Funds and other local government investment pools.

Sm o op oo

Section 218.415(18), Florida Statutes, requires the District to earmark all investments and 1) if registered with the issuer
or its agents, the investment must be immediately placed for safekeeping in a location that protects the governing
body’s interest in the security; 2) if in a book entry form, the investment must be held for the credit of the governing
body by a depository chartered by the Federal Government, the State, or any other State or territory of the United
States which has a branch or principal place of business in this State, or by a national association organized and existing
under the laws of the United States which is authorized to accept and execute trusts and which is doing business in this
State, and must be kept by the depository in an account separate and apart from the assets of the financial institution;
or 3) if physically issued to the holder but not registered with the issuer or its agents, must be immediately placed for
safekeeping in a secured vault. The District’s $371,051,980 investments in obligations of Municipalities and United
States Government Agencies and Instrumentalities and $32,771,643 in Corporate Bonds are held by the safekeeping

agent, in the name of the District.
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Concentration of Credit Risk

Composition of investment portfolio is limited by District policy to:

A. Direct Obligations of the U. S Treasury 100%
B. U.S. Government Sponsored Agencies (Federal Instrumentalities) 80%
C. Florida Prime Fund 100%
D. Florida Special Purpose Investment Account 100%
E. Florida Education Investment Trust Fund 100%
F. Certificates of Deposit and Savings Accounts 100%
G. Repurchase Agreements, fully collateralized by Direct Obligations of U. S.

Government Securities 30%
H. State and/or Local Govt. Taxable or Tax-Exempt Debt 20%
.  Corporate Bonds 20%
J.  Commercial Paper 30%
K. Money Market Funds and other local government investment pools 100%

As of June 30, 2020, the District investments in the State of Florida Special Purpose Investment Account (SPIA) totaled
$549,587,090, which is rated AA-f by S&P with an effective duration of 0.43 years. These funds allocate investment
earnings monthly.

As of June 30, 2020, the District investments in the Florida Prime totaled $481,550,725 which is rated AAAm by S&P
and has a weighted average life of 76 days. These funds allocate investment earnings monthly.

As of June 30, 2020, the District investments in the Florida Public Assets for Liquidity Management totaled
$278,949,107. These funds are rated AAAm by S&P and have a weighted average maturity of 53 days.

As of June 30, 2020, the District investments in Florida Safe totaled $50,073,843. These funds are rated AAAm by S&P
and have a weighted average maturity of 41 days.

As of June 30, 2020, the District investments in commercial paper were $10,232. These funds are rated Al, P1, as
required by the District’s investment policy. The District holds these funds under a trust indenture in connection with
several Certificates of Participation Series.

As of June 30, 2020, the District investments in corporate bonds were $32,771,643, all of which were rated A or higher.

All District investments are in compliance with District policy in relation to interest rate risk, credit risk, and
concentration of credit risk.
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3. Receivables

The majority of receivables are due from other agencies. These receivables and the remaining accounts receivable are
considered to be fully collectible. As such, no allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable is accrued.

The following is a schedule of due from other agencies at June 30, 2020:

General Fund:
Orange County Tax Collector
Unremitted Property Taxes S 16,427,397
Miscellaneous State Agencies 4,203,121
Capital Improvement Tax Fund:
Orange County Tax Collector
Unremitted Property Taxes 4,391,700
Other Capital Projects Fund:
State of Florida - Department of Revenue

Unremitted Sales Tax Collections 14,865,307
Orange County Board of County Commissioners

Unremitted Impact Fee Collections 6,359,805
Florida Department of Education

PECO Safety and Security 10,657,680
Miscellaneous Cities Impact Fee Collections 5,383,497
Miscellaneous Agencies 869,681

Other Federal Programs Fund:

Federal Grant Reimbursements 16,984,668

Nonmajor Governmental Funds:
Capital Projects CO&DS Fund:
Florida Department of Education
CO&DS 15,534
Special Revenue Funds:
Food Service Fund:
Florida Department of Education
Meal Reimbursements 9,254,441
Total Due From Other Agencies S 89,412,831
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4. Changes in Capital Assets

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2020 is as follows:

Primary Government

Governmental Activities

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:
Land
Construction in Progress

Total Capital Assets Not Being
Depreciated

Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
Improvements Other Than Buildings
Buildings and Fixed Equipment
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment
Motor Vehicles
Audio-Visual Materials
Computer Software

Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated

Less Accumulated Depreciation For:
Improvements Other Than Buildings
Buildings and Fixed Equipment
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment
Motor Vehicles
Audio-Visual Materials
Computer Software

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated, net

Governmental Activities Capital
Capital Assets, net

All depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Pupil Transportation Services S

Maintenance
Unallocated

Total Depreciation Expense

Balance Balance

June 30,2019 Additions Deletions June 30, 2020
360,238,950 S 2,641,122 S - S 362,880,072
222,135,942 352,549,104 75,616,621 499,068,425
582,374,892 355,190,226 75,616,621 861,948,497
45,298,296 12,560,423 - 57,858,719
4,568,993,378 75,616,621 12,545,507 4,632,064,492
202,845,517 19,797,264 16,918,384 205,724,397
145,811,926 14,819,497 15,725,976 144,905,447

4,241 - 4,241 -
6,953,494 - 215,817 6,737,677
4,969,906,852 122,793,805 45,409,925 5,047,290,732
(20,875,177) (2,979,053) - (23,854,230)
(1,015,707,823) (86,938,867) (7,251,767) (1,095,394,923)
(122,588,938) (22,102,605) (14,707,144) (129,984,399)
(80,023,926) (11,167,775) (15,526,684) (75,665,017)

(4,241) - (4,241) -
(3,364,422) (332,259) (203,620) (3,493,061)
(1,242,564,527) (123,520,559) (37,693,456) (1,328,391,630)
3,727,342,325 (726,754) 7,716,469 3,718,899,102
4,309,717,217 S 354,463,472 S 83,333,090 S  4,580,847,599

10,608,889

971,593
111,940,077

$§ 123,520,559
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The District entered into a master financing arrangement on May 1, 1997, which was characterized as a lease-purchase
agreement, with the Orange County School Board Leasing Corporation (Leasing Corporation) whereby the District
secured financing of various educational facilities, vehicles, and equipment. The financing was accomplished through
the issuance of Certificates of Participation (COPs). Those issuances that were offered for public sale are distinguished
from direct borrowings below:

(1)
(2)
(3)

(4)

(5)
(6)
(7)

Amount Amount Interest Rates Lease Term
Series Issued Outstanding (Percent) (17) Maturity (18)
COPs:
2008B (1) 105,000,000 S 105,000,000 Synthetic 4.412 2033
2008E (2) 51,020,000 12,090,000 Synthetic 5.112 2023
2009B-QSCB (3) 35,820,000 35,820,000 1.15 2025
2010A-QSCB (4) 36,229,000 36,229,000 None 2030
2013A (5) 19,290,000 10,465,000 4.00-5.00 2026
2014A (6) 63,840,000 1,810,000 5.00 2025
2015C (9) 132,340,000 132,340,000 5.00 2032
2015D (10) 114,170,000 104,395,000 5.00 2033
20168 (12) 36,785,000 36,250,000 2.00-5.00 2028
2016C (13) 182,355,000 182,355,000 5.00 2035
2017B (15) 71,080,000 71,080,000 5.00 2028
2017C (16) 59,035,000 59,035,000 5.00 2030
Subtotal 786,869,000
COPs from Direct Borrowings of Debt:
2015A (7) 107,420,000 58,785,000 2.88 2023
20158 (8) 59,325,000 57,145,000 2.71 2026
2016A (11) 108,155,000 86,975,000 2.23 2025
2017A (14) 37,566,829 31,236,312 1.95 2026
Subtotal 234,141,312
Total Certificates of Participation S 1,021,010,312

On April 11, 2008 the Leasing Corporation issued COPs Series 2008B to advance refund COPs Series 2007B.

On September 8, 2008 the Leasing Corporation issued COPs Series 2008E to advance refund COPs Series 2007C.
On November 24, 2009, the Leasing Corporation issued COPs Series 2009B-Qualifed School Construction Bond
(QSCB). The proceeds from the issue will be used for comprehensive updates for one middle school.

On November 15, 2010, the Leasing Corporation issued COPs Series 2010A-Qualified School Construction Bond
(QSCB). The proceeds from the issue were used for comprehensive updates for two elementary schools and
one new construction elementary school.

On September 18, 2013, the Leasing Corporation issued COPs Series 2013A to advance refund a portion of COPs
Series 2004A.

On March 11, 2014, the Leasing Corporation issued COPs Series 2014A to advance refund a portion of COPs
Series 2004A.

On March 11, 2014, the Leasing Corporation entered into a forward refunding of the COPs Series 2005A. On
April 1, 2015, the Leasing Corporation issued COPs Series 2015A.
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(8) OnJune 10, 2014, the Leasing Corporation entered into a forward refunding of the COPs Series 2005B. On May
4, 2015, the Leasing Corporation issued COPs Series 2015B.

(9) On December 9, 2014, the Leasing Corporation issued COPs Series 2015C to advance refund COPs Series 2006A.

(10) On January 21, 2015, the Leasing Corporation issued COPs Series 2015D to advance refund COPs Series 2007A.

(11) On May 27, 2015, the Leasing Corporation entered into a forward refunding of COPs Series 2006B. On May 5,
2016, the Leasing Corporation issued COPs Series 2016A.

(12) On April 6, 2016, the Leasing Corporation issued COPs Series 2016B to advance refund COPs Series 2008D.

(13) On April 20, 2016, the Leasing Corporation issued COPs Series 2016C to advance refund COPs Series 2009A.

(14) On July 3, 2017, the Leasing Corporation issued COPs Series 2017A to advance refund COPs Series 2008C.

(15) On September 7, 2017, the Leasing Corporation issued COPs Series 2017B to advance refund COPs Series 2012B.

(16) On December 27, 2017, the Leasing Corporation issued COPs Series 2017C to advance refund COPs Series
2014A.

(17) The lease payments are payable by the District, semiannually, on August 1 and February 1.

(18) As a condition of the financing arrangements, the District has given ground leases on District property to the
Leasing Corporation, with a rental fee of $1 per year. The properties covered by the ground lease are, together
with the improvement constructed thereon (facilities) and the vehicles and equipment purchased from the
financing proceeds, leased back to the District. The lease agreements are automatically renewable through
varying dates unless early terminated following the occurrence of an event of default or a non-appropriation
of funds to make lease payments, all as described and defined in the leases. If the District fails to renew the
lease and to provide for rent payments through to term, it may be required to surrender all facilities, vehicles,
and equipment included under the terms of the lease agreements for the benefit of the securers of the COPs.
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The District properties funded by the above-financing arrangement include the following:

Description of Property

Series 1997A*
Series 1999A*

Series 2000A*
Series 2000B*
Series 2001A*

Series 2002A*

Series 2003*
Series 2004*

Series 2005A*
Series 2005B*
Series 2006A*
Series 2006B*

Series 2007A/B*

Series 2007C*
Series 2008B
Series 2008C*
Series 2008E
Series 2009A

Series 2009B-QSCB
Series 2010A-QSCB

Series 2012A
Series 2012B*
Series 2013A
Series 2014A
Series 2015A
Series 2015B
Series 2015C
Series 2015D
Series 2016A
Series 2016B
Series 2016C
Series 2017A
Series 2017B
Series 2017C

Renovation and remodeling at eighteen elementary, four middle,
two high schools, and two 9th grade centers.

Three new elementary and one new middle school; replacement
of modular buildings; and a high school expansion/replacement.

Three elementary schools.

One high school.

Refunding of COPs, Series 1997A and 2000A.

Two alternative education schools; the replacement of one elementary, one middle,
and one high school; an addition at one middle school and concrete modular buildings

at various sites.

Financing and refinancing 295 premanufactured concrete modular structures.
Two middle schools, two elementary schools, portable classrooms
to meet immediate needs and portable replacements.

Refunding of COPs, Series 1997A and 1999A.

Refunding of COPs, Series 2000A.

One replacement high school and four elementary schools.
Refunding of COPs, Series 1999A and 2002A.

One replacement high school, one replacement middle school, one
technical center, one high school, and 2 elementary schools.
Refunding of COPs, Series 1997A

Refunding of COPs, Series 2007B

Refunding of COPs, Series 2000B

Refunding of COPs, Series 2007C

Two replacement high schools.

Comprehensive needs and renovation at one middle school.
Comprehensive needs at two elementary schools and one new elementary school.
Refunding of COPs, Series 2001A

Refunding of COPs, Series 2002A

Refunding of a portion of COPs, Series 2004A

Refunding of a portion of COPs, Series 2004A

Refunding of COPs, Series 2005A

Refunding of COPs, Series 2005B

Refunding of COPs, Series 2006A

Refunding of COPs, Series 2007A

Refunding of COPs, Series 2006B

Refunding of COPs, Series 2008D

Refunding of COPs, Series 2009A

Refunding of COPs, Series 2008C

Refunding of COPs, Series 2012B

Refunding of COPs, Series 2014A

*Debt no longer exists; debt instrument is presented to show the projects applicable to the refunding of COPS.

48



ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2020

The following is a schedule by years of future minimum lease payments under the above-referenced lease agreements
together with the present value of minimum lease payments as of June 30:

Certificates of Participation from

Certificates of Participation Direct Borrowings of Debt
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Total Principal Interest Principal Interest
2021 S 88,637,250 S 8,185,000 $ 36,865,709 S 38,046,420 S 5,540,121
2022 88,589,828 8,590,000 36,454,558 39,054,149 4,491,121
2023 88,412,838 21,120,000 35,707,813 27,996,911 3,588,114
2024 89,954,096 8,820,000 34,952,542 43,493,601 2,687,953
2025 122,574,531 45,680,000 34,279,578 40,953,860 1,661,093
2026-2030 478,023,870 290,469,000 142,377,080 44,596,371 581,419
2031-2035 454,919,872 404,005,000 50,914,872 - -
Total Minimum Lease Payments 1,411,112,285 786,869,000 371,552,152 234,141,312 18,549,821
Add: Unamortized Premium 80,966,469 80,966,469 - - -
Less: Interest (390,101,973) - (371,552,152) - (18,549,821)
Total Certificates of Participation $ 1,101,976,781 S 867,835,469 S - S 234,141,312 S -

The District does not have any outstanding or unused lines of credit. The District’s certificates of participation and
certificates of participation from direct borrowings contain a provision that in an event of default or upon the
termination of the lease agreement prior to the payment of all scheduled lease payments, the District shall immediately
surrender and deliver possession of all facilities financed under the Master Lease.

Hedged Debt and Hedging Derivative Instrument Payments

As of June 30, 2020, aggregate debt service requirements of the District’s debt (fixed-rate and variable-rate) and net
receipts/payments on associated hedging derivative instruments are provided on the following tables. These amounts
assume that current interest rates on variable-rate bonds and the current reference rates of hedging derivative
instruments will remain the same for their term. As these rates vary, interest payments on variable-rate bonds and net
receipts/payments on the hedging derivative instruments will vary.

Series 2008B COPs Swap Agreement - Swap Payments and Associated Debt. Assuming interest rates remain the same
as at June 30, 2020, annual debt service requirements on the Series 2008B COPs and the interest rate swap would be
as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending Interest Rate

June 30, Principal Interest Swaps, Net Total
2021 S - S 609,000 S 4,496,100 S 5,105,100
2022 - 609,000 4,496,100 5,105,100
2023 - 609,000 4,496,100 5,105,100
2024 - 609,000 4,496,100 5,105,100
2025 - 609,000 4,496,100 5,105,100
2026-2030 17,670,000 2,994,917 22,110,749 42,775,666
2031-2033 87,330,000 1,352,473 9,984,982 98,667,455
S 105,000,000 S 7,392,390 S 54,576,231 S 166,968,621
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Series 2008E COPs Swap Agreement - Swap Payments and Associated Debt. Assuming interest rates remain the same
as at June 30, 2020, annual debt service requirements on the Series 2008E COPs and the interest rate swap would be
as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending Interest Rate
June 30, Principal Interest Swaps, Net Total
2021 S - S 72,540 S 602,324 S 674,864
2022 - 72,540 602,324 674,864
2023 12,090,000 72,540 602,324 12,764,864

S 12,090,000 S 217,620 S 1,806,972 S 14,114,592

6. Derivative Instruments

The fair value balances and notional amounts of derivative instruments outstanding at June 30, 2020, and the changes
in fair value of such derivative instruments for the year then ended as reported in the 2020 financial statements are as
follows:

Governmental Activities Change in Fair Value Fair Value at June 30, 2020

Hedging Derivatives: Classification Amount Classification Amount Notional

20088 Pay-fixed Interest Rate Swap Deferred Outflow S (11,713,559) Liability S (43,203,711) S 105,000,000
of Resources

2008E Pay-fixed Interest Rate Swap Deferred Outflow  $ 54,397 Liability S (1,165,805) 12,090,000
of Resources

Total Hedging Derivative Instruments S (44,369,516)

The fair values of the hedging derivatives take into consideration Level 2 measurement inputs from the prevailing
interest rate environment and the specific terms and conditions of each swap. All fair values were estimated using the
zero-coupon discounting method. This method calculates the future payments required by the swap, assuming that
the current forward rates implied by the yield curve are the market’s best estimate of future spot interest rates. These
payments are then discounted using the spot rates implied by the current yield curve for a hypothetical zero-coupon
rate bond due on the date of each future net settlement payment on the swaps.
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Objective and Terms of Derivative Instruments

The following table displays the objective and terms of the District’s derivative instruments outstanding at June 30,
2020, along with the credit rating of the associated counterparty:

Amount
Governmental Activities Effective Maturity of Cash Counterparty
Hedging Derivatives: Objective Notional Date Date Received Terms Counterparty Credit Rating
Hedge changes
in cash flows Pay 4.412%
on the 2008B receive SIFMA Citibank, NA,
20088 Interest Rate Swap Certificates S 105,000,000 6/29/2007 8/1/2032 N/A Swap Index New York Aa3,A+A+
Hedge changes
in cash flows Pay 5.112%
on the 2008E receive SIFMA UBS AG
2008E Interest Rate Swap Certificates S 12,090,000 8/1/2007 8/1/2022 N/A Swap Index Stamford Branch Aa3,A+,AA-

Credit Risk. The District is exposed to credit risk on hedging derivative instruments. The swap’s fair value represented
the District’s credit exposure to the counterparty. Should the counterparty to this transaction fail to perform according
to the terms of the swap contract, the District is left with variable rate bonds. As of June 30, 2020, the swap
counterparties’ credit ratings are noted in the above table.

It is the District’s policy to enter into netting arrangements whenever it has entered into more than one derivative
instrument transaction with a counterparty. Under the terms of these arrangements, should one party become
insolvent or otherwise default on its obligations, close-out netting provisions permit the nondefaulting party to
accelerate and terminate all outstanding transactions and net the transactions’ fair values so that a single sum will be
owed by, or owed to, the nondefaulting party.

The District has no hedging derivative instruments in asset positions at June 30, 2020.

Interest Rate Risk. The District is exposed to interest rate risk on its interest rate swaps. As the SIFMA swap index
decreases, the District’s net payment on the swap increases, which is offset by the variable rate paid on the hedged
debt.

Basis Risk. The District is exposed to basis risk should the variable rate it receives under the agreement be different
than the rate it pays on its COPs. Under the requirements of the swap, the District receives a variable payment based
on the SIFMA index from the counterparty. The 2008B and 2008E COPs are currently priced in a daily mode and the
SIFMA index reflects weekly interest rates.

Termination risk. The District or its counterparties may terminate a derivative instrument if the other party fails to
perform under the terms of the contract including if either parties credit rating falls below designated levels.

51



ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2020
7. Bonds Payable
Bonds payable at June 30, 2020, are as follows:
Interest Annual
Rates Maturity Amount Outstanding
Bond Type (Percent) To
State School Bonds:
Series 2020-A 5.0 2022 S 572,000
Total Bonds payable S 572,000

State school bonds are not considered direct borrowings or direct placements of debt. The various bonds were issued
to finance capital outlay projects of the District. The following is a description of the bonded debt issues:

State School Bonds

The State Board of Education, on behalf of the District, issues these bonds. The bonds mature serially and are secured
by a pledge of the District's portion of the State-assessed motor vehicle license tax. The State's full faith and credit is
also pledged as security for these bonds. The State Board of Education and the State Board of Administration are
responsible for administering principal and interest payments, investment of Debt Service Fund resources, and
compliance with reserve requirements.

Annual requirements to amortize all bonded debt outstanding as of June 30, 2020, are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Total Principal Interest
2021 S 356,565 S 329,000 S 27,565
2022 255,150 243,000 12,150
Total Bonds Payable S 611,715 S 572,000 S 39,715

8. Defeased Debt

On June 30, 2020, the outstanding balance of debt considered defeased in-substance in prior years are as follows:

Amount

Debt Issues Qutstanding

Certificates of Participation, Series 2008C S 27,505,000
Certificates of Participation, Series 2008D 41,500,000
Certificates of Participation, Series 2009A 184,380,000
Certificates of Participation, Series 2012B 75,935,000
Certificates of Participation, Series 2014A 62,030,000
Total Defeased Debt S 391,350,000
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9. Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities:

Balance Balance Due In

Description June 30, 2019 Additions Deductions June 30, 2020 One Year
Certificates of Participation § 266,523,537 S - $ 32382225 S 234141312 $ 8,185,000

from Direct Borrowings
Other Certificates of Participation 798,689,000 - 11,820,000 786,869,000 38,046,420
Add: Unamortized Premiums

Other COPs 89,601,451 - 8,634,982 80,966,469 8,634,982
Total Certificates of

Participation 1,154,813,988 - 52,837,207 1,101,976,781 54,866,402
Bonds Payable 1,193,000 572,000 1,193,000 572,000 329,000
Estimated Insurance Claims

Payable 14,192,553 13,271,231 11,026,057 16,437,727 8,424,823
Compensated Absences 116,895,528 22,489,787 9,261,049 130,124,266 9,406,124
Other Post-Employment Benefits 50,416,824 11,416,247 2,981,772 58,851,299 6,393,505
Net Pension Liability 1,006,601,292 638,463,355 516,979,884 1,128,084,763 6,074,956
Derivative Instruments 32,710,354 11,713,559 54,397 44,369,516 -
Total $ 2,376,823,539 S 697,926,179 S 594,333,366 $ 2,480,416,352 S 85,494,810

For the governmental activities, compensated absences, pensions and other postemployment benefits are generally
liquidated with resources of the General Fund. The estimated insurance claims are generally liquidated with resources
of the Internal Service Funds.

10. Fund Balance Reporting

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and
Governmental Fund Type Definitions (GASB 54) to provide a more structured classification of fund balance and to
improve the usefulness of fund balance reporting to the users of the District’s financial statements. The reporting
standard establishes a hierarchy for fund balance classifications and the constraints imposed on the uses of those
resources.

GASB 54 provides for two major types of fund balances for governmental funds, which are nonspendable and
spendable. Nonspendable fund balances are balances that cannot be spent because they are not expected to be
converted to cash or they are legally or contractually required to remain intact. Examples of this classification are
prepaid items, inventories, and principal (corpus) of an endowment fund. The District reports its inventories and
prepaid items as nonspendable and does not have any nonspendable funds related to endowments.

In addition to the nonspendable fund balance, GASB 54 has provided a hierarchy of spendable fund balances, based on
spending constraints.

Restricted - Fund balances that are constrained by external parties, constitutional provisions, or enabling legislation.
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Committed - Fund balances that contain self-imposed constraints of the government from its highest level of decision
making authority such as school board resolutions.

Assigned - Fund balances that contain self-imposed constraints of the government to be used for a particular purpose.
Unassigned — Fund balance of the general fund that does not have a constraint for any particular purpose.

The District has classified its fund balances with the following hierarchy:

Nonspendable: The District has inventories totaling $1,720,885 that are classified as nonspendable.

Spendable: The District has classified the spendable fund balances as Restricted, Assigned and Unassigned and
considered each to have been spent when expenditures are incurred. The District does not have a policy regarding the
commitment or assignment of fund balances; however, by resolution, the Board has given the ability to assign fund
balance to the Superintendent and the Chief Financial Officer. The District does not report any Committed fund balance.
When restricted, assigned, and unassigned funds are available for use, the District’s procedures are to use the restricted

funds first, followed by the assigned funds and then the unassigned funds last.

Restricted for State Categorical Programs, State Grants, Food Service, Debt Service and Capital Projects:

Federal Laws, Florida Statutes and local ordinances require that certain revenues be specifically designated for the
purposes of state categorical programs, food service, debt service, and capital projects. These funds have been
included in the restricted category of fund balance. The restricted fund balances totaled $1,628,541,340 and
represented $6,027,375 in State categorical programs, $8,301,355 in Post Secondary Schools Rollover budget,
$5,617,300 in State Grants, $24,248,731 in food service, $143,021,090 in debt service and $1,441,325,490 in capital
projects.

Assigned for School Operations and Other Purposes:

The assigned fund balances totaled $213,792,483. For the General Fund, the Chief Financial Officer of the Board has
assigned the OPEB liability of $58,851,299; Board Projects of $66,420,841; and K-12 School Rollover Budgets of
$45,718,809. Also for the General Fund, the District reports as assighed outstanding purchase obligations of
$9,545,587 that have not been previously reported as restricted and $21,886,376 needed to eliminate expected
expenditures over expected revenues in the subsequent year budget approved by the Board. In addition, $11,369,571
of positive fund balance in non-General Funds that has not been reported as nonspendable or restricted is reported as
assigned fund balance.

Unassigned:

The unassigned fund balance for the General Fund is $106,441,113.
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Major Funds
Capital Projects - Capital Projects-  Special Revenues -
Local Other Other
Capital Capital Federal Nonmajor Total
Improvement Projects Program Governmental Governmental
General Fund Tax Fund Fund Funds Funds
Fund Balances:
Nonspendable:
Inventories
General Fund S 1,720,885 S - $ - S - S - S 1,720,885
Restricted:
Categorical Programs 6,027,375 - - - - 6,027,375

Post Secondary Rollover Budgets 8,301,355 - - - 8,301,355
State Grants 5,617,300 - - - - 5,617,300
Special Revenues -

Food Service - - - - 24,248,730 24,248,730
Debt Service - - - 143,021,090 143,021,090
Capital Projects - 339,346,189 1,090,461,955 - 11,517,346 1,441,325,490

Assigned:
School Operations:

Encumbrances 9,545,587 - - - - 9,545,587

Board Projects 66,420,841 - - - - 66,420,841

K-12 Schools Rollover Budgets 45,718,809 - - - - 45,718,809

Next Year's Budget Deficit 21,886,376 - - - - 21,886,376
Other Purposes:

OPEB 58,851,299 - - - - 58,851,299

Special Revenues -

Other - - - - 11,369,571 11,369,571
Unassigned: 106,441,113 - - - - 106,441,113
Total Fund Balance $ 330,530,940 S 339,346,189  § 1090461955 S - $ 190,156,737  § 1,950,495,821

The District has not established a contingency reserve or “Rainy Day Fund”. Instead the Board has approved in the
budget to set aside 3 percent of recurring budgeted revenues at the beginning of each year to cover unforeseen events
(e.g., revenue shortfalls, student enrollment under projections, etc.). At the end of the fiscal year, the unassigned
general fund balance was $106,441,113 or 5.6 percent of general fund total budgeted revenues for fiscal year 2021.
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11. Interfund Balances and Transfers

The following is a summary of interfund receivables and payables reported in the fund financial statements at June 30,
2020:

Interfund
Receivables Payables

Funds Due From Due To
Major Governmental Funds:

General S 59,340,281 S -

Capital Projects - Local Capital

Improvement Tax - 43,270,877

Special Revenue - Other Federal - 16,034,433
Nonmajor Governmental Funds:

Debt Service - Other - 34,971
Total S 59,340,281 S 59,340,281

The interfund receivable and payable represents payments made prior to year-end but reimbursed by the grantor after
year end and therefore is repaid within 12 months.

The following is a summary of interfund transfers reported in the fund financial statements at June 30, 2020:

Interfund
Transfer Transfer
Funds In Out
Major Governmental Funds:
General S 27,493,246 S 16,868,727
Capital Projects - Local Capital
Improvement Tax - 108,263,414
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Debt Service - Other 88,592,832 -
Capital Projects - PECO - 7,822,664
Internal Service Funds
Employee Benefits 16,868,727 -
Total S 132,954,805 S 132,954,805

The interfund transfers represent the payments of expenditures by one fund for another fund. The transfers in for the
General Fund consist of $7.8 million from the Capital Projects - PECO Fund for Charter School Capital Outlay. The
transfers in for Debt Service are from Capital Projects Funds for the debt service payments for capital leases and COPs
payments recorded in the Debt Service — Other.
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12. Schedule of State Revenue Sources

The District's principal source of revenues is the State, which provided approximately 32% of total revenues in the 2020
fiscal year. The following is a schedule of State revenue sources and amounts:

Sources Amount

Florida Education Finance Program S 612,939,614
Categorical Educational Programs 246,726,209
Workforce Development 32,243,536
CO&DS Withheld for SBE/COBI Bonds 632,976
Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten Program 6,205,813
Charter Schools Capital Outlay 7,822,658
CO&DS Distributed to District 7,657,957
Discretionary Lottery 220,469
Food Service Supplement 1,355,290
State License Tax 395,748
Miscellaneous State Grants 671,773
Total S 916,872,043

13. Property Taxes

The following is a summary of millage and taxes levied on the 2019 tax roll for the 2019-2020 fiscal year:

Millages Taxes Levied

General Fund
Nonvoted School Tax:

Required Local Effort 3.861 S 602,521,219

Basic Discretionary Local Effort 0.748 116,727,757
Voted School Tax:

Additional Voted Millage 1.000 156,053,152
Capital Projects Funds
Nonvoted Tax:

Local Capital Improvement 1.500 234,079,728
Total 7.109 S 1,109,381,856
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14. State Retirement Programs

Florida Retirement System. The Florida Retirement System (FRS) was created in Chapter 121, Florida Statutes, to

provide a defined benefit pension plan for participating public employees. The FRS was amended in 1998 to add the
Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) under the defined benefit plan and amended in 2000 to provide a
defined contribution plan alternative to the defined benefit plan for FRS members effective July 1, 2002. This
integrated defined contribution pension plan is the FRS Investment Plan. Chapter 112, Florida Statutes, established
the Retiree Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS) Program, a cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan,

to assist retired members of any state- administered retirement system in paying the costs of health insurance.

Essentially all regular employees of the District are eligible to enroll as members of the State-administered FRS.
Provisions relating to the FRS are established by Chapters 121 and 122, Florida Statutes; Chapter 112, Part IV, Florida
Statutes; Chapter 238, Florida Statutes; and FRS Rules, Chapter 60S, Florida Administrative Code; wherein eligibility,
contributions, and benefits are defined and described in detail. Such provisions may be amended at any time by
further action from the Florida Legislature. The FRS is a single retirement system administered by the Florida
Department of Management Services, Division of Retirement, and consists of the two cost-sharing, multiple-
employer defined benefit plans and other nonintegrated programs. A comprehensive annual financial report of the
FRS, which includes its financial statements, required supplementary information, actuarial report, and other
relevant information, is available from the Florida Department of Management Services’ Web site

(www.dms.myflorida.com).

The District’s FRS and HIS pension expense totaled $222,879,478 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.
FRS Pension Plan

Plan Description. The FRS Pension Plan (Plan) is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan, with

a DROP for eligible employees. The general classes of membership are as follows:

o Regular— Members of the FRS who do not qualify for membership in the other classes.
e FElected County Officers— Members who hold specified elective offices in local government.
e Senior Management Service — Members in senior management level positions.

e Special Risk— Members who are employed as law enforcement officers and meet the criteria to qualify for
this class.

Employees enrolled in the Plan prior to July 1, 2011, vest at 6 years of creditable service and employees enrolled in
the Plan on or after July 1, 2011, vest at 8 years of creditable service. All vested members, enrolled prior to July 1,
2011, are eligible for normal retirement benefits at age 62 or at any age after 30 years of service, except for members
classified as special risk who are eligible for normal retirement benefits at age 55 or at any age after 25 years of
service. All members enrolled in the Plan on or after July 1, 2011, once vested, are eligible for normal retirement
benefits at age 65 or any time after 33 years of creditable service except for members classified as special risk who
are eligible for normal retirement benefits at age 60 or at any age after 30 years of service. Employees enrolled in

the Plan may include up to 4 years of credit for military service toward creditable service. The Plan also includes an
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early retirement provision; however, there is a benefit reduction for each year a member retires before his or her
normal retirement date. The Plan provides retirement, disability, death benefits, and annual cost-of-living

adjustments to eligible participants.

DROP, subject to provisions of Section 121.091, Florida Statutes, permits employees eligible for normal retirement
under the Plan to defer receipt of monthly benefit payments while continuing employment with an FRS participating
employer. An employee may participate in DROP for a period not to exceed 60 months after electing to participate,
except that certain instructional personnel may participate for up to 96 months. During the period of DROP
participation, deferred monthly benefits are held in the FRS Trust Fund and accrue interest. The net pension liability
does not include amounts for DROP participants, as these members are considered retired and are not accruing

additional pension benefits.

Benefits Provided. Benefits under the Plan are computed on the basis of age and/or years of service, average final
compensation, and service credit. Credit for each year of service is expressed as a percentage of the average final
compensation. For members initially enrolled before July 1, 2011, the average final compensation is the average of
the five highest fiscal years’ earnings; for members initially enrolled on or after July 1, 2011, the average final
compensation is the average of the 8 highest fiscal years’ earnings. The total percentage value of the benefit
received is determined by calculating the total value of all service, which is based on the retirement class to which
the member belonged when the service credit was earned. Members are eligible for in-line-of-duty or regular
disability and survivors’ benefits. The following chart shows the percentage value for each year of service credit

earned:

Class, Initial Enrollment, and Retirement Age/Years of Service % Value

Regular Class members initially enrolled before July 1, 2011

Retirement up to age 62 or up to 30 years of service 1.60
Retirement at age 63 or with 31 years of service 1.63
Retirement at age 64 or with 32 years of service 1.65
Retirement at age 65 or with 33 or more years of service 1.68

Regular Class members initially enrolled on or after July 1, 2011

Retirement up to age 65 or up to 33 years of service 1.60
Retirement at age 66 or with 34 years of service 1.63
Retirement at age 67 or with 35 years of service 1.65
Retirement at age 68 or with 36 or more years of service 1.68
Elected County Officers 3.00
Senior Management Service Class 2.00
Special Risk 3.00

As provided in Section 121.101, Florida Statutes, if the member is initially enrolled in the FRS before July 1, 2011,
and all service credit was accrued before July 1, 2011, the annual cost-of-living adjustment is 3 percent per year. If
the member is initially enrolled before July 1, 2011, and has service credit on or after July 1, 2011, there is an
individually calculated cost-of-living adjustment. The annual cost-of-living adjustment is a proportion of 3 percent

determined by dividing the sum of the pre-July 2011 service credit by the total service credit at retirement multiplied

59



ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2020

by 3 percent. Plan members initially enrolled on or after July 1, 2011 will not have a cost-of-living adjustment after

retirement.

Contributions. The Florida Legislature establishes contribution rates for participating employers and employees.
Contribution rates during the 2019-20 fiscal year were as follows:

Percent of Gross Salary

Class or Plan Employee Employer (A)
Florida Retirement System, Regular 3.00 8.47
Florida Retirement System, County Elected Officers 3.00 48.82
Florida Retirement System, Senior Management Service 3.00 25.41
Florida Retirement System, Special Risk 3.00 25.48
Deferred Retirement Option Program — Applicable to Members from All of the

Above Classes or Plans 0.00 14.60
Florida Retirement System, Reemployed Retiree (B) (B)

(A) Employer rates include the post-employment health insurance supplement of 1.66% and .06% for
administrative costs of the Public Employee Optional Retirement Program.

(B) Contribution rates are dependent upon retirement class in which reemployed.
The District’s contributions to the Plan totaled $75,543,975 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related
to Pensions. At June 30, 2020, the District reported a liability of $770,043,626 for its proportionate share of the net

pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2019. The District’s
proportionate share of the net pension liability was based on the District’s 2018-19 fiscal year contributions relative
to the 2018-19 fiscal year contributions of all participating members. At June 30, 2019, the District’s proportionate
share was 2.24 percent, which was an increase of 0.01 percent from its proportionate share measured as of June 30,
2018.
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For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized pension expense of $191,554,474 related to the Plan.
In addition, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

Description of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and

actual experience S 45,673,489 S 477,882
Change of assumptions 197,780,336 -
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on FRS pension plan investments - 42,602,832
Changes in proportion and differences between

District FRS contributions and proportionate

share of contributions 8,332,480 9,039,708
District FRS contributions subsequent to

the measurement date (fiscal year 2019 contributions) 75,543,975 -
Total S 327,330,280 S 52,120,422

The deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions to the Plan subsequent
to the measurement date, totaling $75,543,975, will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of

resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30 Amount

2021 S 73,292,260
2022 20,052,657
2023 52,728,516
2024 40,590,176
2025 10,419,935
Thereafter 2,582,339
Total S 199,665,883

Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability in the July 1, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined using the

following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.60 percent
Salary Increases 3.25 percent, average, including inflation
Investment rate of return 6.90 percent, net of pension plan investment expense,

including inflation

Mortality rates were based on the PUB2010 base table which varies by member category and sex, projected
generationally with Scale MP-2018.
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The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2019, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience

study for the period July 1, 2013, through June 30, 2018.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was not based on historical returns, but instead
is based on a forward-looking capital market economic model. The allocation policy’s description of each asset class
was used to map the target allocation to the asset classes shown below. Each asset class assumption is based on a
consistent set of underlying assumptions, and includes an adjustment for the inflation assumption. The target
allocation and best estimates of arithmetic and geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are

summarized in the following table:

Compound
Annual Annual

Target Arithmetic (Geometric) Standard
Asset Class Allocation (1) Return Return Deviation
Cash 1% 3.3% 3.3% 1.2%
Fixed Income 18% 4.1% 4.1% 3.5%
Global Equity 54% 8.0% 6.8% 16.5%
Real Estate (Property) 10% 6.7% 6.1% 11.7%
Private Equity 11% 11.2% 8.4% 25.8%
Strategic Investments 6% 5.9% 5.7% 6.7%
Total 100%
Assumed inflation - Mean 2.6% 1.7%

Note: (1) As outlined in the Plan’s investment policy

Discount Rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.9 percent. The Plan’s fiduciary
net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and
inactive employees. Therefore, the discount rate for calculating the total pension liability is equal to the long-term

expected rate of return.

Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate. The

following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of
6.9 percent, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (5.9 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.9

percent) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(5.9%) (6.9%) (7.9%)
District's proportionate share of
the net pension liability S 1,331,149,004 S 770,043,626 S 301,425,724

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position. Detailed information about the Plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the

separately issued FRS Pension Plan and Other State Administered Systems Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
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Payables to the Pension Plan. At June 30, 2020, the District reported no payables for the outstanding amount of

contributions to the Plan required for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.
HIS Pension Plan

Plan Description. The HIS Pension Plan (HIS Plan) is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan
established under section 112.363, Florida Statutes, and may be amended by the Florida Legislature at any time. The
benefit is a monthly payment to assist retirees of State-administered retirement systems in paying their health
insurance costs and is administered by the Division of Retirement within the Florida Department of Management

Services.

Benefits Provided. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, eligible retirees and beneficiaries received a monthly HIS
payment of S5 for each year of creditable service completed at the time of retirement, with a minimum HIS payment
of $30 and a maximum HIS payment of $150 per month, pursuant to Section 112.363, Florida Statutes. To be eligible
to receive a HIS Plan benefit, a retiree under a State-administered retirement system must provide proof of health

insurance coverage, which may include Medicare.

Contributions. The HIS Plan is funded by required contributions from FRS participating employers as set by the
Florida Legislature. Employer contributions are a percentage of gross compensation for all active FRS members. For
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the contribution rate was 1.66 percent of payroll pursuant to section 112.363,
Florida Statutes. The District contributed 100 percent of its statutorily required contributions for the current and
preceding 3 years. HIS Plan contributions are deposited in a separate trust fund from which payments are authorized.
HIS Plan benefits are not guaranteed and are subject to annual legislative appropriation. In the event the legislative
appropriation or available funds fail to provide full subsidy benefits to all participants, benefits may be reduced or

canceled.
The District’s contributions to the HIS Plan totaled $18,841,646 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related

to Pensions. At June 30, 2020, the District reported a net pension liability of $358,041,137 for its proportionate share
of the HIS Plan’s net pension liability. The current portion of the net pension liability is the District’s proportionate
share of benefit payments expected to be paid within one year, net of the District’s proportionate share of the
pension plan’s fiduciary net position available to pay that amount. The net pension liability was measured as of June
30, 2019, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of July 1, 2019. The District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability was based on the District’s
2018-19 fiscal year contributions relative to the total 2018-19 fiscal year contributions of all participating members.
At June 30, 2019, the District’s proportionate share was 3.20 percent, which was an increase of 0.05 percent from

its proportionate share measured as of June 30, 2018.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized pension expense of $31,325,004 related to the HIS
Plan. In addition, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to

pensions from the following sources:
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Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

Description of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected

and actual experience S 4,348,810 S 438,410
Change of assumptions 41,457,782 29,263,365
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on HIS pension plan investments 231,039 -
Changes in proportion and differences between

District HIS contributions and proportionate 13,200,294 1,408,545

share of HIS contributions
District contributions subsequent to the

measurement date 18,841,646 -
Total S 78,079,571 S 31,110,320

The deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions to the HIS Plan
subsequent to the measurement date, totaling $18,841,646, will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension
liability in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and

deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30 Amount

2021 $ 10,826,116
2022 8,470,619
2023 4,601,890
2024 (587,026)
2025 1,396,230
Thereafter 3,419,776
Total S 28,127,605

Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability in the July 1, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined using the

following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.60 percent
Salary Increases 3.25 percent, average, including inflation
Municipal Bond Rate 3.50 percent

Mortality rates were based on the Generational RP-2000 with Projected Scale BB.

While an experience study had not been completed for the HIS Plan, the actuarial assumptions that determined the
total pension liability for the HIS Plan were based on certain results of the most recent experience study for the FRS
Plan.
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Discount Rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 3.50 percent, which is a decrease
from 3.87 percent used at the preceding measurement date. In general, the discount rate for calculating the total
pension liability is equal to the single rate equivalent to discounting at the long-term expected rate of return for
benefit payments prior to the projected depletion date. Because the HIS benefit is essentially funded on a pay-as-
you-go basis, the depletion date is considered to be immediate, and the single equivalent discount rate is equal to
the municipal bond rate selected by the HIS Plan sponsor. The Bond Buyer General Obligation 20-Bond Municipal
Bond Index was adopted as the applicable municipal bond index.

Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate. The

following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of
3.50 percent, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.50 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (4.50
percent) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(2.50%) (3.50%) (4.50%)
District's proportionate share of
the net pension liability S 408,722,313  $ 358,041,137 $ 315,829,456

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position. Detailed information about the HIS Plan’s fiduciary net position is available in
the separately issued FRS Pension Plan and Other State Administered Systems Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report.

Payables to the Pension Plan. At June 30, 2020, the District reported no payables for the outstanding amount of
contributions to the HIS Plan required for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.

The aggregate amount of net pension liabilities, related deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of

resources and pension expense for the District’s defined benefit pension plans are summarized below:

Pension HIS
Plan Plan Total

Net pension liabilities S 770,043,626 S 358,041,137 S 1,128,084,763
Deferred outflows of resources

related to defined benefit plans 327,330,280 78,079,571 405,409,851
Deferred inflows of resources

related to defined benefit plans 52,120,422 31,110,320 83,230,742
Pension expense 191,554,474 31,325,004 222,879,478
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Defined Contribution Pension Plan

The District contributes to the FRS Investment Plan (Investment Plan), a defined contribution pension plan, for its
eligible employees electing to participate in the Investment Plan. The Investment Plan is administered by the SBA,
and is reported in the SBA’s annual financial statements and in the State of Florida Comprehensive Annual Financial

Report.

As provided in Section 121.4501, Florida Statutes, eligible FRS members may elect to participate in the Investment
Plan in lieu of the FRS defined-benefit plan. District employees participating in DROP are not eligible to participate
in the Investment Plan. Employer and employee contributions, including amounts contributed to individual
members’ accounts, are defined by law, but the ultimate benefit depends in part on the performance of investment
funds. Benefit terms, including contribution requirements, for the Investment Plan are established and may be
amended by the Florida Legislature. The Investment Plan is funded with the same employer and employee
contribution rates that are based on salary and membership class (Regular Class, Senior Management, etc.) as the
FRS defined benefit plan. Contributions are directed to individual member accounts, and the individual members
allocate contributions and account balances among various approved investment choices. Costs of administering the
Investment Plan, including the FRS Financial Guidance Program, are funded through an employer contribution of
0.06 percent of payroll and the forfeited benefits of Investment Plan members. Allocations to the investment

member’s accounts during the 2019-20 fiscal year were as follows:

Percent of
Gross
Class Compensation
FRS, Regular 6.30
FRS, Elected County Officers 11.34
FRS, Senior Management Service 7.67
FRS, Special Risk Regular 14.00

For all membership classes, employees are immediately vested in their own contributions and are vested after 1
year of service for employer contributions and investment earnings. If an accumulated benefit obligation for service
credit originally earned under the FRS Pension Plan is transferred to the Investment Plan, the member must have
the years of service required for FRS Pension Plan vesting (including the service credit represented by the transferred
funds) to be vested for these funds and the earnings on the funds. Nonvested employer contributions are placed in
a suspense account for up to 5 years. If the employee returns to FRS-covered employment within the 5 year period,
the employee will regain control over their account. If the employee does not return within the 5 year period, the
employee will forfeit the accumulated account balance. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the information for
the amount of forfeitures was unavailable from the SBA; however, management believes that these amounts, if any,

would be immaterial to the District.

After termination and applying to receive benefits, the member may rollover vested funds to another qualified plan,

structure a periodic payment under the Investment Plan, receive a lump-sum distribution, leave the funds invested
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for future distribution, or any combination of these options. Disability coverage is provided; the member may either
transfer the account balance to the FRS Pension Plan when approved for disability retirement to receive guaranteed
lifetime monthly benefits under the FRS Pension Plan, or remain in the Investment Plan and rely upon that account
balance for retirement income.

The District’s Investment Plan pension expense totaled $21,636,960 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.

15. Other Postemployment Benefits

Plan Description. The other postemployment benefits plan is a single-employer defined benefit plan administered by
the District. Pursuant to the provision of the Section 112.0801, Florida Statutes, employees who retire from the District,
and eligible dependents, may continue to participate in the District’s health and hospitalization plan for medical and
prescription coverages. The postemployment healthcare and life insurance plan does not issue a stand-alone report,
and is not included in the report of a public employee retirement system (PERS) or another entity.

Funding Policy. The District funds the postemployment benefit on a pay-as-you go basis. Contribution requirements of
the plan members and the District are established and may be amended by the Board. Effective October 1, 2014, once
the participant or spouse attains age 65, the District does not continue coverage. Postemployment healthcare and life
insurance are optional benefits available through the District after retirement, but retirees must pay the full premium.
Therefore, there is no liability to the District for these benefits. For the fiscal year 2019-20, retiree contributions totaled
$2,981,772, which represents 0.31 percent of covered payroll. No assets are accumulated in an irrevocable trust.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms.

Inactive Employees or Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefits 436
Active Employees 23,011
Total 23,447

Total OPEB Ligbility. The District’s total OPEB liability of $58,851,299 was measured as of June 30, 2020, and was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2019.

Actuarial Assumption and Other Inputs. The total OPEB liability in the July 1, 2019, actuarial valuation was determined
using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless
otherwise specified:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Discount Rate 3.49% decreasing to 2.21% as of the end of the measurement period
20-Year Municipal Bond Rate 2.21%

Salary Increases 4.0%

Inflation Rate 2.0%

Mortality Rates 2010 Teachers Retirees Headcount-Weighted Mortality

tables for males and females, projected generationally with
scale MP-2019
Healthcare Cost Trend Rate 5.3% decreasing to 5.0% as of the end of the measurement period
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Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment and
termination, mortality, and the healthcare cost trends.

Projection of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan provisions, as understood by
the employer and participating members, and include the type of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and
the historical pattern of sharing benefit costs between the employer and participating members. The actuarial methods
and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effect of short-term volatility in actuarial
accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

Changes to the Total OPEB Liability. Below are the details regarding the total OPEB liability for the measurement period
from June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2020.

Total OPEB
Liability

Balance at June 30, 2019 S 50,416,824
Changes for the Fiscal Year:

Service Cost 2,778,334
Interest on the Total OPEB Liability 1,856,511
Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience 3,678,706
Changes in Assumptions and Other Inputs 3,102,696
Benefit Payments (2,981,772)
Net Changes 8,434,475
Balance at June 30, 2020 S 58,851,299

Changes of assumptions and other inputs include: a change in the discount rate from 3.49% to 2.21%, a change in
salary scale, a change in the mortality projection, a change in the healthcare cost trend rate from 5.3% at the end
of the prior year to 5.0 at the end of the current year, and changes in the likelihood of participant elections.

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate. The following presents the total OPEB
liability of the District, as well as what the District’s total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount that is 1 percentage point lower (1.21 percent) or 1 percentage point higher (3.21 percent) than the
current discount rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(1.21%) (2.21%) (3.21%)
Total OPEB Liability S 63,392,364 S 58,851,299 S 54,632,976
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Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend. The following presents the total OPEB

liability of the District, as well as what the District’s total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare
cost trend rates that are 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current trend rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(4.00%) (5.00%) (6.00%)

Total OPEB Liability S

53,426,187 S 58,851,299

$ 65,220,767

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB. For the year

ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized OPEB expense of $6,393,506. At June 30, 2020, the District reported
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows

Deferred Inflows
of Resources

4,342,123

Description of Resources

Difference between Expected and Actual S 12,570,646
Experience

Changes of Assumptions or Other Inputs 2,684,543

Total S 15,255,189

4,342,123

Amounts recognized in the deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be

recognized in the OPEB expense as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30

2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Thereafter
Total
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1,758,660
1,758,660
1,758,660
2,119,766
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16. Construction Contracts and Other Commitments

Construction Contracts

The following is a summary of major construction contract commitments remaining at fiscal year-end:

Contract Completed Balance
Project Amount to Date Committed
Site 113H W4 HS S 67,068,737 S 19,831,292 S 47,237,445
Site 80 H-SW-4 HS 72,139,594 28,025,329 44,114,265
Magnolia School 29,000,124 14,038,869 14,961,255
Meadow Woods MS 12,895,128 3,201,675 9,693,453
Jones HS 20,950,691 14,460,206 6,490,485
Boone HS 38,305,675 32,946,394 5,359,281
Discovery MS 7,687,908 2,494,639 5,193,269
Lakeville ES/Riverdale ES 5,810,260 1,493,148 4,317,112
Total S 253,858,117 S 116,491,552 S 137,366,565

Encumbrances

Appropriations in governmental funds are encumbered upon issuance of purchase orders for goods and services. Even
though appropriations lapse at the end of the year, unfilled purchase orders of the current year are carried forward
and the next year’s appropriations are likewise encumbered.

The following is a schedule of encumbrances remaining at fiscal year-end:

Major Funds:
General S 33,791,345

Capital Projects - Local Capital Improvement Tax 79,554,242
Capital Projects - Other Capital Projects 192,345,725
Special Revenue - Other Federal Programs 1,798,945
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 9,149,362
Total Governmental Funds S 316,639,619

17. Risk Management Programs

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District relies on sovereign immunity and therefore does
not procure general liability or automobile insurance. Other lines of coverage are being provided on a self-insured basis
subject to specified retentions. The District has contracted with claims administrators to administer these self-insurance
programs, including the processing, investigating and payment of claims.

A liability was actuarially determined to cover estimated incurred but not reported insurance claims payable at June
30, 2020. Liabilities for incurred losses to be settled by fixed or reasonably determinable payments over a long period
of time are reported at their present value using an investment yield rate of 1.8% as determined by a review of the
District’s interest rates received from intergovernmental pooled investment funds and government securities. These
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liabilities are $16,437,727 at June 30, 2020. Settled claims resulting from the risks described above have not exceeded
into the excess commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

The District provides employee group health and life insurance. The group health plan is self-insured through the
Employee Benefits Trust and life insurance is obtained through a commercial carrier. Under these plans, the Board
contributes employee premiums as fringe benefits to employees. The employees pay a portion of the costs in the two
premium group health plans while the District pays all of the employee costs in the two basic group health plans.
Premiums for coverages provided for employee dependents and retirees and their dependents are paid in advance by
the employee or retiree. These plans provide for maximum premiums based on the number of participants and
individual or family coverages. The group health plan is administered by third-party administrators that are reimbursed
by the District from a detail record of services provided. There is no stop loss protection on the group health plan. The
District has different funding arrangements with each of the groups that reimburse the claims and healthcare expenses.
The District reported an estimated unpaid claims liability of $17,500,000 in the Internal Service Fund for the group
health insurance program at June 30, 2020.

The following schedule represents the changes in the claims liability for the past two fiscal years for the District’s self-
insurance programs:

Current-Year

June 30, 2019 Claims and June 30, 2020
Beginning Fiscal Changes in Ending Fiscal Year-
Year-End Estimates Claims Payments End
2018-19 S 33,154,273 224,460,396 (226,222,116) S 31,392,553
2019-20 S 31,392,553 247,220,760 (244,675,586) S 33,937,727

18. Litigation and Contingencies

The District is a defendant in numerous lawsuits as of June 30, 2020. It is the opinion of management, after giving
consideration to the District’s related insurance coverage, as well as the Florida statutory limitations on governmental
liabilities on uninsured risks, that the amount of loss resulting from litigation would not be material to the financial
position of the District.

Amounts received or receivable from grantors are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the
federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the
applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by grantors cannot be determined at
this time although the District expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

During 2020 an outbreak of a novel strain of coronavirus (“COVID-19") emerged globally. As a result of the spread
of COVID-19, economic uncertainties have arisen that could negatively impact the District’s revenue operations for
an indeterminable time period. Other financial impacts could occur that are unknown at this time.
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Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditures for
particular purposes.

Food Service Fund — To account for the activities of the District’s food services function. These activities are
primarily funded through local charges and Federal awards.

Miscellaneous Special Revenue Fund — To account for other programs of the District requiring separate
accountability because of legal or regulatory restrictions.
Debt Service Funds

Debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-
term debt principal, interest and related costs.

State Board of Education (SBE) and Capital Outlay Bond Issue (COBI) Fund — To account for the payment of
principal, interest and related costs on the state school bonds issued by the State Board of Education on behalf of
the District. These bonds are payable from the District’s portion of the state-assessed motor vehicle license tax.
Other Debt Service — To account for the payment of principal, interest and related costs for Certificates of
Participation and capital leases.

Capital Projects Funds

Capital project funds are used to account for the financial resources to be used for educational capital outlay
needs, including new construction, renovation and remodeling projects.

Public Education Capital Outlay Fund — To account for capital project activity funded through the State’s Public
Education Capital Outlay program.

Capital Outlay and Debt Service Fund — To account for capital project activity funded by the District’s portion of
the state Capital Outlay and Debt Service program.
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ASSETS

Cash

Investments

Restricted Investments
Accounts Receivable
Interest Receivable

Due From Other Agencies
Inventories

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Salaries and Wages Payable

Accounts Payable

Construction Contracts Payable

Const. Contracts - Retained Percentage

Due to Other Funds

Unearned Revenue

Total Liabilities
Fund Balances:
Spendable:
Restricted
Assigned

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2020
Total Special Revenue Funds
Non-Major Total Food Service Miscellaneous
Governmental Non-Major Fund Special Revenue
Funds Special Revenue Fund
Funds

S 29,625,316 S 5,567,813 S 3,148,422 S 2,419,391
107,158,022 18,185,381 9,228,701 8,956,680

44,177,989 - - -
2,406 2,406 - 2,406

314,179 - - -

9,269,975 9,254,441 9,254,441 -

3,518,022 3,518,022 3,518,022 -
$ 194,065,909  $ 36,528,063 $ 25149586 S 11,378,477
$ 220 $ 220§ - $ 220
820,196 510,688 502,002 8,686

2,377,862 - - -

274,952 - . R

34,971 - - -

398,854 398,854 398,854 -
3,909,172 909,762 900,856 8,906

178,787,166 24,248,730 24,248,730 -
11,369,571 11,369,571 - 11,369,571
190,156,737 35,618,301 24,248,730 11,369,571
$ 194,065,909  $ 36,528,063 S 25149586 S 11,378,477
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ASSETS

Cash

Investments

Restricted Investments
Accounts Receivable
Interest Receivable

Due From Other Agencies
Inventories

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Salaries and Wages Payable
Accounts Payable
Construction Contracts Payable
Const. Contracts Pay. - Retained Percentage
Due to Other Funds
Accrued Interest Payable
Unearned Revenue

Total Liabilities
Fund Balances:
Spendable:
Restricted
Assigned

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2020
(continued)

Debt Service Funds

Total State Board of Other Debt
Non-Major Education (SBE) Service
Debt Service and Capital Outlay Funds
Funds Bond Issue
(COBI) Fund
S 20,846,386 S - S 20,846,386
77,719,624 16,005 77,703,619
44,177,989 - 44,177,989
314,179 - 314,179
S 143,058,178 S 16,005 S 143,042,173
$ - $ - $ -
34,971 - 34,971
2,117 2,117 -
37,088 2,117 34,971
143,021,090 13,888 143,007,202
143,021,090 13,888 143,007,202
S 143,058,178 S 16,005 S 143,042,173
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June 30, 2020
(continued)

Capital Projects Funds

Total Non-Major Public Education Capital Outlay
& Debt Service

Capital Projects

Funds Fund
ASSETS
Cash 3,211,117 S 3,211,117
Investments 11,253,017 11,253,017
Accounts Receivable - -
Interest Receivable - -
Due From Other Agencies 15,534 15,534
Inventories - -
Total Assets 14,479,668 S 14,479,668
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Salaries and Wages Payable - S -
Accounts Payable 309,508 309,508
Construction Contracts Payable 2,377,862 2,377,862
Construction Contracts Payable - Retained Percentage 274,952 274,952
Due to Other Funds - -
Unearned Revenues - -
Total Liabilities 2,962,322 2,962,322
Fund Balances:
Spendable:
Restricted 11,517,346 11,517,346
Assigned - -
Total Fund Balances 11,517,346 11,517,346
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 14,479,668 S 14,479,668

82



ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
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Total Special Revenue Funds
Non-Major Total Food Service Miscellaneous
Governmental Non-Major Fund Special Revenue
Funds Special Revenue Fund
Funds
REVENUES
Federal Direct Sources:
Federal Direct S 1,700,435 S 19,000 S 19,000 S -
Total Federal Direct 1,700,435 19,000 19,000 -
Federal Through State Sources:
Food Service 95,783,803 95,783,803 95,783,803 -
Total Federal through State 95,783,803 95,783,803 95,783,803 -
State Sources:
Food Service 1,355,290 1,355,290 1,355,290 -
CO&DS Withheld for SBE/COBI Bond 632,975 - - -
CO&DS Distribution 7,537,030 - - -
Public Education Capital Outlay 7,822,658 - - -
Total State Sources 17,347,953 1,355,290 1,355,290 -
Local Sources:
Food Service 8,655,754 8,655,754 8,655,754 -
Interest Income 5,844,110 559,636 559,636 -
Other Local Sources 8,020,872 8,020,872 2,146,033 5,874,839
Total Local Sources 22,520,736 17,236,262 11,361,423 5,874,839
Total Revenues S 137,352,927 S 114,394,355 S 108,519,516 S 5,874,839
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ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020
(continued)

Debt Service Funds

Total State Board of Other
Non-Major Education (SBE) Debt Service
Debt Service and Capital Outlay Fund
Funds Bond Issue
(COBI) Fund
REVENUES
Federal Direct Sources:
Federal Direct Sources S 1,681,435 S - S 1,681,435
Total Federal Direct 1,681,435 - 1,681,435
Federal Through State Sources:
Food Service - - -
Total Federal through State - - -
State Sources:
Food Service - - -
CO&DS Withheld for SBE/COBI Bond 632,975 632,975 -
CO&DS Distribution - - -
Public Education Capital Outlay - - -
Total State Sources 632,975 632,975 -
Local Sources:
Food Service - - -
Interest Income 4,888,808 - 4,888,808
Other Local Sources - - -
Total Local Sources 4,888,808 - 4,888,808
Total Revenues S 7,203,218 S 632,975 S 6,570,243
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ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

REVENUES
Federal Direct Sources:
Federal Direct Sources

Total Federal Direct

Federal Through State Sources:

Food Service
Total Federal through State

State Sources:
Food Service

CO&DS Withheld for SBE/COBI Bond

CO&DS Distribution

Public Education Capital Outlay

Total State Sources
Local Sources:
Food Service
Interest Income
Other Local Sources

Total Local Sources

Total Revenues

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

(continued)

Capital Projects Funds

Total Non-Major
Capital Projects

Public Education
Capital Outlay

Capital Outlay
& Debt Service

Funds Fund Fund

s -8 - -
7,537,030 - 7,537,030

7,822,658 7,822,658 -
15,359,688 7,822,658 7,537,030
395,666 - 395,666
395,666 - 395,666
S 15,755,354 S 7,822,658 7,932,696
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ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

(continued)

Total Special Revenue Funds
Non-Major Total Food Service Miscellaneous
Governmental Non-Major Fund Special Revenue
Funds Special Revenue Fund
Funds
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction 504,136 S 504,136 S - S 504,136
Student Support Services 5,693 5,693 - 5,693
Instructional Media Services 50,797 50,797 - 50,797
Instruction and Curriculum Development 3,062 3,062 - 3,062
Instructional Staff Training Services 65,187 65,187 - 65,187
Instructional Related Technology 974 974 - 974
General Administration 963 963 - 963
School Administration 164,022 164,022 - 164,022
Facilities Acquisition & Construction 262,237 1,532 - 1,532
Fiscal Services 412 412 - 412
Food Services 121,235,809 121,235,809 121,226,272 9,537
Central Services 60,248 60,248 - 60,248
Student Transportation Services 36,833 36,833 - 36,833
Operation of Plant 9,019 9,019 - 9,019
Maintenance of Plant 11,352 11,352 - 11,352
Community Services 5,163,074 5,163,074 - 5,163,074
Capital Outlay:
Facilities Acquisition & Construction 13,523,774 904 - 904
Other Capital Outlay 3,768,774 3,768,774 3,742,129 26,645
Debt Service:
Principal 44,795,225 - - -
Interest and Fiscal Charges 45,389,566 - - -
Total Expenditures 235,051,157 131,082,791 124,968,401 6,114,390
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (97,698,230) (16,688,436) (16,448,885) (239,551)
OTHER FINANCIAL SOURCES (USES)
Transfer In 88,592,832 - - -
Transfer Out (7,822,664) - - -
Total Other Financial Sources (Uses) 81,373,152 - - -
Net Change in Fund Balances (16,325,078) (16,688,436) (16,448,885) (239,551)
Fund Balances, Beginning 206,481,815 52,306,737 40,697,615 11,609,122
Fund Balances, Ending 190,156,737 $ 35618301 S 24248730 $ 11,369,571
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ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

(continued)

Debt Service Funds

Total State Board of Other
Non-Major Education (SBE) Debt Service
Debt Service and Capital Outlay Fund
Funds Bond Issue
(COBI) Fund
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction S - S - S -
Student Support Services - - -
Instructional Media Services - - -
Instruction and Curriculum Development - - -
Instructional Staff Training Services - - -
Instructional Related Technology - - -
General Administration - - -
School Administration - - -
Facilities Acquisition & Construction - - -
Fiscal Services - - -
Food Services - - -
Central Services - - -
Student Transportation Services - - -
Operation of Plant - - -
Maintenance of Plant - - -
Community Services - - -
Capital Outlay: -
Facilities Acquisition & Construction - - -
Other Capital Outlay - - -
Debt Service:
Principal 44,795,225 593,000 44,202,225
Interest and Fiscal Charges 45,389,566 656,845 44,732,721
Total Expenditures 90,184,791 1,249,845 88,934,946
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (82,981,573) (616,870) (82,364,703)
OTHER FINANCIAL SOURCES (USES)
Face Value of Refunding Bonds 572,000 572,000 -
Premium on Refunding Bonds 30,984 30,984 -
Transfer In 88,592,832 - 88,592,832
Transfer Out - - -
Total Other Financial Sources (Uses) 89,195,816 602,984 88,592,832
Net Change in Fund Balances 6,214,243 (13,886) 6,228,129
Fund Balances, Beginning 136,806,847 27,774 136,779,073
Fund Balances, Ending $ 143,021,090 S 13,888 $ 143,007,202
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ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

(continued)

Capital Projects Funds

Total Non-Major
Capital Projects
Funds

Public Education
Capital Outlay
Fund

Capital Outlay
& Debt Service
Fund

EXPENDITURES

Current:
Instruction S -
Student Support Services -
Instructional Media Services -
Instruction and Curriculum Development -
Instructional Staff Training Services -
Instructional Related Technology -
General Administration -
School Administration -
Facilities Acquisition & Construction 260,705
Fiscal Services -
Food Services -
Central Services -
Student Transportation Services -
Operation of Plant -
Maintenance of Plant -
Community Services -

Capital Outlay:
Facilities Acquisition & Construction 13,522,870
Other Capital Outlay -
Debt Service:
Principal -
Interest and Fiscal Charges -

13,522,870

Total Expenditures 13,783,575

13,783,575

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 1,971,779

7,822,658

(5,850,879)

OTHER FINANCIAL SOURCES (USES)
Transfer In -
Transfer Out (7,822,664)

(7,822,664)

Total Other Financial Sources (Uses) (7,822,664)

(7,822,664)

Net Change in Fund Balances (5,850,885)

Fund Balances, Beginning 17,368,231

(6)

(5,850,879)

17,368,225

Fund Balances, Ending S 11,517,346

11,517,346
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REVENUES
Federal Direct:
Federal Direct

Total Federal Direct

Federal Through State Sources:
Food Service

Total Federal through State

State Sources:
Food Service

Total State Sources
Local Sources:
Food Service
Interest Income
Other Local Sources
Total Local Sources
Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES
Current:

Food Service

Capital Outlay:
Other Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance, Beginning

Fund Balance, Ending

ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOOD SERVICE - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Food Service

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)

$ - - $ 19,000 $ 19,000
- - 19,000 19,000
116,761,908 116,761,908 95,783,803 (20,978,105)
116,761,908 116,761,908 95,783,803 (20,978,105)
1,311,752 1,311,752 1,355,290 43,538
1,311,752 1,311,752 1,355,290 43,538
11,249,835 11,249,835 8,655,754 (2,594,081)

- - 559,636 559,636

167,352 167,352 2,146,033 1,978,681
11,417,187 11,417,187 11,361,423 (55,764)
129,490,847 129,490,847 108,519,516 (20,971,331)
134,552,567 129,287,382 121,226,272 8,061,110
- 5,265,185 3,742,129 1,523,056
134,552,567 134,552,567 124,968,401 9,584,166
(5,061,720) (5,061,720) (16,448,885) (11,387,165)
(5,061,720) (5,061,720) (16,448,885) (11,387,165)

40,697,615 40,697,615 40,697,615 -
$ 35,635,895 35,635,895 ¢ 24,248,730 S (11,387,165)
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ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL
OTHER FEDERAL PROGRAMS - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Other Federal Programs

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES

Federal Direct S - S 4,500,000 S 3,759,403 S (740,597)

Total Federal Direct - 4,500,000 3,759,403 (740,597)
Federal Through State Sources:

Other Federal Through State Sources - 245,345,540 144,956,051 (100,389,489)
Total Federal through State - 245,345,540 144,956,051 (100,389,489)
Total Revenues - 249,845,540 148,715,454 (101,130,086)

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Instruction - 135,869,679 61,749,924 74,119,755

Student Support Services - 19,716,559 16,795,700 2,920,859

Instructional Media Services - 295,304 273,980 21,324

Instruction and Curriculum Development - 35,143,181 30,093,189 5,049,992

Instructional Staff Training Services - 31,726,160 18,781,360 12,944,800

Instructional Related Technology - 294,928 275,112 19,816

General Administration - 11,021,307 5,730,687 5,290,620

School Administration - 797,954 617,982 179,972

Fiscal Services - 111,011 90,362 20,649

Central Services - 66,316 44,207 22,109

Student Transportation Services - 9,549,113 9,132,860 416,253

Operation of Plant - 560,222 441,623 118,599

Community Services - 3,497,477 3,492,139 5,338

Capital Outlay:

Other Capital Outlay - 1,196,329 1,196,329 -

Total Expenditures - 249,845,540 148,715,454 101,130,086

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures - - - _

Net Change in Fund Balance - - - -

Fund Balance, Beginning - - - _

Fund Balance, Ending S - $ - $ - $ -
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ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL

MISCELLANEOUS - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Other - Special Revenue Fund

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Local Sources:

Other Local Sources S - S 5,874,839 S 5,874,839 S -
Total Local Sources - 5,874,839 5,874,839 -
Total Revenues - 5,874,839 5,874,839 -

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Instruction - 747,669 504,136 243,533

Student Support Services - 12,220 5,693 6,527

Instructional Media Services - 71,846 50,797 21,049

Instruction and Curriculum Development - 4,330 3,062 1,268

Instructional Staff Training Services - 124,627 65,187 59,440

Instructional Related Technology - 7,283 974 6,309

General Administration - 11,173 963 10,210

School Administration - 305,918 164,022 141,896

Facilities Acquisition & Constructior - 5,972 1,532 4,440

Fiscal Services - 1,975 412 1,563

Food Services - 115,514 9,537 105,977

Central Services - 166,255 60,248 106,007

Student Transportation Services - 55,384 36,833 18,551

Operation of Plant - 23,201 9,019 14,182

Maintenance of Plant - 28,916 11,352 17,564

Community Services - 10,123,422 5,163,074 4,960,348

Capital Outlay:

Facilities Acquisition & Constructior - 904 904 -

Other Capital Outlay - 26,645 26,645 -
Total Expenditures - 11,833,254 6,114,390 5,718,864

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures - (5,958,415) (239,551) 5,718,864
Net Change in Fund Balance - (5,958,415) (239,551) 5,718,864
Fund Balance, Beginning - 11,609,122 11,609,122 -
Fund Balance, Ending S - S 5,650,707 S 11,369,571 S 5,718,864
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ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET TO ACTUAL
STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION AND CAPITAL OUTLAY BOND ISSUE - DEBT SERVICE FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

State Board of Education and Capital Outlay Bond Issue

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
State Sources:

CO&DS Withheld for SBE/COBI Bond S 644,460 S 644,460 S 632,975 S 11,485
Total State Sources 644,460 644,460 632,975 11,485
Total Revenues 644,460 644,460 632,975 11,485

EXPENDITURES
Debt Service:

Principal 593,000 593,000 593,000 -

Interest and Fiscal Charges 51,460 656,845 656,845 -
Total Expenditures 644,460 1,249,845 1,249,845 -

Deficiency of Revenues
Under Expenditures - (605,385) (616,870) (11,485)
OTHER FINANCIAL SOURCES (USES)
General Long-Term Debt Issued:
Face Value of Refunding Bonds - 572,000 572,000 -
Premiums on Refunding Bonds - 30,984 30,984 -
Total Other Financial Sources (Uses) - 602,984 602,984 -
Net Change in Fund Balance - (2,401) (13,886) (11,485)
Fund Balance, Beginning 27,774 27,774 27,774 -
Fund Balance, Ending S 27,774 S 25,373 S 13,888 S (11,485)
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REVENUES
Federal Direct Sources:
Miscellaneous Revenue

Total Federal Direct Sources

Local Sources:
Interest Income

Total Local Sources

Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES
Debt Service

Principal

Interest and Fiscal Charges

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCIAL SOURCES
Transfer In

Total Other Financial Sources
Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance, Beginning

Fund Balance, Ending

ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET TO ACTUAL
OTHER DEBT SERVICE - DEBT SERVICE FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Other Debt Service - Debt Service Fund

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)

$ 1,789,713 $ 1,789,713 ¢ 1,681,435 S (108,278)
1,789,713 1,789,713 1,681,435 (108,278)
- - 4,888,808 4,888,808
- - 4,888,808 4,888,808
1,789,713 1,789,713 6,570,243 4,780,530
50,107,730 48,264,903 44,202,225 4,062,678
41,292,509 42,529,951 44,732,721 (2,202,770)
91,400,239 90,794,854 88,934,946 1,859,908
(89,610,526) (89,005,141) (82,364,703) 6,640,438
89,207,118 88,601,732 88,592,832 (8,900)
89,207,118 88,601,732 88,592,832 (8,900)
(403,408) (403,409) 6,228,129 6,631,538

136,779,073 136,779,073 136,779,073 -
$ 136,375,665 $ 136,375,664 S 143,007,202  $ 6,631,538
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ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET TO ACTUAL
PUBLIC EDUCATION CAPITAL OUTLAY - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Public Education Capital Outlay (PECO)

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
State Sources:

Public Education Capital Outlay S 8,154,528 S 8,154,528 S 7,822,658 S (331,870)

Total State Sources 8,154,528 8,154,528 7,822,658 (331,870)
Local Sources:

Other Local Sources - - - -
Total Local Sources - - - -
Total Revenues 8,154,528 8,154,528 7,822,658 (331,870)

EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay:

Facilities Acquisition & Constructior
Remodeling and Renovations - - - -
Total Expenditures - - - -

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 8,154,528 8,154,528 7,822,658 (331,870)
OTHER FINANCIAL SOURCES (USES)

Transfer Out (8,154,528) (8,154,528) (7,822,664) 331,864

Total Other Financial Sources (Uses) (8,154,528) (8,154,528) (7,822,664) 331,864

Net Change in Fund Balance - - (6) (6)
Fund Balance, Beginning 6 6 6 -

Fund Balance, Ending $ 6 S 6 S - $ (6)
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REVENUES
State Sources:
CO&DS Distribution

Total State Sources

Local Sources:
Interest Income

Total Local Sources
Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Facilities Acquisition & Constructior
Capital Outlay:
Facilities Acquisition & Constructior

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance, Beginning

Fund Balance, Ending

ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET TO ACTUAL

CAPITAL OUTLAY & DEBT SERVICE - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Capital Outlay & Debt Service

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)

S 7,426,790 S 7,426,790 S 7,537,030 110,240
7,426,790 7,426,790 7,537,030 110,240
- - 395,666 395,666
- - 395,666 395,666
7,426,790 7,426,790 7,932,696 505,906

- 260,705 260,705 -
24,795,015 24,534,310 13,522,870 11,011,440
24,795,015 24,795,015 13,783,575 11,011,440
(17,368,225) (17,368,225) (5,850,879) 11,517,346
(17,368,225) (17,368,225) (5,850,879) 11,517,346

17,368,225 17,368,225 17,368,225 -
$ - $ - $ 11,517,346 11,517,346
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ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET TO ACTUAL
SECTION 1011.71(2), FLORIDA STATUTES, LOCAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT TAX
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Section 1011.71(2), Florida Statutes, Local Capital Improvement Tax Func

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Local Sources:
Ad Valorem Taxes S 224,716,539 S 224,716,539 S 221,594,393 S (3,122,146)
Interest Income - - 9,641,122 9,641,122
Other Local Sources - 3,677,099 65,660 (3,611,439)
Total Local Sources 224,716,539 228,393,638 231,301,175 2,907,537
Total Revenues 224,716,539 228,393,638 231,301,175 2,907,537
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Facilities Acquisition & Constructior - 5,265,401 5,265,400 1
Capital Outlay:
Facilities Acquisition & Constructior 335,238,820 334,800,518 79,769,124 255,031,394
Total Expenditures 335,238,820 340,065,919 85,034,524 255,031,395
Excess Revenues
Over Expenditures (110,522,281) (111,672,281) 146,266,651 257,938,932
OTHER FINANCIAL USES
Transfer Out (108,760,365) (108,760,365) (108,263,414) 496,951
Total Other Financial Uses (108,760,365) (108,760,365) (108,263,414) 496,951
Net Change in Fund Balance (219,282,646) (220,432,646) 38,003,237 258,435,883
Fund Balance, Beginning 301,342,952 301,342,952 301,342,952 -
Fund Balance, Ending S 82,060,306 S 80,910,306 S 339,346,189 S 258,435,883
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ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET TO ACTUAL
OTHER - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Other - Capital Projects

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
State Sources:
Public Education Capital Outlay (PECO) S - S 10,823,007 S 165,327 S (10,657,680)
Total State Sources - 10,823,007 165,327 (10,657,680)
Local Sources:
Local Sales Taxes S 260,225,742 S 277,201,468 S 253,965,180 S (23,236,288)
Impact Fees 79,092,436 64,641,613 65,864,685 1,223,072
Interest Income - - 35,364,306 35,364,306
Miscellaneous - - 8,657,120 8,657,120
Total Local Sources 339,318,178 341,843,081 363,851,291 22,008,210
Total Revenues 339,318,178 352,666,088 364,016,618 11,350,530
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Facilities Acquisition & Construction - 56,889,903 56,889,903 -
Capital Outlay:
Facilities Acquisition & Construction 832,123,299 775,233,397 299,872,322 475,361,075
Total Expenditures 832,123,299 832,123,300 356,762,225 475,361,075
Net Change in Fund Balance (492,805,121) (479,457,212) 7,254,393 486,711,605
Fund Balance, Beginning 1,083,207,562 1,083,207,562 1,083,207,562 -
Fund Balance, Ending S 590,402,441 S 603,750,350 $ 1,090,461,955 S 486,711,605
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ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
June 30, 2020

Internal service funds are used to account for the District’s individual self-insurance programs and for the District’s
print shop.

Self-Insurance Fund — To account for the financial activities of the District’s self-insured property, casualty, liability,
and workers’ compensation programs.

Employee Benefits Fund — To account for the financial activities of the District’s self-insured employee health and
life insurance programs.

Other Internal Service Fund — To account for the financial activities of the District’s other internal service
programs, such as the print shop.
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ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash
Investments
Restricted Investments
Accounts Receivable
Deposits Receivable
Inventory

Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets:
Furniture and Equipment
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Unearned Revenue
Estimated Unpaid Claims

Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities:

Estimated Insurance Claims Payable

Total Long-Term Liabilities
Total Liabilities
NET POSITION
Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
June 30, 2020

Internal Service Funds

Self-Insurance

Employee Other Internal
Total Self-Insurance Benefits Service
S 37,455,106 S 8,239,521 S 29,132,257 S 83,328
144,306,026 31,345,680 112,634,115 326,231
3,971,495 3,971,495 - -
3,822,457 - 3,822,457 -
187,185 117,185 70,000 -
33,377 - - 33,377
189,775,646 43,673,881 145,658,829 442,936
70,484 - - 70,484
(64,258) - - (64,258)
6,226 - - 6,226
189,781,872 43,673,881 145,658,829 449,162
3,265,054 20,302 3,242,896 1,856
61,144,596 - 61,144,596 -
25,924,823 8,424,823 17,500,000 -
90,334,473 8,445,125 81,887,492 1,856
8,012,904 8,012,904 - -
8,012,904 8,012,904 - -
98,347,377 16,458,029 81,887,492 1,856
6,226 - - 6,226
3,971,495 3,971,495 - -
87,456,774 23,244,357 63,771,337 441,080
S 91,434,495 S 27,215,852 S 63,771,337 S 447,306

99



ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Internal Service Funds

Self-Insurance

Employee Other Internal
Total Self-Insurance Benefits Service
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services S 3,509,873 S - S - S 3,509,873
Premium Revenues 233,541,384 7,663,124 225,878,260 -
Other Operating Revenues 193,223 193,223 - -
Total Operating Revenues 237,244,480 7,856,347 225,878,260 3,509,873
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries 903,218 - 475,278 427,940
Employees Benefits 449,802 - 289,165 160,637
Purchased Services 11,732,357 - 9,132,248 2,600,109
Energy Services 42,024 - - 42,024
Material and Supplies 157,390 - - 157,390
Claims Expense 247,220,760 11,026,057 236,194,703 -
Depreciation 3,390 - - 3,390
Total Operating Expenses 260,508,941 11,026,057 246,091,394 3,391,490
Operating Income (23,264,461) (3,169,710) (20,213,134) 118,383
NONOPERATING REVENUES, NET
Miscellaneous Income 4,407,360 1,159,701 3,159,421 88,238
Total Nonoperating Revenues, Net 4,407,360 1,159,701 3,159,421 88,238
Transfer In From Other Funds 16,868,727 - 16,868,727 -
Total Transfers In 16,868,727 - 16,868,727 -
Change in Net Position (1,988,374) (2,010,009) (184,986) 206,621
Total Net Position, Beginning 93,422,869 29,225,861 63,956,323 240,685
Total Net Position, Ending S 91,434,495 S 27,215,852 S 63,771,337 S 447,306
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ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Internal Service Funds

Self-Insurance

Employee Other Internal
Total Self-Insurance Benefits Service
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Interfund Services Provided S 235,503,148 S 7,663,124 S 224,330,132 S 3,509,892
Payments to Suppliers of Goods or Services (247,248,656) (8,841,642) (235,585,992) (2,821,022)
Payments to Employees (1,391,503) - (777,362) (614,141)
Other Operating Cash Receipts 193,223 193,223 - -
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities (12,943,788) (985,295) (12,033,222) 74,729
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments from Other Funds 16,868,727 - 16,868,727 -
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital
Financing Activities 16,868,727 - 16,868,727 -
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment Earnings 4,331,639 1,159,701 3,159,421 12,517
Proceeds from Purchase of Investments (20,451,873) (2,609,414) (17,695,044) (147,415)
Miscellaneous Income 77,111 - - 77,111
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities (16,043,123) (1,449,713) (14,535,623) (57,787)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash (12,118,184) (2,435,008) (9,700,118) 16,942
Cash, Beginning of Year 49,573,290 10,674,529 38,832,375 66,386
Cash, End of Year S 37,455,106 S 8,239,521 S 29,132,257 S 83,328
Reconciliation of Operating Loss to
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities:
Operating Loss S (23,264,461) S (3,169,710) S (20,213,134) S 118,383
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities:
Depreciation 3,390 - - 3,390
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Accounts Receivable (1,548,109) - (1,548,128) 19
Inventory (6,242) - - (6,242)
Accounts Payable 320,303 (60,759) 396,319 (15,257)
Salaries and Wages Payable (38,483) - (12,919) (25,564)
Deferred Revenues 9,044,640 - 9,044,640 -
Estimated Unpaid Claims 2,545,174 2,245,174 300,000 -
Total Adjustments 10,320,673 2,184,415 8,179,912 (43,654)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities S (12,943,788) S (985,295) S (12,033,222) S 74,729
Noncash Investing Activities
Net Increase in the Fair Value of Investments S 1,394,421 S 292,309 S 1,098,930 S 3,182

101



ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
June 30, 2020

Agency funds are Fiduciary Funds and are used to account for resources held by the District in a trustee capacity or
as an agent for individuals or private organizations. These resources include student and club activities funds that
are held in trust for student, athletic, class, club activities, etc.
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ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Agency Funds
Student and Club Activities Funds
July 1, 2019 Additions Deletions June 30, 2020

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents S 11,856,316 S 38,280,920 S 37,589,738 S 12,547,498

Investments 2,795,545 442,640 - 3,238,185

Accounts Receivable, Net 234,995 232,177 234,995 232,177

Inventory 317,299 160,835 317,299 160,835
Total Assets S 15,204,155 S 39,116,572 S 38,142,032 S 16,178,695
Liabilities

Accounts Payable S 290,866 S 333,527 S 290,866 S 333,527

Internal Accounts Payable 14,913,289 38,783,045 37,851,166 15,845,168
Total Liabilities S 15,204,155 S 39,116,572 S 38,142,032 S 16,178,695
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Orlando, FL
Year ended June 30, 2020



ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
STATISTICAL SECTION
June 30, 2020

This part of the Orange County Public Schools’ comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and
required supplementary information says about the District’s overall financial health.

Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the District’s financial
performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the District’'s most significant local
revenues sources, the property tax.

Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the District’s current
levels of outstanding debt and the government’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the
environment within which the District’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information

These schedules contain service data to help the reader understand how the information in the District’s
financial report relates to the services the District provides and the activities it performs.
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ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Fiscal Property Tax Sales Total

Year General Capital Tax

Ended Purposes Projects
June 30, 2020 S 828,706,524 S 221,594,393 S 253,965,180 S 1,304,266,097
June 30, 2019 790,925,998 204,622,003 274,456,899 1,270,004,900
June 30, 2018 753,055,827 189,202,112 257,649,248 1,199,907,187
June 30, 2017 734,596,263 174,573,697 233,873,477 1,143,043,437
June 30, 2016 727,285,169 162,383,635 224,024,409 1,113,693,213
June 30, 2015 648,247,462 139,441,378 209,231,028 996,919,868
June 30, 2014 590,739,237 129,144,730 191,770,163 911,654,130
June 30, 2013 580,088,306 124,764,970 181,301,579 886,154,855
June 30, 2012 585,882,336 124,825,912 170,826,444 881,534,691
June 30, 2011 548,160,633 128,640,288 163,594,345 840,395,266

Source: District Records
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ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS

PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS
2020 Fiscal Year

Fiscal Year
2020
Taxable

Assessed Value (1)

Percentage of
Total Taxable
Assessed Value

Taxpayer Type of Business
Walt Disney Company Tourism
Universal Studios Tourism
Marriott Resorts Tourism
Hilton Resorts Tourism
Duke Energy Electric Utility
Orange Lake CC Tourism
Hyatt Resorts Tourism
Wyndham Resorts Tourism
Vistana/SVO Vistana Village Tourism
Westgate Resorts Tourism

Total taxable assessed value of 10 largest taxpayers
Total taxable assessed value of all other taxpayers

Total taxable assessed value of all taxpayers

Source: Orange County Property Appraiser

$  11,700,000,000 8.96%
3,100,000,000 2.38%
2,000,000,000 1.53%
1,400,000,000 1.07%

930,700,000 0.71%
905,000,000 0.69%
751,000,000 0.58%
750,300,000 0.57%
666,800,000 0.51%
654,400,000 0.50%
22,858,200,000 17.51%
107,664,863,811 82.49%

$  130,523,063,811 100.00%

(1) Information is reported based on the fiscal year in which associated tax revenue is
recognized - e.g., the 2019 tax roll data is reported here for fiscal year 2020, as that is the

period of collection and revenue recognition.
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ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS
2011 Fiscal Year

Fiscal Year

2010 Percentage of

Taxable Total Taxable

Taxpayer Type of Business Assessed Value Assessed Value
Walt Disney Company Tourism S 6,290,000,000 6.47%
Universal Studios Tourism 1,280,000,000 1.32%
Marriott Tourism 1,190,000,000 1.22%
Hilton Resorts Tourism 711,000,000 0.73%
Progress Energy Electric Utility 603,300,000 0.62%
Orange Lake CC Tourism 521,100,000 0.54%
RH Resorts/Rosen Hotels Tourism 442,700,000 0.46%
Seaworld Tourism 406,600,000 0.42%
Wyndham Resorts Tourism 386,700,000 0.40%
Westgate Tourism 385,900,000 0.40%
Total taxable assessed value of 10 largest taxpayers 12,217,300,000 12.57%
Total taxable assessed value of all other taxpayers 84,960,805,307 87.43%
Total taxable assessed value of all taxpayers S 97,178,105,307 100.00%

Source: Orange County Property Appraiser
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ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

Collected to End

Collected to June 30th

of Tax Year End of Tax Fiscal Year

Fiscal Total Current Tax Percent Delinquent Total Percent

Year Tax Levy Collections (1) of Levy Collections (1) Collections (1) of Levy
2019-20 $ 1,109,381,856 991,286,006 89.35 59,014,910 $ 1,050,300,916 94.67
2018-19 1,047,161,616 940,838,111 89.85 54,709,890 995,548,001 95.07
2017-18 987,428,700 913,105,775 92.47 29,152,163 942,257,938 95.43
2016-17 952,603,190 879,959,213 92.37 29,210,747 909,169,960 95.44
2015-16 923,437,986 859,626,103 93.09 30,042,701 889,668,804 96.34
2014-15 817,371,999 757,262,659 92.65 30,426,180 787,688,839 96.37
2013-14 747,793,071 688,181,248 92.03 31,702,719 719,883,967 96.27
2012-13 732,256,944 670,273,519 91.54 34,579,757 704,853,276 96.26
2011-12 737,816,903 670,910,937 90.93 39,797,311 710,708,248 96.33
2010-11 702,663,764 609,015,408 86.67 67,785,514 676,800,922 96.32

Note: Property Taxes become due and payable on November 1st of each year. A four percent

(4%) discount is allowed if taxes are paid in November, with the discounts declining by

one percent (1%) each month thereafter. Accordingly, taxes collected will never be 100%

of the tax levy. Taxes become delinquent on April 1st of each year and tax certificates

for the full amount of any unpaid taxes and assessments must be sold not later than June
1st of each year. Accordingly, the majority of taxes are collected in the fiscal year levied.

(1) Net of allowable discounts

Source: District Records
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ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Governmental Activities (A)

State Board Certificates Total Percentage

Fiscal of Education of Capital Primary of Personal Per

Year Bonds Participation Leases Government Income (B) Capita (B)
2019-20 S 572,000 1,101,976,781 - 1,102,548,781 2.52% 779
2018-19 1,193,000 1,154,813,988 - 1,156,006,988 3.13% 857
2017-18 2,030,000 1,207,189,119 - 1,209,219,119 3.42% 920
2016-17 4,792,000 1,237,972,777 - 1,242,764,777 3.61% 971
2015-16 7,859,000 1,283,016,298 1,899,261 1,292,774,559 4.19% 1,032
2014-15 11,519,000 1,292,614,623 3,722,138 1,307,855,761 4.38% 1,065
2013-14 16,325,000 1,316,597,318 9,403,375 1,342,325,693 4.46% 1,119
2012-13 20,320,000 1,338,804,434 16,389,826 1,375,514,260 4.57% 1,156
2011-12 24,115,000 1,358,421,364 24,620,460 1,407,156,824 4.35% 1,189
2010-11 29,735,000 1,403,357,117 35,180,515 1,468,272,632 4.02% 1,350

Note: The primary government does not have any business-type activities or general obligation outstanding debt.

Source:
(A) District Records
(B) Total Primary Government Debt divided by Personal Income and Population.
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ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
ANTICIPATED CAPITAL OUTLAY MILLAGE LEVY
REQUIRED TO COVER CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION PAYMENTS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Taxable Total Amount Held Net Millage Levy
Fiscal Tax Assessed Annual Lease In Escrow For Annual Lease to Provide
Year Year Value (A) Payment Payment (C) Payment 1.00x Coverage (B)
2019-20 2019 $ 155,510,200 86,367,845 ) - 86,367,845 0.585 Mills
2018-19 2018 130,523,064 86,624,052 - 86,624,052 0.699 Mills
2017-18 2017 131,188,068 81,452,395 - 81,452,395 0.654 Mills
2016-17 2016 121,086,569 85,188,329 - 85,188,329 0.741 Mills
2015-16 2015 112,544,422 86,930,390 - 86,930,390 0.813 Mills
2014-15 2014 96,167,009 94,968,755 - 94,968,755 1.040 Mills
2013-14 2013 89,069,566 101,419,848 - 101,419,848 1.199 Mills
2012-13 2012 85,969,612 86,839,968 - 86,839,968 1.063 Mills
2011-12 2011 86,037,817 107,350,668 - 107,350,668 1.313 Mills
2010-11 2010 88,468,036 107,749,947 - 107,749,947 1.282 Mills
(A) Assessed Value is in Thousands.
(B) Millage rate calculated using 95% of the taxable assessed valuation.

(C) The funds for these payments of the 2005A and 2005B refunding COPs are held in escrow and therefore
are not funded with tax receipts.

Note: Capital lease arrangements financed by Certificates of Participation are not
considered general obligation debt as no specific property tax levy has been
pledged.

Source: District Records

124



(6T-8T0T @PINS 13%00d) SPJ023Y 3I13SIQ WO PAUIRIGO SEM JUSW||0JuF JU3pNIS (3)

"1=USaJJa1¢ WYX S} NSaI21eas /So8ed/JSI/ABU/Sa0.}/A08 SNSUS) Japulj1oe)//:5a33y
neaing snsua) SN 9y} WOy Paule}qo Sem [9AT uolieanp3 ()

*$213513€3S J0geT JO Neaing 40 324nos ay3 Suisn
*JU] ‘eplIO|4-PIAl JO UOISSIWIWOD) JUSWAO|aA3Q JIWOU0I] WO} PauleIqo sem aiey JuswAhojdwaun (J)

213513835 AJUN0) 98uelQ "dU| “epIIOj4-PIIAl O UOISSILUWOY JUBWAO|IAS(Q IIWOUODT WO PAUIRIGO SBM 3WOIU| [BUOSId eHde) a4 (g)

*2U| “epPlIO4-PIIAl JO UOISSIWIWOY JuaWdO[BAS( JIWOU0IT WO PaUIeIqo sem a8y UelpalAl pue uoneindod (v)

1$924N0S

8816 00%'656'779'T 0v0'6LT TET'TL 799°8¥T 6.8°66T ¥16°88 %v'0T 06'SE €TV TES9E 1L6°L80'T T1-0T0C
6916 £6£°980°0%9°T TL8'8LT 80€VL L8191 S98°L1C 0L2'16 %L'8 08°€E TT9'65€'CE €06'€8T'T ¢1-1T0¢C
£VT'6 986°L9%'989'T T9vC8T 015SL ¥667ST 095°90C TL0T6 %69 00'v€ 9ST‘T0T‘0E TTL68TT €1-210C
978'6 86€°9¥S'€C8'T €65'S8T TLY'9L TLS'SST 199°20¢ 5026 %8°S 0T've T19°9L0°0€ T08°66T°T V1-€T0C
v.8°6 7T5'997'6L8'T TYE‘06T ¥988L 90€°6ST [asand 9¥6°00T %0'S 00'€e €78°LE8'6T S66°LTC'T ST-¥10C
08v'6 095°€€8'698'T 6vC'L6T 85.'88 TLY'S8T §69°0C¢ 09896 %07 08°€E 000°988°0€ 96€£°7ST'T 91-9T0C
71001 9Y9°L¥L'SE0'T ove‘e0T 8v6'L6 S¥6°96T 95LT1T 6€€STT %6'€ 08'€e TTS'STY'vE £8€°08T'T £L1-9T0C
SS9°0T 857'S57'80C°C €5T°L0T 219101 059'90¢ 8/9'8T¢ 609'€6 %Y'E 0S've T8L'STE'SE 088'ETET 81-LT0C
060°TT vSTv99°LYE'T S89TTT rET8 902°L8T 8ETVIT 98600T %1€ 08'LE 098°0£69€ L6S6VE'T 61-810¢C
6S8'TT 19T°0v6'8TS'T T0v'CTe €TLTTT ¥00°0C¢ 6€S'9€C 956°0TT %191 0C'se 095°089°€V S TL9'STY'T 0¢-6T0C

juapnis sasuadxg (3) 3uawyjoauz ajenpesn slo|ayoeg 1o0y3s ysiH 1o0y3s ySiH (D) @21ey (v) @8y awodu| (v) uoneindogd JEEVN

19d 150D S3UAIDY looyas ueyy ssa jawAojdwaun uelpay |euosiad |easiy

|ejuBWIUIdN0D () |9na1 uoneanp3

IPIM-JUBWIUIDN0DH

SYVIA TVISId NIL LSV1
SJILSILVLS DINONOD3 ANV JIHdVYO0W3d
STOOHIS JI1gNd ALNNODJ I9NVHO

125



*2U] “epLIoJ4-PIIAl JO UOISSIWWIO) JUaWdO|9AIQ JIWOUO0IF :32IN0S

*$313UNOD B|OUIWAS PUE ‘[0SO ‘@8UBIQ ‘@XeT SIPN|PUI BAUY [EJ1ISEIS UBYIOdOIIBIAl OPUBO

%L1I8'9T YST'68T %1C09T TL8'8LT %120°9T T/8'8LT %L9L°ST TvL'SLT %CEO’LT TT0°L6T

%1750 ot 7€0°9 pliomess
%6850 6 0959 $|00Y2s 21|qnd Ajuno) ej0aso
%950 6 0059 suaa.8jem
%5690 ot 818'L %00L°0 o1 818'L %00L°0 oT 818'L %8L9°0 8 €952 %509°0 8 000°L uawuIaA0D Ajuno) asuelQ
%0TL0 6 €86'L %STL'0 6 €86°L uorjesodio) Jusawulelalul ysng
%V9T'T L 000°€T uiJe pasyyao]
%1580 8 005°6 %8560 L 8L0°TT epLojd [eud) Jo Aysianiun
%5780 8 005'6 %1580 8 005'6 %STL0 6 €86'L %669°0 9 98L'L $]00Yas 21|qnd Ajuno) ajoulwas
%9ST'T L 000°€T %Y9T'T L 000°€T %695°T € 12S'LT *2u| ‘s3aJelA Jadns xijgnd
%890 L 009°L %5550 ot 61Y'9 '2U] ‘sjuednelsay uapleq
%9SS'T S 000°8T (VvO9)uoduty |euoiieusaiu) opuepo
%ILTT 9 00€VT %YOT'T 9 000°€T %YSTT S 000%T %Y8T'T S OTEVT %0TC'T 9 000vT 9.eD Y3|eaH [euolday opuelio
%SYTT S 000¥T %YSTT S 000'vT %Y9T'T 9 000°€T %TSS'T 4 00€°LT %EVI'T € 000°6T BpLIO|4 - OIpN3S [eSIBAIUN
%016'T € £8Y'TT %96V'T 14 00£'9T Heuwem
%8SS'T 14 T2SLT %695'T € 12S°LT %96Y'T 4 00£°9T %6LST € 009°LT %YT9'T 14 89981 (1e3dsoH eprio]4) waisAs yjeaH wuanpy
%868'T [ 6VETT %C16'T [4 6YE'TT %C16'T [ 6VETT %YL6'T 4 0002 %CE6'T [4 LYETT sj0oyds 11qnd Ayuno) adueio
%0ES'S T 00229 %S6T'S T 00085 %S6T°S T 000'8S %1619 T 00069 %86€°9 T 0002 PlHom Asusia yem
juawAhojdwz yuey soako|dw3 awAojdwz uey saakojdw3 juawAhojdwz yuey Aoidi Aoidi yuey Aoidi Aojdi yuey soako|dw3 Jahoidw3

VSWI [e10) jo VSIN [e301 jo VSWI [e30] jO VSWI [e30] jO VSI [e301 j0

a8ejuadiad a8ejuaniad a8ejuadiad a8ejuadiad a8ejuansad

TT-010C <T-T10C €1-210¢ Y1-€10C ST-¥10C
1ea [edsty
%LL0'ST 68L'T6T %666'GT ¥¥Z'v0T %890°9T £9'80C %Ivy LT S/8'9€T %S8€'8T 909°9€T

suaaisjem
%6250 L 89L'9 %8ES'0 8 ¥.8'9 JUBWUIAA0H Auno) a8uelQ
%EES'0 6 0089 |eUOI1BUIDIU| BJIAIDS eIy
%870 ot 6YT‘9 %Yy 0 ot 00§'S 52U ‘sjuednelsay uapleq
%CLY'0 6 7€0'9 %597°0 6 7€0'9 plomeas
%ISY°0 ot vLL'S %€69°0 8 000°6 %€99°0 6 000°6 %90 ot 0008 UIHBN pa3yxd07
%0190 ot 08Z'8 %ES9'0 6 00v'8 suonn|os JuswAo|dw3 a2unosay
%ETS0 8 ¥95°9 %LT6'0 L €E8'TT %EOL0 L vET'6 %869°0 8 9LY'6 %80T 8 €8Y'ET epLo[d [e3Ud) Jo Aysianiun
%LOV'T S 000'8T %0TV'T S 000'8T %SCET L 000'8T %66€'T L 000'8T (vv09)Hoduly [euoneusaiu] opuelio
%veST S €8L°61 %LSY'T S €8L°61 %LES'T 9 €8L°61 U] ‘s1ddjeIA Jadns X1|gnd
%60'T 9 000vT %81E'T 9 878'91 %997'T 9 Z€0'6T %107’ T 9 Z€0'6T %E6S'T S 0050 YiesH opuelio
%605°T 4 ¥0E‘6T %66S'T 14 €11°0C %089°T 4 ST8TC %TET'T [4 656'8C %569'T 4 ST8TC WiA1sAS Y1|e3H ISHUIAPY
WLYL'T 4 LYVETT %0SL'T [4 LYE'TT %IL'T € LYVETT %1S8'T € SYT'sT %166'T € S79'sT sjooyds d11qnd Ayuno) adueio
%E9S'T € 00007 %SY9'T € 000'TZ WILLT [4 000°€7 %1v8'T 14 000'ST %020°C 4 00097 (1589U0D) 14053y OpUBIQ [ESIBAIUN
%S8L'S T 000vZ %L6L'S T 000'vL %TC9'S T 000°€L %EJV'S T 00Z'vL %LTB'S T 000'SZ pliom Asusig ylem
awAhojdw3 juey saako|dw3 juawhojdw3 juey saakojdw3 awAhojdw3y jyuey Aoid Aoid juey Aoid Aoy jyuey saako|dw3 J19kojdw3

VSIAI [e10] JO VSI |e10] jo VSIAI [e10] Jo VSIAl [e301 Jo VSI [e10] jO

28ejuadiad 28ejuadiad 28ejuadiad 28ejuadiad EX:CUERIEN]

91-ST0Z L1-910C 8T-LT0T 61-810C 0zZ-6T0C
1ea |edsly

SYVIA TVISI4 N3L LSV
(VSIAI) V3YV T¥DLLSILYLS NV1I10dOH13IN OANYIHO
SY3IAOTdING TVdIONIYd

S100HIS J119Nd ALNNOD I9NVHO

126



%2988 VELEL 8T'TOL £STYL v9°0TL vETIL 88'769 96'789 67769 69'199 78199 433 - S6T'18 0961
%88'65 09'76€ 1STEY v6'SEY 6€778Y LTULYY W99y 95°69 79'967 0z°08% sTeey 659 - 06706 9€6T
%b0°'6L 6T'S6€ 88'vTY Lo'LLE 11°007 [4744 TLLSY STOvY sTvey 4437 TL6EL 00S v 04519 2661
%€ ST°079 07'6€9 11799 75959 16779 19'989 vST0L 89'ETL 99'TvL YE'EOL 8SL L T€000T 000T
%TEITT 67'EL6 £8°008 S9'L59 - - - - - - - L€8 9T vLT'E6 L10T
%SET6 8T'8YL 16'88L SO¥8L 19°T%8 50288 81°598 €E'SER 00°8€8 S6'ST8 LTovL 618 8 915901 1961
%0t°80T 66'L59 88'879 90'S0L 9ULTLL L8'TT8 ST'6L8 7€'898 05'788 §£'598 ST'vL8 £09 ST ST9TTT 6661
%v0°88 WL 16859 1L°ST9 86T€9 99%€9 87°879 679 9TTIL 792, STLVL 99L - 9S€L8 956T
%65 6L 9TYIS 85'VES Y8'TES vLIS 98'555 00'L6S 05295 15129 69'8T9 €7'8T9 99 4 866'S0T 8661
%91°89 0r'6TS 05°025 97°0€S SLYES 20°55S LO°€0S 98895 09°185 9L°ETS LE'BES 9L T LTT'98 8561
%YETL 19'99% 6L'9€S 6TYS LO'0LS S0'9T9 02'509 L'085 ST'819 91'929 18'885 Sv9 v 0€0'6L L96T
%ESLL L7958 0r'ssS 67°TY9 €0°00L T6'LL9 657989 19'1L9 v6'859 €L'EY9 99'T29 €L - 68516 7561
%TEEL 15°06 S0'76S L8'0€9 58'809 ¥8'919 8L°€E9 18'885 9£°509 76'985 £5'995 699 v €5T'LTT 6661
%1669 ¥8'ETY T7'€€9 0T'T69 S6'98L 1€918 L9YL8 50'588 81°€06 65°€58 0T'788 8.8 0 6T LET 6661
%Th'8S ¥1°569 98'785 Te6EE 8y IEY LT'8ET LETST 87'297 T€'55T 86'LST YS'YST 06T'T - 9€€'09T 0s6T
%SLLL 4344 9T L6E 66'€EY ET'6EY LT'96€ LSYEY €9°€SY or'ory LT'8TY 0675y 0es 44 8€7'S9 0S6T
%EELET 89'6LT'T osy'T  TTEETT T7'286 8.'998 TLTLTT vL'6L6 98'66L S9vTL ¥2'999 658 6€ S96'T0T 600C
%SE €] 15°€69 TLYvL ¥Z:09L SO'60L EVYIL 0S'¥0L TL'769 15°0TL 9€E°0EL 0679 433 € 8€0'6L 1661
%08'LY LY'STE €L°L9€ $5'69€ 9,187 0S°€TE 18'vEE 00'€9€ 8€'9TE SE'STE L 099 - 88118 L96T
%0T'9€T SETET'T OE'9EE'T  8SPSO'T £5°008 09°Z8L - - - - - 431 43 67878 9107
%L9'TTT 8Y'568 09'616 £8'8.8 91°088 78'868 7€'798 L5658 €578 vS'66L €6'LYL 9€L 34 886'S6 66T
%YS'SE 96'1ST €6'€97 Y0197 0€'€ST 97’197 12°597 ST°08T £0'997 89'657 67°LTT 60L - S61°9S 0061
%Y0'TL TT'SLE 68'09€ 1768 L8TTY v6'sTy 0T'sSY 6€°€9Y 05'59% 15Ty L8'0EY 875 - 9€9'69 v96T
%L1'89 ey [4:X744 wty 10'TEY Jix447 £€°08Y 15°58Y £8'90S 67°07S vL°95S 79 - SYT'9L 7661
%TS'8L 07'565 $0'TEY 8L'6€9 11°989 86'€9L LTELL LO'€9L EL'EEL sToTL [4:347 85L - ¥25's6 9961
%7865 69'STS 87'109 £9'665 L9189 vo'veL €5'87L 6€7L59 0T'vs9 89°0TL - 798 - 701'86 1102
%5679 76'92S YTr0S SETES yT'81S IWTES 6T°6YS T5'L8Y TS TLTIS SE6TS L€8 S 962'L8 8561
%YY'E6 87'80L LEBEL 0€°8SL 8TYVL L5989 08'5%9 6L°8%9 18°29L 95°8YL S6'S9L 8SL 8 Twr'se 1002
%1089 81°59Y LETYS veeLs £0'885 TL'6L9 87'689 S5'6Y9 IW'TEY YTSTY 6T'Tsy 89 € 99778 9561
%S°89 15°L1S SLTLS 86729 LS°6L9 or'viL 9TTIL T8°0L9 ST°029 Y07€9 €€'759 9sL S SYY'v6 5002
%98'68 189 75969 YO TTL 96°9%L SS'8YL 67°€69 90059 8979 0%'€09 LY'TLS 8SL 6 769'76 €007
%YTETT €€'520'T 00%T0'T  64°£06 TLYTT 86'€96 - - - - - 43 14 YLE6L 910T
%1616 69'79L TTS8L £6'808 €9'£08 67°TSL T€'S8L 19°26L 88'0LL 95°0vL S€'569 4] v STSY0T 56T
%ET'OTT S8'97L 9T'9TL 19'669 0z'6L9 YE'LS9 €0'5Y9 58'909 €0'729 0r'9€9 19'T€9 099 ot Ley'sL LL6T
%ETTL vT0LY 8T'STY 6L78€ €8°26Y ST°955 LL7TT9 SSTY9 06'585 8T'7€9 9€°58S 099 - ove'sL 0961
%TTTIT T'959 96'5€9 7729 00'929 0T'%09 0£°€09 TT'S8S YL TT9 9L'T19 59'0€9 585 L 15606 v96T
%ET'EY TSELY 1871 247009 0%'£59 60°L0L L9VTL S6'8YL 98'8vL T9'TSL LELEL 0SL 8 LS6'76 1567
%9L°20T 96'28Y 6L°€6 29°06 85°05Y oT'LEY 44 £6'98Y €T°66Y €1°905 88'Y1S oLy 0 60v's8 €861
%156 6€T6L 96'68L 8L7ESL €6°L9L €5°L8L 6LEVL €6'EVL 69'LTL 8LIEEL YEVYL €8 - S9E'60T 9661
%LT'88 78'78S 05795 68'655 €9'ELS 19'61S TTT6S £8'895 0T'T09 78'619 L6'76S L29 9 19518 vS6T
%S0°€9 98'0€S SSPES 4344 LETLS 16°0€0'T 00°€70'T 9£°00T'T 60'880'T ¥9'850'T 79'050'T 423 - 50666 6961
%5916 vS'T9L SE'GEL £6'00L L6'869 99'TEL 9T'IL 6€°LSL 9L'8LL S6'99L 10'908 433 - vrL08 7661
%90°€L 6L°€SS €8'L65 8S'ELS YI'E6S £5°009 8€'SY9 €0'7L9 68'L0L S0TLL 19'79L 8SL 4 £06'S6 000T
%06'L9 LL°06S €T°219 85129 69'629 8T'T69 S8'EEL veEvTL LO'YYL [4:172 [4:172 o8 14 0£6'66 0961
%9599 88'10S 08'80S 98'88Y TLL0s 9£°02S 6L°€6Y y1°087 ¥2295 LT'SSS S6'9LY vSL T 189'06 656T
%0108 07'999 90'6TL 68'889 TO€TL 56'889 1€'529 6L'629 9r'Tr9 €9'T65 79158 433 4 986'€6 6561
%TLES €E°LOL - - - - - - - - - Sv8 S8T'v6 5002
%6898 W'6TL SEV8L 15728 11106 8L'TL8 90'978 86'76L SOYLL 9€'29L TT'S9L 88 6 058°00T 9002
%898 9L%59 S6'6L9 w's99 LT°995 €0°£8S LT°S8S €E°E8S ST'T9S 00°6%S 60'6LS vSL 4 €15'76 1002
%Tt'68 96'£09 10'2LS €€'595 00'609 S0'LT9 10'929 66019 91 66'T2S STT6Y 089 S €€6'€8 0961
%1605 SLLY €0°0SS 65865 68785 £8'S85 9T°£95 S9'6€S 20205 £V'62S LTLES 8€6 - S89'LTT 0961
%LE'T6 8€'€06 6T°€96 ¥5'220'T 87'970'T LL7290'T 8T'€S0'T 85°£96 w86 18'€66 ¥2°986 8.6 v 00v'8€ET 9561
%L8'6L 6T°LL9 80709 95'7€9 56'885 8E'665 s 99'1LS 00°0SS L8'78S YLY9S 88 - v0Z't6 1661
%L9'V6 8€'T6L 9UTT  S0TS0'T €L'9Y8 - - - - - - L€8 z 621'v6 L10C
%0E"S6 vv'208 0T'9€8 0T'SYT'T 0€'T6T'T TS'SLTT LE'99TT SL9LT'T 6L'EST'T 9€'LTT'T 79'090'T ws 4% 879's6 ¥S6T
%ESTL 76'90S T£'855 80'SLS 0T'vLS PrYSS YE'8LS L5565 06'L19 09°0€9 88'€T6 969 - SE6'V6 9561
%bt'86 ozTrL LE'9Y8 9T'IY6 1L'9€6 YO'EVE 9r'0r6 6776 97'926 05'6.8 09178 vSL A 128'€6 1002
%EE €] ¥9°T00'T 06'708 - - - - - - - - 2071 - 68y'2LT €561
%86'86 vL°€08 T7'9LL LETIL 9v°TSL TE0SL 0T'LSL 9S°LyL TTOSL LTYVL 15°80L s v 787'90T 0661
%L8'€0T 71798 9L°€8L 6T°69L €L°68L S6'09L Y7799 SOTTL 86'L0L 6€°L0L 17'659 0€8 - 117'€6 8961
%8E'S6 YT'8EL £€'608 TTLEs SY'66L 98'8LL SL'E6L TY'€9L TULIL 87°059 55'809 vLL 9T 99€'86 5002
%TT'T8 IW'6TS 05'7SS 89°0VS v9'vYS £V°0YS Tses 18118 ¥9°T6Y 00'T8Z'€¥ 65005 79 S €89'LL 8961
%000 - - - - - - - 05'597 £0'587 06'T1E 243 - €22'0L 96T
%000 - - - L0'66C 89'TTE €T'8TE TL'60€ 50'65C 0z°€9Z 34344 LSy 6T €09'€S se6T
%000 - - - 17'597 9T'ELT 20792 ¥2°59T ST'S9¢C €L7TLT 96'65C 80€ vT 0TZ'8€ 99671
%000 - - - 000 vv'20T 0T'681T 09'0T2 0L'66T LT'EET T7'6€T 08¢ T YEETI 96T
%00°0 - - - 87°CST 2100 W8T 7995 96'SET TEVIT 08761 062 ot w6y 9z61T
%000 - - - LL8YT 10'992 ¥9°€0€ S9'GEE €5'TYE oLIE 0T°962 $0S S 6€T'V9 Ly6T
%000 - - T0vvE 0T"9LE 68'65€ SL0TY S6vTY SY'9Ty 96'9Zy TEETY ors L T18'LS 0961
%000 - - - - - €9'290'T LSTHO'T YEI6 20'9€6 95°096 855 6 T6T'E8 8861
Ayoede 026107 61-810C 81-L10C £1-9102 91-ST0Z ST-vT02 vI-€102 €1-210C Z1-110Z 11-0T0Z Ayoedes sa|qeod (2) 33e3004 (1) 2210335
FLEUERICY] 61-8T0C aienbs wuad uj pase|d

SYVIA OT LSV1

V1va LNJWTI0YN3 LNITVAINDI JNIL-11N4 '8 NOILVINHOANI ONIA1iNg 100HIS
STO0HIJS JI19Nd ALNNOJ I9NVIO0

s31j2r01

S3 Heypo]

S3 49Ay BN

$3 591yD uome]
$3>led ajeaine]
$3 Jo15edUE]
S33|jnaxe

S3 juowdxeq

S3 Asunym el
S3 uoiss e
3 BIj2AS e
S3 JaAjiS e

S3 984099 aye]
S3 wap el

S3 owo) el

53 Asuueyiy

53 8uISs0.1) SaUBI)Y
53 Suno, uyor
S3 aueq Aan|

$3 92uapuadapul
$3 32240 SI91UNH
S3 piopa8uny
S33s30||1H
(jooyas Jeinpo) 53 s3eQ UIPPIH
53 9assemely

S3 SpooM Yiksiog
S3 pooma|8u3

$3 JoAespul
$3U03Is3PPI3

S3 axe7ise3

S3 359N 5,9|3e3
$3>934) 9j8e3
$3 9e7 weaiq
s3sdijiyd g

$3 $9.0yS JaA0Q
$3 youawwoq
$3193.4s pJe|lid
$3 poomiaag

53 s8unds ssaudAy
53 Aemuo)

3 elquinjo)

§3 s8unds Ae;y
s3snaD

S3 mesexdlydy

s3 Asuayd

s3 euesed

S3 M3IA B)3se)
$39340 3psed
S3103Wey

S3 a41ysyooug

8- 100425 Jauyuelg

53 smopeaj Aeg

53 axe Aeg

(53484 Uognpny Ajjawioy) s34 umpleg
S3ed e3jezy

53 uojeny

8- %/ed uognpny

8- 100yS 33p1Yy JoquY

53 exdody

3 Janopuy

S3 ewoly

(21d sa40ys uoiBuiysem) S3 sIYSIDH puowydly
S39)IseD auid

53 Aaxen

S3 Asjey

$3 @nuaAy puesn

(Awapeoy payio opueQ) §3 32210 usa4

S$3 @duenng

S3 euodue))

127



%TT'96 8€'665 S6'065 £9'585 8ETY9 19°019 8765 SSTSS S6'795 7665 8£'90S €29 4 66778 LS6T
%8 TTT 79'800'T 09'S00'T  0L°€96 v£°086 816 LL9L8 €2°0€8 00'858 €6'L€8 €€°080'T 88 9T 88.'88 9007
%YL 56 20'T0T'T LTYOTT  L69T'T €9'L6T'T 9€'06T'T TTTITT 8T'€8T'T 78'860'T 05'580'T 88'7S0'T 0ST'T 6T YEL'00T 9002
%6558 06'599 69'659 8L'799 88'STL 90'99L €8'97L 16'6L9 09°019 9€'799 LL70V9 8LL 14 L9E°00T 6961
%58'S0T T§TeT'T YTYS8T'T  LO'8KT'T T96T'T TWLET'T T90rT'T 20°02T'T 99'85T'T Ly'8YT'T 09°22T'T SST'T 43 £08'69T 1661
%678 LEVTL TLS0L Y8'9EL v0°TSL weL YETEL 68°07L ELELL 86'€€8 65'8LL 443 6 LLO'Y6 8961
%165 S6'TSY ¥5'59Y LEVEY LT'E8S 0€'229 65'619 67'809 89'9€9 66'L79 L0709 S9L - 887'88 €661
%6 T 97'80T'T 6T°790'T  90°996 8'€T6 SY'ov8 9'95L Ly'T0L LSTTL TL6YET SE'80€'T L9 67 566'86 5007
%0T°€8 05'STY 78'65 o€'6Ty oT'9zy S5'6TY €E'SLE €SYTE 78'08C TT0EE £7'65€ 00S - L0T'LL 9€6T
%EEEET €€°680'T €8'800'T 0876 89°076 97'988 or'TE’ oT'THL 86°70L 6€°LEY - L18 [44 820901 1102
%S0°L8 85'87L weesL YT'65L - - - - - - - L€8 - 092's0T L10T
%LE VL 61929 6929 79069 EE6TL TEYS9 T €5°T0L W rr9 20629 95°029 w8 - L6186 800C
%98'SL 86'TLS 95785 65°ELS T5'8LS £T°5Y9 8E'TE9 10'509 €9'709 S5'L85 TS'€SS vSL 8 910's6 00T
%9€°90T 61°908 78098 168 19°658 ETVLL €5°6TL 0L/9L9 TE'S0L 89'S0L 8T'LIL 8SL 6T 588'€6 00T
%LL 88 08'7€6 87'268 £7°088 79'808 - - - - - - €50'T - 96T VYT L10T
%ST'98 00'069 95°TEL IEEL SS6YL 06°T2L SSTIL 9L'EY9 rIL S8TTL 1T€TL 008 € 98€'76 8861
%VETYT €6'9TC'T TTT6CT 86'00€'T 05'STT'T 90'69T'T L6'6CT'T TLY90'T ¥8'9£0'T 0L'0%0'T SE'ES6 198 9z SST'20T 66T
%TYETT 856 - - - - - - - - - sv8 8 L10°€6 S10T
%87°09 £€°8TY 10°00S TS'SLY 86'€0S 19°08 v9'8YS ¥8'20S 09'99% 08'ELY TE LYY 769 - T69°LL 9561
%6L'78 75'589 €9°€TL 8YvEL TTLSL 00'€08 SO'TI8 LL69L T7'ST0'T 6T7L6 €0'756 878 - 918's6 £00T
%6508 85'7L9 S£'599 ¥9°269 50'829 0T'8v9 T9TEL 19'LEL 00°00Z 8TLLL 68'67L L€8 1 €SL'V6 6861
%LTSL 09'905 78°08 96'L8Y 6979t wwy 6TLLY 8072 6'7SS 99'909 6'£09 €9 - £6v's8 56T
%LS'€E0T 06'£98 L8'LT6 vS'LE6 LO'ET6 9€'706 12668 £8'798 ¥T°08L 82°09L €6'€L9 8€8 6 781'96 800C
%6469 0£°255 €5°TCS 6v°0TS LS°ESS ¥5°0¥S [ aadd S6°00S 98'€TS 18987 96'20S 6L - 820'S6 7961
%96'LS EE°6EY Trssy L0'96Y 0T'L0S L6'76S 08'80L 87°0L9 TT'6L9 €L'769 19'6L9 85L 14 6€5'T6 1002
%6576 LLEOL 1T8IL SY'EEL S8YTL SS0EL LETTL 86°ZEL SLLTL T6EVL TEIVL L L STT'v6 2002
%ET6 2L°609 ST'LY9 98'7v9 0T'195 66'LTY [4x 404 YTYLE 95'87€ 6€°02€ 0£'ZEE 99 jas S87°08 0961
%99'STT LT'696 LSTY6 TTL68 08'0v8 L9'TTT'T 8'S5T'T TY'SET'T 80'650'T $0'T€E6 86°€E8 8€8 €1 YTEve 9002
%65 VL 60°L8Y 07925 v5°02S IV'EES LTOLY 1L6LY LTILY 65697 €0°0€S VLTS €59 0 090¥2T 8661
%8118 SE'L69 Or'EEL 9T YEL 9T'0EL vr'6TL 16°TIL 85'67L 6v'50L - - 658 - 872'20T [41v4
%YL SET TE6LTT SLOLT'T  L6SPT'T SL°950'T €0°CT6 LETIL 78099 - - - 43 vT av'8 €10
%65'L8 veseL 19°0LL 68'Ly8 £2°598 80'L96 vLYL8 61°258 66'08L €6'95L 8L'82L 88 6 668'S0T £00T
%65°6L €0°667 €8°EVS ¥1°0SS TLLLS 8T°LT9 LT'ST9 8T'8YS €0°LTS 18'SES €0'6TS LT9 S 950°0L 0961
%296L LETIS 9T'8LY L5'60S 88'6€S €€°0€S 9T'6LS ¥1°209 L6'ELY 78'S0L TEVSL €79 - 59L's8 8661
%ET'00T S0'€E8 ¥5'818 18'7€8 59718 66'€CT'T TTT'T 9r'8yT'T ¥0°20T'T S7'680'T SY'790'T 43 oz 8€0'6L €661
%T0'6L 88'895 ¥5'T69 9'eLS 99'885 09°€09 TLELS LE'ELS T5'TSS 68'TLS TE'62S oz S 06618 6961
%6L'79 €6'61S 68'189 vLees 66'099 87°209 59'895 1T6vY 00'62 80'96% £0°88Y 88 - vL9'€6 5002
%L9'9L 8LLEY 65'5TY $5°S0€ LEY8T 99'557 $0°8%C LT'OYT 7€°08C 'LLT TY'18€ L5 - 888'€8 6561
%69'56 15°7€8 TTE6L 95'99L €€'59L 81°99L 09°LLL 9E'TEL vrovL 97'989 55°069 08 9 178's6 L96T
%v0°L9 LS'9LS 80°0€9 SE'ETL ST'T6L TeLL8 vLYS8 LLTY8 LL°9€8 L9°SY8 9T'86L 098 - 009°02T 8661
%9E'TS ET6TY 9T9LY LE'88Y TU€TS 98'7v9 05'9L9 YE'9Y9 8ETYS £9'995 T€'109 918 - SYT'L8 0961
%9€°06 18'TSL 89'66L 90'0¢8 00'7€8 or'ecs 19'G€8 99'87L €TYSL 8Y'EVL TS'€9L 433 v 9L0YTT 6861
%L6'EY L6'T6T 1S7SE 85°79¢ €€'57T ST'6ET 89797 €0'€ST 00992 00752 00052 ¥99 - €V8'LL LS6T
%6T°€9 68'87S £7'695 80'7LS 06'629 78'9€9 69'529 ST'LT9 0€'28S 6L'929 LS'€8S L€8 - 69096 8961
%EI'E6 7€'895 67'865 75'S19 10265 ST'819 75159 €8°0L9 00'559 SS'EV9 66'L19 £09 8 TS TIT 6661
%26'tS 60'26 LS YT'LY9 T8'L0L TEvEL 1S'LEL 69'8TL 9€'TIL 8T'LTL 05°0SL 968 - SL9'T0T TL6T
%8T°9L LTSTY 1670y 08'187 0€°69Y y1°S8Y SSV8Y 6T v6Y 9T'LEY 1T6LY 0L8TY SPS - 9556L 6161
%0t°86 88'0L8 65'898 LO'TY8 LT'€68 SE'9T0'T - - - - - 588 €1 769'66 €10C
%9588 S0°085 W'6ss 6€°SSS €E°€95 wSLS TTL09 TSET9 £8°L09 97°£59 €0°019 559 jad TT'LTT 6661
%Zt'96 LT°008 79'808 16'6€8 8'958 96'£98 6'5€8 09'L8L 10°87L Ly'90L 92'9£9 0€8 ot L9128 7561
%LT'69 6T¥%9 59'869 vT%29 06°6£9 9L°TH9 €TTYY ST°099 €1°00L 87°6CL T9°SL9 0€6 - 8776 SS6T
%ITHS 18'79€ LETLE vLT6E 6T'T6E L0°STY YL'SSy LY'ESY 05'S6Y 6v'TLY 8L'505 €L9 - TLL/08 SL6T
%20°SS 57999 S69ZY £9°€9Y LLTTE 0896T YL6TE 6T%SE 90°TLE T8'SLE £6'85€ 1121 - 188'9ST 2961
%L9VL €8'£98 £5'T68 61'626 05'€V6 TLITT YLTTTT 20°00T'T €7°590'T EV'TI0'T 89'SL0'T €917 6 676'0€T SL6T
%L9°88 11°089 ¥6'SL9 TTE99 TTEss TYELS 59'079 €5'779 00°009 76°€09 S6'95S 9L 9 09£'96 8861
%E6'TL T0'9€S 20'€8S £7'295 15'SLS 90'€29 8L°065 €E°9YS ¥9'695 LE'6TS ST'STS SEL € 85.'98 0€6T
%8Y'€ES 75697 1S'€9T - - - - - - - - v0S S 6€T'Y9 861
%E0'59 LE'TOE 05'vS€E Ly'STE TELYE €0'LET T€T9T 95761 e 95°L5T 09'6L2 soy ¥ TrY'0L 9961
%ET'98 76'670'T ST'EE6 05'€00'T - - - - - - - 612'T - L6T'LYT L10C
%8T'T6 LL9SL 9T'T9L vT°L69 ET°0TL 0€'86L SL'S6L 05918 78118 6v'88L 60°€6L 0€8 9 L9128 LL6T
%ES V8 S6'LE9 76'669 00'9€L 67'169 02029 LT'909 96’165 69'ST9 S6'TTL 9€'80L 47 44 759°00T 0007
%bL YL LTI6Y v8'€8Y L0'T8Y 7506 TsLy ¥8'89% vS'L8Y LO'06Y 80°0LY 99°0LY %99 - 888'6L SL6T
%9L'10T 9'€68 61616 60'196 vLL68 £7°0L8 ST6LO'T 67196 VEEST'T 90'8£0'T LT°020'T 8.8 - €1T'8YT 0007
%09 THT 9T'T6T'T 9,T90T 88076 Sy'sv8 L6718 LETIET 9€'887'T 65°0€T'T $0'LEO'T 8L'8L6 we 9T SEEVE £00T
%879 LL6TY 7'6LY 6T°TSY S8°0TY L7205 9E'6LY TE'T05 0€°085 98665 75’108 vL9 1 97L'8L 0961
%EY'ITT vSrLE 67°086 67'8€6 6588 - - - - - - L€8 vT S6v'T6 L10T
%LTECT 85°S20'T 8T0'T  OV'ES6 87°668 L0°S60'T 85°200'T S0'9L6 76'9€6 61258 v6°9LL 43 24 166001 9002
%€E6'SL LS'SE9 S6'6€9 TELLY L5'965'T 8E'T6S'T LL'OES'T T9ELY'T 6T'28Y'T L9'€0S'T TSLEY'T L€8 - 166'66 6861
%86°S6 6€°€08 6T°0VL 81°889 69205 8°€8Y 11067 6€2SS 8E'ELS LO'SSS €L°8LL L€8 - 18696 066T
%LE'S9 99'8€S S8'LSS LTYT9 £0'889 S9'€69 LS'8LL €7'SSL 10°00L 9'LEY 00299 8 € S00'L6 S96T
%9€E°9S ETVLE 68°ETE L6°SST - - - - - - - 799 yrL'08 9107
Ayoede 026107 61-810C 81-L10C £1-9102 91-ST0Z ST-vT02 vI-€102 €1-210C Z1-110Z 11-0T0Z Ayoedes sa|qeod (2) 33e3004 (1) 2210335
FLEUERICY] 61-8T0C aienbs wuad uj pase|d

SYVIA OT LSV1

V1va LNJWTI0YN3 LNITVAINDI JNIL-11N4 '8 NOILVINHOANI ONIA1iNg 100HIS
STO0HIJS JI19Nd ALNNOJ I9NVIO0

3 poomz

S3 saxeT weypuAm
S3ae140m

$3 paeSauIm

8-) |00yds a3p1y Apuim
$3 2J5WIIPUIM
(jooyas JejnpolA) S3 snSueud weljipm
$3>e0 Sunadsiym
$3 Aspeaym
$393qI3IdM

S3 ajulodisapy

53 9%004qIS9M

S3 S34eQ 1M
RERCEIOREL/

8- pleyaspam

S3 pJojiaiem

$3 98plguaiem

§3 unds 1218 M
21d/S3 s210ys uoIBuIysem
S3 s)eq esIn

$3 BINJUBA

S3>4ed uolun

S3 saye Jaquul)

S3 3||!Ausp|iL

S3 S3ul0d 334yl

$3 900.4g dUIOYL
S3>ded oja8ue]
$3j4ed 195uns

$3 9suung

S3 @8puuns
$39ze|g uns

$3 sayeq auols

s3 e Sunds

S3 poomyinos
$349240 3j8uIys

$3 yeopueuays

S3 e pues
(531484 ss91dAD) 53 9p1y Alles
S3 Ja|pes
$31UoWasoy

S3 sliiH Suljjoy

$3 s8unds ooy

S3 .70y

S3 apisiany

53 3jepIany
S3ed poomaspry
$3 uo3aduld

S3 a%etaueld

S3 poomauld

$3 yoojauid

S3S|IIH duld
s3Jeuld

8-) [00Y2S Bulysiad
$3 ondwWied
S33xe7 wied

S3 EISIA 010
Awspedy paylo opuelo
$3 4a3ua) a8ueIQ
30V SdD0
$399020
S33lysyeQ
S3IIH¥e0

S314ed e YLoN
S3}4ed SSON

s3 Aey "3 alllon

$3 suapueD ejuud||IA
S3 BIUUBIIN

$3 15aMOoLIBN

$3 SPOOA MOpE3N
$3Aoon

(mau) 53 Aaxein

128



e/u - - - - €6'1C 8ETE 06Ty YLES €6°LY vELS e/u 006°2€ 8007
e/u 65°6€ET 6E°EVT LO'LET TTSET €TTrT 9v'8ET 65°THT €0°TLT 09°€LT 6L°LLT (74 T12'70T €L61
e/u ¥2°08 [4%%] L9°6S €009 v5°T9 7089 9L €129 61°69 179 161 vT 02£'05 1961
e/u 79°0€ 6T°0€ 60°€E 16°0T €8°TT 98°0€ vs'LT 0502 00°LT 96'8T e/u e/u e/u
eju 8L°TC SSVT SEVE 88°EE 8LTE vE0€E €1°9¢C Tr9s €TES 96'TS 65€ 95v'8L 9261
TLESE'ES  TWELL'YS  ES'S8Y'PS  €5°909'TS  60'ESL'0S  9V'E00'6Y  9S'06E'8r  vL'TIE'SY  99'859'Lv  €T'8L9'9%
%65'LTT 80°CZC'E 6L98T°€  61CSTE YE'BIT'E 97'596'C 0T'TE6'T vE'866'C €6'L60'E SY'00€'E 76'68T°E orL'e 8 SSL'SSE 6961
%00'0ET L6'8LSE 6'7L0'E ¥1'990'C - - - - - - - €SL'T 14 STE'SLE £10T
%68'TL €5°781'T 82057 6TTI9T 8T'EE0Y T6'VES'E €L'GE9'E TTees'e TEL6E'E 89'T0T'E 10'LLO'E v66'C S €T€TTY vL6T
%61°0L YT'E9E'T 6'L50'T  TTEIT €TEIT'T 87'S07'T 86'757'C ¥5'691°C 76°080'C S60ET'T 9€'SSET L6L'T 9SE'TLE £00T
%ST'56 0E'YYST EV'YS9'T  SO'ESLT 90'L28'C LY'EL8'T 99'126'C 99'568'C T0T6'T 69'L0L'T 8.'859'C v29'C Vg T6v'65€ 1661
%ET'STT 61TT'E SY'6ET'E  LETLT'E €9'GET'E 20'760'€ Y0'766'C 00'626'C 16'SL6'T 1L'596'C 66'006'C LeL't w 776'S8€ 1007
%LT Y8 YT'8€8'T 70826 €T'690'€ ¥2°000'€ LE'STET TetL't T1°79L'T 95'69L'C 09'€98'C 20'968'C 89€'E 086'8TY 1002
%8878 8T'LSET TUTOV'T  6T'99ET LLYTET 66'STT'T 7€'886'T 0S'T€T'T YETWL'T 9T'Y6Z'T LT6YT'T LLL'e 4 895'VEE 5007
%v0°'T0T LTTPET 0708y 90'608'C 86'68L'C 1679L'C LTEYS'T 0L'692'C €9'LL6'T 06'81L'T [a4:14:04 8TET o¢ LY6'TLE 0961
%89'€TT Or'T6T'E 9Y'0E0'E  PY6EST 98'975'C 96'60€'T TUEET'T 87°076'T 8L'678'T €TTVL'T YE6TT'T L08'T 9z (444713 6007
%€ES'88 98'€TY'T 0S'TUY'T  95°9LY'T LS'T8T'T 9 T0T'T 61°656 L£5'80L 08'T6L 9€'€98 8€'556 809'T L T€L'96T 7561
%8Y'TET T0'6€S'E L8'9LL'E  6SVSL'E 65'S0S'E TTLIE'E 0T'0ET'E 7S'80T'E 8EVED'E 86'€00'E L9'9€8'T 1L9'T Ly S99'79€ €007
%16'€6 79'8T€'T S80Pr'T  T6'88ET 0T'S9€'T ETHEET 09'sL2'T 85'Y9Y'C 67'20€'T 67'€00'T $0'SS8'T 69T €1 SET'9LE 8561
%YTT8 80'€88'T TE'806'T 79'568'T 60'968'T ST'L9L'T ¥0'169'T SS°08S'T 65°€99'T LELSI'T 8T'7S9'T 8TET 65S9TY 0S6T
%1079 87'198'T 9T0T6T  9T'9T6'T LE'T88'T v5'TS8'T TT'99L'T €LTTU'T S9'EIL'T vE'86LT 79'606'T 200'€ 4 ¥28'60 010T
%YTLTT 80'ETSE 0L'€79'E LT6SS'E 0€'96v'€ 8LTLES 6'0Z€E 80'VEEE 69'95SE 00'795'€ 9Y'68Y'E 19L'T 9 6v6'€6S 6861
%EY'ETT 96'ZET'E 6E'SPT'E  €8'L9T'E T0'18T'E 00156 €0'7L6'T €L°0€6'C 08'8Y0'€ 9€'860'€ S0'90T'E 9Lt ve EVS'LEY €661
%66°LTT €9'8ETE 8E'9ET'E  BO'6OE'E 98'887'€ 68'6VE'E 75°06T'E v6°E6T'E 6€°E0E'E €€'S0C'E 9E'SYT'E 099'C 14 vLT'STY 8561
%90°L8 0L'665'C 98'€69'C  SS'SYI'T £0'8€9'C 01°089'C 98'165'C €6'20L'T LY'SLLT 06'08L'C WETILT 986'C 14 655°L5€ 7561
%66'S6 LETOT'E TLT9T'E 8T60T'E TTZ0T'E 95°Z€6'T 20°'896'C 95'v/8'C L9°0¥8'T 9T°09L'T T9'105'T T€T'E 8Y0'vT vL6T
SEVEETY  C9VSY'Iv  STI8Y'TY  YETOTOr  LETOL'6E  06'080'VE  ET'VIS'BE  CESKY'BE  6EOLS'LE  [BVIT'LE
%v0°'STT LT'BEY'T LTTIET  6YESET 19'867'T TLETTT 96'STT'T 8L°20T'T SY'EST'T 00°8YT'T EEYIT'T 0ST'T ST TrL'69T 9002
%96°CTT 90°82T'T 60°STT'T  8TBYTT 1T62CT 6T°06T'T 97°097'T SPSET'T YrYLT'T T6°0L0'T 96'9€0'T 180T € YEV'OLT €L6T
%5678 YT'EE6 LT'S66 YT'L20'T 99'820'T 0’666 TL'8T0'T 12686 86'856 00976 8L'LT6 STt SLLYLT 9961
%TTTS 89S, 8L°SWL 06'86L STT6L 7688 W'TL8 €9°€T6 e 89°0L6 STOYO'T 8LY'T £89'20T €661
%vT08 20'T66 vL'5T6 89°006 - - - - - - - SETT TLT'Y8T L10T
%95°TTT 9E'T6E'T LY'88E'T  EO0LEET 80'T67'T 80'957'T 00°Zv2'T 69'677'T 6€°E0T'T - - LET'T 44 097'681 4114
%8 YL $1°0S0°T 09%00'T  2TTO0T L5786 89'97T'T LO'EST'T 65'76T'T S6'8YE'T 65'6E€'T 060127 €0v'T TSL'E9T 96T
%Y9°0CT 06'0€ST 6V'TSY'T 18'9T¥'T VL8LET 8L°0SET ¥1°056 £€8'196 TL'607'T wee't S0'867°T 697°T LT LyL'S6T 66T
%06 T0T 6€°T'T SE'860T  80LITT TL'700'T TE0T0'T 99'VET'T L6'Y8T'T 00°0T0°T LTHO'T 89'2L6 STIT €LEVST 9002
%9TTTT 1TSTTT STECZT  6TTITT 1T°092'T 85 79E'T 9TOVT'T €8°TTTT ¥6'S6T'T YUSET'T v5'822'T €00'T 9z STO0VT €961
%96'96 05'6L0'T YO¥60'T  9E'680°T €STLT'T Y6 LET'T 96'606 87'626 96'68T'T 6'TST'T 95°0vT'T €117 8T 0L6'6LT €661
%ST'EL £5°678 61'S.8 97'L68 61'576 79798 TT'69€'T 8T'6LE'T 05°L56 19'906 €778 YET'T S S6T'9LT 100
%96 9TELET L6'0SET  LO'STY'T 06'9€Y'T £T°80Y'T 8°0r8 80218 00°Stv'T SL'9SS'T 88'€09'T ver'T 44 TLE'6LT 0661
%S9°TL ¥2'598 0TT18 TU'€9L vL 178 67°008 05'926 77'590'T 00°09 80'859 05'569 1611 919'v81T 7961
%8L 9L ¥1°556 T7'SL6 60'950'T 87°220'T 6€'550'T 20°070'T 6L'TL0'T 15'950'T 68'GE0'T €0'6T0'T laza? 6 Ter'oLt 9961
%TTL8 L7°020'T S7'886 T1°066 07'856 v0'796 w'L68 W'IT6 €0'LLT'T SSTET'T €TTT'T 0LT'T (14 999091 6661
%2108 10'818 19°06L VELL8 8716 06’126 YE'€08 1118 96'SL6 76'0€0'T S8'TL6 120'T [0)4 60L'EET 6561
%8T°TTT 6668 15°Lv8 96°S€8 €ET6L TTELL S0'0€0'T ¥STYO'T TT99L T6T8L W'LI8 08 ot €80°LYT 1661
%68'8L TLTI8T'T 19TST'T 8L°80T'T ETPYT'T 96'770'T 1€'996 L'968 €L°TLOT v60TT'T 99'29T'T 86'T 14 S87'69T SL6T
%TEIL 817198 (7413 £8°006 £0°688 0€°L26 - 8L°€S6 S9°078 1268 £€°688 LET'T 790'69T 5002
%L5'90T e oL'0v6 10°L10'T 8L'€66 91'826 - TroLe 196 £7'668 60'056 €8L [44 €L8'9YT 9561
%0E VL L6298 LO°6L8 8E'9€6 SEV86 SP'8T0'T - ET0EY'T 05706 68'79E'T OT'ETET 89T'T L E'TLT LT6T
%1T0TT LSY8Y'T LLLOY'T  90°0VE'T 9T'€90'C £8'808'T - Y0'9SE'T STEST'T LL'88T'T T7'890'T SETT 144 SLT'TIT 010z
%S5°S0T YLY6T'T ETE0TT 697207 - - - - - - - 17Tt 8 STZ'9LT £102
%00°8CT 1S'T62'T TETEET  TOTHET LETOE'T YL6TT'T 6£'990'T €L°£80'T L8'SET'T €9'62T'T 06'60T'T 600'T 6 T6L'8ET S66T
%2578 9T'T00'T 97'966 €7'720'T 8£'990'T ¥9'ST0'T LT'8Y0'T €0'2L6 8€'906 16179 6£7909 €171 790°€9T 9761
%TEYS 76'602'T - - - - - - - - - SEY'T [0)4 TLT'SLT sT0C
%96'96 EVSLT'T vS'86T'T  0LTITT 67 ZTET 65°6LT'T 0L%9T'T 9T°0ST'T SLLTET 00TTIT'T YTY6T'T aet vT 088ELT S66T
%91°90T 00'82€'T TO6EET  TYO6ST 60'TTS'T 8T'IYY'T 95°20Y'T €TOLE'T 8E'LSE'T 60'68€'T 99'02'T 1577 34 06T'60T 9561
%06'0TT 89'GET'T 9€'95T'T  ¥S°007'T 6€7T90'T €5°9Y0'T TT6E0'T TTIE0'T SL'790'T LSLTT'T LL7200'T YIT'T ST 766'89T 5002
%TTH8 75'898 LT'€68 T0'LY6 6L'T€6 97'€88 €1°€06 £5°5Y6 6'918 15788 ST'LY6 1€0'T 9T 8TT'ELT 7661
%OELL Y9'€ET6 €€'SE6 18'566 0€°066 01'897'T L0°TTT'T 86'097'T 95'877'T vLY8T'T L7'897'T 811 14 SS¥08T 6661
%5858 10'928 67'966 60'T00'T 75'686 LE'066 58'966 87°L20'T 50'850'T or'£0T'T SEOPT'T 29 44 68L'TYT 6961
%8L°L0T TEETTLT 8€'867'T  9T'STET T6'STET ETTIET 69°T97'T 80VTET VE'96E'T 8T'Z9E'T LTYIET SET'T 24 186'99T 0002
%8TL9 4324 ] 97°0€8 80°L08 97'199 69'9TL 90'€TL S8'00L 0TELL L8'ETL 60'208 97Tt ST8'Y8T 2961
%€6°TST 6T°L8L'T SE6'€8S'T  8YPITT 16'878'T €T°T9S'T 08'78€'T STTST'T YE'SOT'T TL0SY'T 00'607'T 9LT'T 8 681781 £002
%L8'96 TS'GE0'T Y6TIOT  TS'666 vL°028'T £9'998'T 88'66L'T 8L'EEI'T 66'029'T 99'655'T 8L'78Y'T 690'T £85°0LT £00T
%v2°80T TUSIT'T TE0L0'T  TO080'T 87°050'T L8°€60'T 20°860'T 1ST90°T LT°9S0'T LY'TSO'T LS'9Y6 9.0'T L 96T'¥8T 0S6T
68'878'88  PEYIT'68  BT96E'88  TU'TLI'L8  L9T8T'98  68LLE'SR  pO'9T9'E8  8E'L8Y'T8  OT'SLSWIT  L8/98'6L
Ayoede 026107 61-810C 81-L10C £1-9102 91-ST0Z ST-vT02 vI-€102 €1-210Z 711102 11-0T0Z Apeder (2) @8e3004 (1) 2210335
FLEUERICY] 61-8T0C aienbs wuad uj pase|d
SYV3IA OT LSV

V1va LNJWTI0YN3 LNITVAINDI JNIL-11N4 '8 NOILVINHOANI ONIA1iNg 100HIS

STO0HIJS JI19Nd ALNNOJ I9NVIO0

193U3) JBIS JAA|IS
uonesnp3 |eads eljouseln
Jooyas Aemaren

JUBWIeaIL XN3IaAQ
|00ys aa%043Y)

BT MEEE

$|00YdS Y3IH [e10)
SH ed Jajuim
SH 2J9WIapuUIM
SH @8uelQ 1S9
SH BAM

SH Ausianiun

SH Y9340 JaquilL
SH eldwA|0

SH 99020

SH a3p1y ye0

SH BUON aYe]
SH sauor

SH wopaai4

SH sueA3

SH 191eMaSp3
SH Jany 1563

SH sdijiyd 1a
SH 234D ssaudA)
SH [e1uojod

SH auoog

SH eydody
S{00UPS UIH

S|00Y2S 3|PPIA [e30L
S @ET oM

SIN 38pLIsam

SIN 133jjem

S Jied uolun

SIA s8unds Jaquuil
SIN 38pluns

SIAl UOSYIES ||[EMAUOIS
SIA 159MyIN0S

SIN 3310 Yanos

SN poomsuiqoy

SIN S3e1 Juowpald
SIN AsssApo

SIN 22020

SIN [eOWBN

SIAI 300IGMOpESIA
SIN SPOOA MOPEIN
SIN puepey

SN MeypoT

S Auiaqn

SIN AdeSaq

(S 997 Aliawiioy) SIA Yaed 283)10)
SIN MaInaxe]

SIAl BUON 3%e]

SIAl uoiienouu|

SIA Y93.) s1auUNny
SIN piemoH

SN 3S3M uoziioH
SIN ey309

SIN @8plua|D

SIN Wopaauy

SIN Aanoosig

SIA 9%eT Jaulo)

SIN Aemuo)

SIN s9%eT 40 uteyd
SIN Jante)

SIA Jo1emasplg

SINl uojery

SIN eydody

500135 SIPPIN

5|00YS 8-3/AJeIuswWa|3 [BI0L

129



e/u STEES SY'9ES 18'52S 69'72S 06'82S 9L'62S (3474 3444 87°20S £6'50S e/u - e/u e/u
e/u 60°20T 10'60T 89'TTT 9L'vTT 95'6TT 79921 89'THT 00'STT 00'8ZT 60'72T e/u - e/u e/u
e/u 10°2Y9 15'909 8E'E0Y 95°L67 ¥0'052 89'50C LY'09T 00'TYT 00°90T - e/u - e/u e/u
e/u 07'95T L8YTT 918 6TEL - - - - - - e/u - e/u e/u
e/u L0°08T 19°26C 9T'8YT LEOET 95°01Z - - - - - e/u - e/u e/u
e/u 86'60C L9VTT 9T'L0T 07781 LTYIT 9T'19T 0L'09T LLLST 97821 89'£0T e/u - e/u e/u
e/u £0°0TC 6£'90C wsTe SE'9TT 0T'61T €6'8TC €5°8TC 96'L1T 96'81C T6'L1T e/u - e/u e/u
e/u SS°9TT 86°06T 61°S8T SL'6LT 121 L0'Y8T 79'81¢ €6°€8T S5'S8T 89'S8T e/u - e/u e/u
e/u 06'1S SE'ET - - - - - - - - e/u - e/u e/u
e/u PrEEy 85'GEY SETYY vr'esy SS'65Y 95'6v YTSTY 05'8TY 6'v6€ SO'6LE e/u - e/u e/u
e/u TLY9T §5'597 15°50C €L°L0T - - - - - - e/u - e/u e/u
e/u 0€'9LY 1T°09% 9L'8€Y S0'9€Y TT'L6€ 60'85€ L£9'S0€ Lrree TLT6T 78691 e/u - e/u e/u
e/u S6'566 89°000'T  €T'SL6 L1'826 SE'6€6 66'€26 19'568 vb'LES TY'SEL ¥9°169 e/u - e/u e/u
e/u 9€'80Y SO'€8E 15'82€ 0Ty SO°ESY €5°'60S Tr'v0s T€96 8€'88Y 99'58% e/u - e/u e/u
e/u IWTYT 96'50T or'61T £6'7ET 16°T€T TT'Y8T 76'08T 9£°85T 00°€2T 0528 eju - e/u e/u
e/u S6'70€ L0'L9€E 66'CEE 6'76T - - - - - - e/u - e/u e/u
e/u 9L°€0T EV°LTT 0E'TIT €TTIT YT'8TT 08'80T 75'S0T 05'8L 00°€y - e/u - e/u e/u
e/u 60°0TY 180Ty L6'6EE 65'S6€ S8'v6Y €£'905 S0'v9Y 96'901 2961y 9Ty e/u - e/u e/u
e/u TS0rT SY'8ET 08'62T 8y'zel 9.°80T 89'T0T LE'66 €6'88 00'98 - e/u - e/u e/u
e/u - - - - - €6'VLE - - - - e/u - e/u e/u
e/u - - - YE'9ST €T°8LT €9'8YT - - - - e/u - e/u e/u
e/u - LY'68T 0T'L5T o374 €TLET v6'9vT 81°zzT 0509 - - e/u - e/u e/u
e/u - - - - - - - - 00'9 00y e/u - e/u e/u
e/u - - - - - - - - - 00°60T e/u - e/u e/u
- - - - - - - - - 0S'YT e/u - e/u e/u
e/u - - - - - - - - 00'8LT TL°8LT e/u - e/u e/u
e/u - - - - - - - - 00'T0T 00'6LT e/u - e/u e/u
e/u - - - - - - - - - 00y e/u - e/u e/u
e/u - - - - - - - 0002 - - e/u - e/u e/u
e/u - - - - - 0679 ST'€9 05’87 05'ST 00T e/u - e/u e/u
T6'SEY'S LE'VET'S  9TYSE'S YT'TIT'S 67°006'S oT'sLT'S 0T'LS0'S LS'EE0'S YT'LOT'S TT'T0S'Y
e/u 6819 9Ly 6€°6€ €18 880 T6TS €6'LS 6L°9Y 6L9L ST'59 e/u - e/u e/u
e/u £0'€E 61°29 05’19 9T'TS ST'8S 6T'TS 08'LYy L6'8T 08'vL 8v'L8 e/u - e/u e/u
e/u 50°00T T9'9€T €L°29T 80°2LT 89'9LT TrLST 19'7T z9°02T 0L'96T Y0'SYT e/u - e/u e/u
e/u - - - - - - - - - 9€'TT e/u - e/u e/u
e/u YTEL 6L SS'8L LT°08 ws T7'SL €1'8L S9'SL 59'56 67'96 e/u - e/u e/u
e/u - - - - 86°CT L6'E - - - - e/u - e/u e/u
e/u L9VE S6'ST LEET 6€'ST €0°ET 6T'LT 8Y'vE €8'LT 00°ze 15°8€ e/u - e/u e/u
e/u 80'TLT v8'9¥T 99'877 6TETT Y0761 174 86’18 Y19 06'97 8097 e/u - e/u e/u
e/u - - - - - - - - 0S'6 - e/u - e/u e/u
e/u vT1T £5°0T €T'L 1TLT YT LYVE y1'Z6T €6'9ST 99'89T TL6ET 69'7vT 15T ST ovz'soy €961
e/u €8'LT [4x4% 9T 89y 89'80C 00'72T ey :334 8€'97 [ 4 LEE €€ 2980y €561
e/u 6T°LE [4:x44 169 90°0L 8T'StT €T°'S6T 87°0L 1109 9L LYT 99'S1T €6t 85 TEET6 9961
e/u SE0T €971 102 €S 8y'€TT €T°52T 6v'2TT ST'S6 86'06 ST'69 £09 - Ler'ozt 0861
e/u 8Y'0ET 85'EE 950 0L0 0T'€6 L6'L6 179z - - - e/u - e/u e/u
e/u 08'SYS'T TLIY'T 05509 96'S8€E'T S6'818 TLL6S 05'SEE T0TIT 09's2T 0z'L8 e/u - e/u e/u
e/u 69°LYS 6LET - - T6'ST St'9T €6'07 - - - e/u - e/u e/u
e/u vL'ST 9€'6T 88'LY 0TS 61'99 LT'SL 66'76 0,18 9T'0L 86'06 e/u - e/u e/u
e/u - - - - - - - 860 wo v8'0 e/u - e/u e/u
e/u YE'SLLT 00's0z'c  TT'TLTT 00'T8€'C UL TYY'T T'90€E'T 98'€0T'C £€9'786'T 0E'EVL'T 6L°T0V'T e/u - e/u e/u
e/u TSy 95y [4474 sooy sy'sy €5°€S 8T'9Y 69'18 SLLL 06°'LL e/u - e/u e/u
e/u 95T latd 6L'8C 67°0€ 16'TST LY'YST 99°08T 95°SYT L9°02T STSE e/u - e/u e/u
e/u - - - - - - 76'8€T 75991 69'TTZ [aR'4%4 e/u - efu 6007
e/u [4%:14 L6'9T L8'€T LT 10'6T 592 1697 8€°0€ T6°€€ 16'9€ e/u - e/u e/u
e/u YL 6ET 00°€ZT €8'8TT - - - - - - - e/u - e/u e/u
e/u - - - - - - - 00'8 96'ST 16T e/u - e/u e/u
e/u - - - - - - €0°905 88'€€8 71268 88'785 e/u - e/u e/u
e/u - 00'9 zTst 0s'ee 1E 3433 7885 00'LL 00'€8 0576 e/u - e/u e/u
e/u 6LTE WL 8T'SL L6°00T 9EVYT 18'88T 0L'T6T ST'9€T SY'1ST 17642 e/u - e/u e/u
e/u 81'97 oy oL'Le [4%13 29'97 97'95 woy 85'9€ 00'8€ €€°9Y e/u - e/u e/u
e/u 05’6 20°0T 00°€T €861 66'TE 2092 86'87 8€'7S 00t Ly'8E e/u - e/u e/u
e/u 80°€T [3:341 ¥8'ST [47A 4431 08'C YEYT EVET 00'ST 05Tt e/u - e/u e/u
e/u 05'92 10'SE [543 L0'TE [ad3 [44:13 0€'vE piads 6T 86T e/u - e/u e/u
e/u - - - - - - - 05°0T 00'7T 05°6T e/u - e/u e/u
e/u - - 0S'T €8'C T9°ET - 6T'6 ¥8'8T 0S'€T 05'9T e/u - 9ET'ES e/u
e/u ¥5'70T [ol474 60°LYT 8L°0YT YT6ET SETIT [y244 0S°0€T - - Lyt 4] £60°S0T e/u
eju €6°€6T 8T'S8T 85'TLT 15'607 €L'ETT z9'02T TT'TET 99'vLT 15'66€ 69'LLE 819 - YOT'YS e/u
(34424 sTe9T 81797 £0°0vC 12°692 80'667 T9VIE T5°€9€ S6'09€ 9T'0LE
Ayoede 026107 61-810C 81-L10C £1-9102 91-ST0Z ST-¥10Z YI-€10Z €1-210C 711102 110102 Ayoedes sa|qeniod (2) @8e3004 [BESDES
40 jJudd13d 6T-8T0C aienbs wuad u] pase|d

SYVIA OT LSV1

V1va LNJWTI0YN3 LNITVAINDI JNIL-11N4 '8 NOILVINHOANI ONIA1iNg 100HIS
STO0HIJS JI19Nd ALNNOJ I9NVIO0

S anuaay puepeQ
$D Allunwwio) pio4 den

S UBpJED JAIUIM 1IOSSIIUOIA

$D Awapedy UOXIN eww3 g snopn
5D Awapedy spuadal
5) Adedaq

SO ejo3 el

$D 3|PPIN SuoneAouu|
110SS3IUOIA UOII_AOUL|
s adoH

3 YBIH JaA1Y U0z

$J SH Awapedy auo1siaulo)

$J Awapedy auoisiauI0)

S y8iH Assoueyd

52 Awapedy diysiapeat 14 [eua)
SO Awapedy daidaspug

S Awapeoy auidsy

SJ USIH ewoly

$D ssay

$2 28uelQ Awspedy wiedy

SD Awapeay Alojesedald siseQ

$ 989]j0) Alunwiwo) spiy

$D YSiH daud 1sa103uld

S Awapeay “wa3 luew|

S YSiH 1uineq

SJ YSIH JeisylioN

) 3pueln

SO ywwng

$D Awapedy 110SSIUOIA Uld1sul3
$D Awapedy 11don

S[o0UPS TS

SO ys

sweJgoud Jayi0 [e10L

S|ID 10} J3JUI) 3dky

(Spjiwy) T# 91N31ISU| BULIBIA OpPUBLIO
11D UoPUBIB(Q 3|IUAANS d8UBIQ
21N3ISU| SJ19p|INg SWOH

(Awapeay yinoa a8uelQ) || dais 1sii4
13D UonedNp3I yied JIUIM

11D uonEeINP3 [BSIBAIUN

191U9) uonIsuel ]

anaIydy 13foud

4931 ePLOI4-PIAI Y931-0

Y99 Sied JOIUIM Y931-0

Y231 3PISISAM Y31-0

Y231 0puepQ Y231-0

UO132NJ35U| 35IN0) UONRONIISU] [BNLIA Ajuno) a8uelo
|ooyos [enIA Ayuno) asuelQ
Awapedy [ensig SADO

weugoid |00Y2S [enHIA 300 SdIO
Awapeay sad10y) MaN

diysiejoyos Aeyan

peisiwy-eq

punogawoi/|eydsoy

Awapeoy [99x3

Awapeoy wasls3

uonisues] 353

11D uoiEINP3 OpUELIQ 1583

upyoeg doug

280 - 193UBD dAeUIRYY

V138 - J21Ua) dAREUIRYY
(UOIIEPUNO YINOA UOWIS) JBIUD) SAIBUIRY
dOA 3V

a8e|IIA 3V

dNODroyd v

dvsy 3V

A4 Buiniedsy suondIppyY

159\ Awapesy uonesajay
Awapedy uonesa|a20y

Sweigoid SH0

s|ooyas Ayjerdads |e1o.

130



Suiulea euonisuel] - 1

npy - v

|00YaS J31eY) - D

2013sN[ 3|IUBANT 4O JuaWHeda( - JaY10 - [1a-0
Jooyos jo adAy Jayio Auy - J18Y30 - O

leads - §

100Y2S Y3IH - SH

100Y2S 3|PPIA - SN

Jooyas Aeluawa|a - §3

*3|qe|ieA. 10U S| UoNeWIOU| B/U
‘0s|e sapeJs [00YdS 3|pPIL SWOS 3PNIUl S|00YIS AleIudWa|d asayL (g)

*sa|qelsod ay1 apnjaul 10u op pue Ajuo Suip|ing usuew.ad ay) Joj ate Aydeded pue a8ejooy asenbs syl (z)
*BUI|aPOWaI IO ‘SUOIIEAOUR ‘SUOI}PPE 193|421 10U SIOP 1P SIYL "3DIAIDS Ul pade|d sem [00ydSs 3y 1ey) alep [euiSlo (T)

SpJ023Y 1DMISI] :924N0S
pasig |eloL
sweJgoud Ynpy [e10]

133U3) 3DV Med Ja3uIm
191U3) 3DV Y231 SPISISIM
4231 PHOI4-PIN 4231-0
Y231 YJed JRIUIM 231-0
423 3PISISIM 231-0

42391 OpueQ 931-0

133U8) 3DV Y991 OpULlO
J23U) 3DV Y931 BPLOI-PIN
SWeisog APV

3peJD Y3ZT - usedapury [e30]

S|00Y2S Ja1ieY) [e10]
S pedy a8ejueApY 92I0IOM
3 (don) Asjed [edqaiad payun

S 28U 159M dIN

S PedY Y3iH11dIN

SJ SIItH duld doN

SJ3ise3 ddn

SO YsiH autysuns

S YSIH J3193ys

¥93.) S191UNH S) dueSSIeUdY
POJUaP|0D §D dduESSIEUDY

U104 UMOI) S ddUESSIBURY
MESBYIY) §J dIUESSIEUY

SO Awapeay diysiapea sepsadsold
$D 9SNOH U013IULd

§D daud 159109u,

$2934) 159499Uld

$J Awapedy a1e189]|0) 153108uld
$D uojeay Awapedy 153.109uld

S) Hodssed

SJ SH/SIA 92u319S OpuelIQ

$) Alejuawa|3 93ua1dS OpuUEIO
5D Awapedy daud Ayuno) asuelo

81'ST0'90Z  ¥8'0SY'90Z  €S6V6'E0Z S8T9I8'B6T  LL'EBY'E6T 08'060'88T 0S'908'€8T  v6'9T6'88T LY T8T'LTC  8Y'88T'T8T

000 000 000 000 000 €5°085Y 000 STLT6'L L6TLS'9 €8'765'8
e/u - - - - - - - [543 15T 6v°CC e/u - e/u e/u
e/u - - - - - - - 6L'8% 6691 v8'60T e/u - e/u e/u
e/u - - - - - 8E'SLT'E 75'978'€ TTSTr'E ¥9°ESLE e/u - e/u e/u
e/u - - - - - - - 0£'SS0'T 9L'€T8 69'612'T e/u - e/u e/u
e/u - - - - - - - 18'8EY'T 0L'sTy'T 85798'T e/u - e/u e/u
e/u - - - - - ST'SOP'T LLY8Y'T LS'STT'T LO'LYS'T e/u - e/u e/u
e/u - - - - - - - v9'T €6°€ (344 e/u - e/u e/u
e/u - - - - - - - 0T'SE 0€'6€ €T'SL e/u - e/u e/u

81'ST0'90Z  ¥8'0SY'907  €S'6V6'E0Z S8'T9I8'B6T  LL'EBY'E6T  LTOTS'EBT 0S'908°E8T  6L'666'08T 0S'609'0CC S9'E69'ELT

L006S'ST _ vTT9V'ST  €0/96'ET _ 69'BLY'ET  VELLSOT _ V8ELY'6 S6'€S8'L 9T LOE'9 0T LEE'S 1STIT'S
e/u €8'7ST 90197 €7'85C 19°€ST €EYST YEENT 16'STT YEVTT €8'80C SLY6T e/u - e/u e/u
e/u LT LETIT T7'9ST 80'9ET 0L'esT 95'LLT 67'TET ¥9'59T 6€'SET or'vzT e/u - e/u e/u
e/u SE'8ST 06991 76191 9'8LT €€'99T - - - - - e/u - e/u e/u
e/u 6CvTT €€°00T vSv8 05'SS SEV9 96'9€ 9T'IE 00T 00°6T - e/u - e/u e/u
e/u 06'95T 08'0ST £€8'0ST 89'0€T S8'6 vLT8 LT'69 €861 S8'TS o€'LY e/ju - e/u e/u
e/u LT'TIE 98'687 L0'6LT 09'8L7 96'697 96'597 LL°6ST ST'TTT 80'SLT 8V TYT e/u - e/u e/u
e/u £8'6€€ LO'E0E 1€°9LT 9’8z 67°0LS 9'£09 Y6'TES 9€'76T - - e/u - e/u e/u
e/u TS18T T7'65C EE6YT 78'8Y€E TTTSE TL88Y 85'89Y 9781 T6ELY 7508 e/u - e/u e/u
e/u T5°012'T vS$0TTT  96'LTTT LT'0S0'T 06'770'T v€'888 €€°0L9 - - - e/u - e/u e/u
e/u TTL8T'T 0v'80T'T £6'966 YLETO'T LL6V8 - - - - - e/u - e/u e/u
e/u €E'8L0'T 98°'600'T  Z0'06L S6'965 - - - - - - e/u - e/u e/u
e/u YS'¥20'T €7'£80'T  TO'8LO'T 6L'586 00'LE0°T 80756 v9'vL8 L1509 - - e/u - e/u e/u

9T'8ET 85 TYT T6°0ST €T°0LT 65°S8T 18'20T LE'TET TW'TeT 65'97C 65°0v€E e/u - e/u e/u
e/u €S0ET TSovT TOTYT TLTST ¥L°0ST 60'9ST 88'€EST 05'19T 007ST 19'vET e/u - e/u e/u
e/u L97YT ¥8'9€T L8'LYT 0071 65827 1TLTT 6€'60C LLELT 05'8€T vr'es efu - e/u e/u
e/u 8E'16 9v°'L0T €8'70T L6'9TT SO'€ZT 9E°TTT 2092z 89°TZT - - e/u - e/u e/u
e/u 1L'6 - - - - - - - - - e/u - e/u e/u
e/u €0°90€ 0£'98T - - - - - - - - e/u - e/u e/u
e/u 0€'2LT 6L'8LT SS'8LT LOELT 9T'ELT S9'6LT 18'6L1 SELLT 05'6LT 00'6LT e/u - e/u e/u
e/u S6'TL0T SELVOT  96'T8L L0°0SS SL'8YS 68'9YS 98'90S 0’68 00'L8Y EVYIY e/u - e/u e/u
e/u 9r'z0L 18'70L LS Y616y 0€'68Y SL6LY 60°092 00°z€T - - e/u - e/u e/u
e/u S8'18C 99'82€ LSTTY 95°0EY JAR444 S9'PTE - - - - e/u - eju e/u

Ayoede 026107 61-810C 81-L10C £1-9102 91-ST0Z ST-¥10Z YI-€10Z €1-2T0C 711102 110102 Kyedey sa|qeniod (2) @8e3004 [BESDES
40 jJudd13d 6T-8T0C aienbs wuad u] pase|d
SYV3IA OT LSV

V1va LNJWTI0YN3 LNITVAINDI JNIL-11N4 '8 NOILVINHOANI ONIA1iNg 100HIS
STO0HIJS JI19Nd ALNNOJ I9NVIO0

131



ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
NUMBER OF PERSONNEL
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Ratio

Ratio Instructional

(€) Students to Personnel to
Fiscal (A) (B) Support Instructional School

Year Instructional Administrative Services Total Personnel Administrators
2019-20 15,124 772 9,729 25,625 14.04:1 19.59:1
2018-19 14,929 750 9,466 25,145 14.18:1 19.91:1
2017-18 14,789 726 9,114 24,629 14.01:1 20.37:1
2016-17 14,461 693 8,775 23,929 14.06:1 20.87:1
2015-16 14,290 668 8,025 22,983 13.80:1 21.39:1
2014-15 14,076 658 8,168 22,902 13.52:1 21.39:1
2013-14 13,084 986 8,277 22,347 14.18:1 13.27:1
2012-13 12,827 942 8,215 21,984 14.22:1 13.62:1
2011-12 12,747 900 8,086 21,733 14.03:1 14.16:1
2010-11 12,547 859 8,366 21,772 14.26:1 14.60:1
(A) Classroom Teachers, Guidance/Psychologists, Occupational Placement Specialists,

Media Specialists, Other Professional Instructional Staft

(B) Principals, Assistant Principals, Superintendent, Assistant Superintendent,
Directors, Managers, Coordinators, Occupational Therapists

(C) Paraprofessionals, Bus Drivers, Monitors, Maintenance, Clerical, Etc.

Source: District Records
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ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
TEACHER BASE SALARIES (10 MONTH)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Minimum Maximum
Year Salary Salary
2019-20 S 40,700 S 76,825
2018-19 40,000 74,000
2017-18 39,500 72,600
2016-17 39,500 72,600
2015-16 39,000 70,750
2014-15 38,500 70,750
2013-14 37,500 66,498
2012-13 37,000 68,258
2011-12 37,000 68,258
2010-11 37,000 67,470

Source: District Records
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ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Federal Pass- Through Passed
CFDA Entity Identifying Through to Total
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program or Cluster Number Number brecipi Expenditures
Clustered
Child Nutrition Cluster:
United States Department of Agriculture:
Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services:
School Breakfast Program 10.553 18002 - 22,022,390
National School Lunch Program 10.555 18001, 18003 - 63,101,083
Summer Food Service Program for Children 10.559 17006, 17007, 18006, 18007 - 3,964,782
Total Child Nutrition Cluster - 89,088,255
Special Education Cluster:
United States Department of Education:
Florida Department of Education:
Special Education - Grants to States 84.027 262,263,266 1,453,099 49,724,859
Special Education - Preschool Grants 84.173 266,267 - 900,808
Total Special Education Cluster 1,453,099 50,625,667
Student Financial Assistance Cluster:
United States Department of Education:
Federal Pell Grant Program 84.063 N/A - 3,389,799
CCDF Cluster:
United States Department of Health and Human Services:
Early Learning Coalition of Orange County:
Child Care and Development Block Grant 93.575 912 - 136,443
Child Care Mandatory and Matching Funds of the Child Care and Development Fund 93.596 912 - 117,978
Total Child Care and Development Cluster - 254,421
Not Clustered
United States Department of Agriculture:
Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services:
Specialty Crop Block Grant Program -Farm Bill 10.170 None - 631
Team Nutrition Grants 10.574 None - 19,000
Farm to School Grant Program 10.575 None - 5,652
Fresh Fruit & Vegetable Program 10.582 18004 - 316,193
Florida Department of Health:
Child and Adult Care Food Program 10.558 A-4413 - 6,379,356
Total United States Department of Agriculture - 6,720,832
United States Department of Defense:
Air Force Junior Reserve Officers Training Corps 12 UNK N/A - 631,678
Army Junior Reserve Officers Training Corps 12 UNK N/A - 184,197
Marine Corps Junior Reserve Officers Training Corps 12 UNK N/A - 190,384
Navy Junior Reserve Officers Training Corps 12 UNK N/A - 382,556
Total United States Department of Defense - 1,388,815
United States Department of Labor:
Florida Department of Education:
National Farmworker Jobs Program 17.264 405 - 261,179
United States Department of Justice:
Public Safety Partnership and Community Policy Grants:
School Violence Prevention Program 16.710 None - 13,971
United States Department of Education:
Florida Department of Education:
Adult Education - Basic Grants to States 84.002 191,193 - 1,901,254
Title | Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 212, 222, 223, 226 2,691,055 70,331,469
Migrant Education-State Grant Program 84.011 217 - 278,292
Career and Technical Education -- Basic Grants to States 84.048 161 - 2,525,438
Education for Homeless Children and Youth 84.196 127 - 107,124
Charter Schools 84.282 298 - 506,723
Twenty-First Century Community Learning Centers 84.287 244 - 850,849
Enhancing Quality in Teacher Preparation in Mathematics within Urban Partnerships 84.336S 180 - 11,396
English Language Acquisition Grants 84.365 102 - 5,067,533
Supporting Effective Instruction State Grant (formerly Improving Teacher Quality) 84.367 224 13,268 7,195,792
School Improvement Grants 84.377 126 - 28,931
Student Support and Academic Enrichment Program 84.424 241 - 4,176,540
Hurricane Education Recovery:
Assistance for Homeless Children and Youth 84.938B 107 - 600,497
Temporary Emergency Impact Aid for Displaced Students (Hurricane Matthew) 84.938C 106 4,555 75,992
Total United States Department of Education 2,708,878 93,657,830
United States Department of Health and Human Services:
Cooperative Agreements to Promote Adolescent Health through School-Based HIV/STD
Prevention and School-Based Surveillance 93.079 N/A - 351,049
Cooperating Agreements to Support Comprehensive School Health Programs
to Prevent the Spread of HIV and Other Important Health Problems 93.938 N/A - 2,252
Headstart 93.600 None - 228,996
Total United States Department of Health and Human Services - 582,297
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ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Federal Pass- Through Passed
CFDA Entity Identifying Through to Total
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program or Cluster Number Number brecipi Expenditures
United States Department of Homeland Security:
Florida Division of Emergency Management:
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared Disasters) 97.036 None - 924,371
Total United States Department of Homeland Security - 924,371
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 4,161,977 $ 246,907,437

Notes:

(1)

()

@)

(4)

)

(6)

Basis of Presentation. The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards represents the amounts expended from Federal Programs
during the 2019-2020 fiscal year as determined based on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The amounts reported on the
Schedule have been reconciled to and are in material agreement with amounts recorded in the District’s accounting records

from which the basic financial statements have been reported.

Donated Food Assistance - National School Lunch Program. Includes $ 8,495,096 of USDA-donated foods used during the 2019-20 fiscal year.

Commodities are valued at fair value as determined at the time of donation.

Grant Contingency. The grant revenue amounts received are subject to audit and adjustments. If any expenditures are
disallowed by the grantor agencies as a result of such an audit any claim for reimbursement to the grantor agencies would
become a liability of the District. In the opinion of management, all grant expenditures are in compliance with the terms of the

grant agreement and applicable federal and state laws and regulations.

Noncash Assistance - Child and Adult Care Food Program. Includes $410,659 in Cash in Lieu of Donated Foods used during the 2019-20 fiscal year.

Public Assistance. Following a Presidential declaration of a major disaster or emergency, FEMA (CFDA 97.036) awards grants
to assist affected entities with the response to and recovery from such disasters. In fiscal year 2020 FEMA approved $924,371
eligible expenditures for Hurricane Irma, an event that occurred in August of 2017. All of this amount was incurred in fiscal year 2018.

The District did not elect to utilize the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate.
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Report of Independent Auditor on Compliance for
Each Major Program and on Internal Control over
Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance

The Honorable Members of the
School Board of Orange County Public Schools
Orlando, Florida

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Orange County Public Schools, Florida’s (the “District”) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of the District’'s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2020.
The District's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its
federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the District's major federal programs based
on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (“Uniform Guidance”). Those
standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
about the District’'s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program.
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the District's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the District, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June
30, 2020.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance,
we considered the District’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct
and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over compliance.
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A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Orlando, Florida
December 4, 2020

139



ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS -
FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAMS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Part | - Summary of Auditor's Results
Financial Statement Section

Type of auditor's report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Noncompliance material to financial

statements noted?

Federal Awards Section

Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Type of auditor's report on compliance for
major federal programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are
required to be reported in accordance with
2 CFR 200.516(a)?
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Unmodified

yes X no

yes X none reported

yes X no

yes X no

yes X none reported
Unmodified

yes X no



ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS -
FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAMS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Part | - Summary of Auditor's Results (continued)

Federal Awards Section (continued)

Identification of major federal programs:

Name of Program or Cluster CFDA Number
Department of Education
Special Education Cluster 84.027 /84.173
Student Support and Academic Enrichment Program 84.424
Dollar threshold used to determine Type A programs: $ 3,000,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee for federal purposes? X yes no

Part Il - Schedule of Financial Statement Findings

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, fraud, illegal acts, violations of
provisions of contracts and grant agreements, and abuse related to the financial statements that are required to
be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

There were no financial statement findings required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards .

Part lll - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and material instances of
noncompliance, including questioned costs, as well as any material abuse findings, related to the audit of major
federal programs, as required to be reported by 2 CFR 200.516(a).

There were no findings required to be reported by 2 CFR 200.516(a).
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ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Prior Audit Findings:

There were no audit findings in prior year.
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Orlando, FL
Year ended June 30, 2020



Report of Independent Auditor on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

The Honorable Members of the
School Board of Orange County Public Schools
Orlando, Florida

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the discretely
presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Orange County
Public Schools, Florida (the “District”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’'s basic financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated December 4, 2020. Our report includes reference to other auditors who have audited the
financial statements of the discretely presented component unit and the fiduciary funds, as described in our
report on the District’s financial statements. This report does not include the results of the other auditors’ testing
of internal control over financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by
those auditors.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal control
over financial reporting (“internal control”) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or,
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’'s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of
our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

143



Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Orlando, Florida
December 4, 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Management Letter

The Honorable Members of the
School Board of Orange County Public Schools
Orlando, Florida

Report of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the discretely presented component
unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Orange County Public Schools (the
“District”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 4, 2020. We did not audit the financial
statements of the discretely presented component unit nor the fiduciary funds; those financial statements were
audited by other auditors.

Auditor’s Responsibility

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States; the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance); and Chapter 10.800, Rules of the Auditor General.

Other Reporting Requirements

We have issued our Report of Independent Auditor on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards, Report of Independent Auditor on Compliance for Each Major Federal Awards
Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance, Schedule of Findings
and Questioned Costs, and our Report of Independent Accountant on Compliance with Local Government
Investment Policies, regarding compliance with requirements in accordance with Chapter 10.800, Rules of the
Auditor General. Disclosures in those reports and schedule, which are dated December 4, 2020, should be
considered in conjunction with this management letter.

Prior Audit Findings

Section 10.804(1)(f)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not corrective
actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding annual financial audit
report. There were no findings in the preceding annual financial audit report.

Financial Condition and Management

Section 10.804(1)(f)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires us to communicate whether or not the District has
met one or more of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and to identify the specific
condition(s) met. In connection with our audit, the results of our tests did not indicate the District met any of the
conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes.



Pursuant to Sections 10.804(1)(f)5.a. and 10.805(7), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied financial condition
assessment procedures for the District. It is management’'s responsibility to monitor the District's financial
condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on representations made by management
and review of financial information provided by same.

Section 10.804(1)(f)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we communicate any recommendations to
improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we did not have any such recommendations.

Transparency

Section 10.804(1)(f)6., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we communicate the results of our
determination as to whether the District maintains on its Web site the information specified in Section 1011.035,
Florida Statutes. In connection with our audit, we determined that the District maintained on its Web site the
information specified in Section 1011.035, Florida Statutes.

Additional Matters

Section 10.804(1)(f)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires us to communicate noncompliance with provisions
of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that has occurred, or is likely to have occurred, that has an effect on
the financial statements that is less than material but warrants the attention of those charged with governance.
In connection with our audit, we did not note any such findings.

Purpose of this Letter

The purpose of this management letter is to communicate certain matters prescribed by Chapter 10.800, Rules
of the Auditor General. Accordingly, this management letter is not suitable for any other purpose.

Orlando, Florida
December 4, 2020



Report of Independent Accountant on Compliance
With Local Government Investment Policies

The Honorable Members of the
School Board of Orange County Public Schools
Orlando, Florida

We have examined Orange County Public School, Florida’s (the “District”) compliance with the local government
investment policy requirements of Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, during the year ended June 30, 2020.
Management of the District is responsible for the District's compliance with the specified requirements. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the District's compliance with the specified requirements based on our
examination.

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we plan and perform the examination to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the District complied, in all material respects, with the specified
requirements referenced above. An examination involves performing procedures to obtain evidence about
whether the District complied with the specified requirements. The nature, timing and extent of the procedures
selected depend on our judgement, including an assessment of the risks of material noncompliance, whether
due to fraud or error. We believe that the evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the District's compliance with the specified
requirements.

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the local investment policy requirements of
Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, during the year ended June 30, 2020.

The purpose of this report is to comply with the audit requirements of Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, and
Rules of the Auditor General.

Orlando, Florida
December 4, 2020
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©O]c)| Orange County
P[S)| Public Schools

445 \West Amelia Street | Orlando, FL 32801
407-317-3200

OCPS EEO Non-Discrimination Statement

The School Board of Orange County, Florida, does not discriminate in admission or access to, or treatment or employment in its
programs and activities, on the basis of race, color, religion, age, sex, national origin, marital status, disability, genetic information,
sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, or any other reason prohibited by law. The School Board also provides equal
access to the Boy Scouts and other designated youth groups. This holds true for all students who are interested in participating in
educational programs and/or extracurricular school activities.
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